POLITECNICO DI TORINO

Master Degree in MECHATRONIC ENGINEERING

Master Degree Thesis

Model-based design of a test bench for electric traction powertrain development



Supervisor Prof. Stefano Carabelli Candidate Gaetano Colombo

A.A.2020/2021

A Dio, fonte di gioia e felicità;

A mio padre, pilastro portante e sorgente di ispirazione;

> A mia madre, seme d'amore e maestra di vita;

A mio fratello, fonte di spensieratezza e compagno di avventure;

Alla mia amata Sicilia, terra di colori, sapori e odori che non vorrebbe lasciar scappare i propri figli;

A me stesso e alla mia tenacia, che mi hanno permesso di arrivare fin qui.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

First, I would like to express my great gratitude to Prof. Stefano Carabelli for his constant support and guidance, for his constructive suggestions and his valuable knowledge during the development of this research work.

Also, I would like to thank PANDA G1 Electrical team's components to let me develop the final part of this thesis work and Panda 4WD-H PoliTO team's components to let me create the team and became the team leader.

Furthermore, I would like to thank all the people known in student residence Villa Claretta, roommates of Filadelfia 201 street, Jazz and BusyBox team friends, tennis friends, all colleagues known during master's degree and all old friends for having supported all my changes and enthusiasm, for showing that even those who are far away can be close, and for making me laugh during all difficult moments.

Finally, I would like to thank my family for constant and affectionate support of every day and for allowing me to reach this goal.

Thanks to all of you, this thesis work was developed with joy as well as passion.

ABSTRACT

In electrified vehicles case, both in Battery Electric Vehicles (BEVs) case and in Full- Hybrid or Plug-in Hybrid Electric Vehicles (FHEVs or PHEVs) case, electric motors testing is a crucial phase of the entire final vehicles build-up process. This because tests allow to verify whether designed system works properly and to check whether desired requirements are satisfied.For testing electric motors, appropriate test benches, which can be used in two cases, have to be considered: to verify designed motors' performance, or to diagnose experienced problems during the entire electric motors' life. In the first case, test benches are used to evaluate motors' electrical and mechanical characteristics that can help designers into the choice of proper motor during electric vehicles development process. The choice is done taking into account costs, dimensions and other motor physical characteristics too. Instead, in the second case test benches are used to evaluate motors' electrical and mechanical characteristics by means causes of possible problems during operation can be understood.

Usually, electric motor test bench costs are very high due to expensive components used to build-up what it is called Human – Machine – Interface (HMI), the most important part of the entire system. This because its purpose is setting input data on the basis of test to be performed, managing system's status by means buttons and switches and storing interesting parameter values. In general, HMI is made-up of control systems and motor drives allowing to control and to manage brake motor's behavior and computers allowing to store data coming out from sensors.

In this thesis activities, the goal is designing a test bench for testing electric motors where a control law is implemented in a Vehicle Management Unit (VMU). This control law is responsible to evaluate actions to be taken for piloting both bench and test motor on the basis of user input data and data coming from feedback path (values sensed by sensors). VMU is adopted to reduce costs to be addressed by companies for developing HMI's control system. Moreover, test bench is implemented in such a way that power recirculation effect is always verified. This because the goal is designed a test bench for testing also electric motors that require huge power (30 - 50 kW) by using small power supplies that are able to provide only the total dissipated power. To accomplish these goals, test bench's design is done adopting System Engineering methodology which integrates Model-based Design approach which provides V-shaped model and Modular-Technical-Model tools. The first tool allows to develop the final physical system performing sequentially different phases which involve different tests that are intended to verify whether initial requirements are satisfied and to understand whether user's idea is feasible. On the other hand, the second tool allows to subdivide system's devel- opment in modules in order to reduce development time and to improve reusability.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST (OF FIGURE	III
CHAP	TER 1: INTRODUCTION	1
CHAP	TER 2: SYSTEM ENGINEERING APPROACH	3
2.1	V-shaped model	4
	2.1.1 Hybrid V-shaped model	10
2.2	Modular-Technical Model (MTM)	13
CHAP	TER 3: TEST BENCH CONCEPT MODEL	17
3.1	User requirements	25
3.2	Concept model simulation	27
3.3	Concept model simulation results	30
CHAP	TER 4: SYSTEM DESIGN PHASE: TECHNICAL	
MC	DEL	39
4.1	Preliminary technical model	39
	4.1.1 Some preliminary modification of concept model	39
	4.1.2 Tabulated bench motor	53
	4.1.3 Tabulated bench and test motor	77
4.2	Modular Technical model	97
	4.2.1 Environment reference model	98
	4.2.2 Plant reference model	105
	4.2.3 Control interface refence model	114
	4.2.3.1 Control Logic reference model	116
	4.2.4 Human-Machine-Interface subsystem	124
	4.2.5 User subsystem	145
4.3	Dashboard and control panel	147
CHAP	TER 5: System design: model-based testing	149
5.1	MIL testing	150
	5.1.1 Single working point MIL testing	156
	5.1.2 Nominal power working point MIL testing	161
	5.1.3 Torque curves MIL testing	163
	5.1.4 3D maps MIL testing	166

TABLE OF CONTENTS

5.2	SIL testing	171
CHAP	TER 6: Rapid-Control-Prototyping code production	183
6.1	Rapid-Control-Prototyping MIL testing	189
	6.1.1 RCP Single working point MIL testing	189
	6.1.2 RCP Nominal power working point MIL testing	191
	6.1.3 RCP Torque curves MIL testing	193
	6.1.4 RCP 3D maps MIL testing	195
6.2	Rapid-Control-Prototyping SIL testing	198
Bibliog	graphy	203

LIST OF FIGURE

2.1	Generic V-shaped model	4
2.2	Model-in-the-loop testing in V-shaped model	6
2.3	Software-in-the-loop testing in V-shaped model	7
2.4	Processor-in-the-loop testing in V-shaped model	8
2.5	Hardware-in-the-loop testing in V-shaped model	9
2.6	Hybrid V-shaped model	10
2.7	Modular-Technical-Model general architecture	14
3.1	Static Test Bench concept model	17
3.2	Bench mapped motor Simulink block in concept model	18
3.3	Test mapped motor Simulink block in concept model	18
3.4	Motor shaft Simulink block in concept model	19
3.5	PID controller Simulink block in concept model	19
3.6	Power supply in concept model	21
3.7	Control monitor for motors' info output port	21
3.8	Viewer for battery current motors' output port	23
3.9	Viewer for bench motor's motor torque output port	23
3.10	Viewer for test motor's speed command	24
3.11	Viewer for bench motor's torque command	24
3.12	Viewer for test motor's torque command	25
3.13	Scope for supply power and current in concept model	25
3.14	Concept model's MATLAB script	27
3.15	Mapped motor Simulink block parameters window in concept	
	$model \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots $	28
3.16	Total absorbed power in concept model	31
3.17	Total demanded current in concept model	32
3.18	Bench motor dissipated power in concept model	32
3.19	Test motor dissipated power in concept model	33
3.20	Bench motor torque command in concept model	34
3.21	Test motor torque command in concept model	34
3.22	Test motor speed command in concept model	35
3.23	Bench and test motor battery currents in concept model	35
3.24	Bench and test motor generated torques in concept model	37
3.25	Bench motor mechanical and electrical parameters in concept	
	model	37

3.26	Test motor mechanical and electrical parameters in concept	
	model	38
4.1	Preliminary technical model	40
4.2	Preliminary technical model's control monitors	41
4.3	Preliminary technical model's MATLAB script	43
4.4	${\cal P}_{d_{bm}}$ with both motors set in single efficiency measurement $~$.	44
4.5	${\cal P}_{a_{bm}}$ with both motors set in single efficiency measurement $~$.	44
4.6	${\cal I}_{bm}$ with both motors set in single efficiency measurement $% {\cal I}_{bm}$.	46
4.7	$P_{d_{tm}}$ with both motors set in single efficiency measurement $\ .$	46
4.8	${\cal P}_{a_{tm}}$ with both motors set in single efficiency measurement $~$.	48
4.9	${\cal I}_{tm}$ with both motors set in single efficiency measurement $~$	48
4.10	ω with both motors set in single efficiency measurement $~.~.~$	50
4.11	T_{tm} with both motors set in single efficiency measurement $\ .$.	50
4.12	P_a, P_d with both motors set in single efficiency measurement	52
4.13	I with both motors set in single efficiency measurement $\ . \ .$.	53
4.14	$Electrical \ torque \ section \ of \ bench \ motor \ block \ parameters' window$	54
4.15	Bench motor maximum torque and power curves	55
4.16	Bench motor electrical torque section's MATLAB script \ldots	56
4.17	Bench motor electrical losses section in tabulated loss data way	57
4.18	Bench motor's dissipated power map	58
4.19	MATLAB script with bench motor's dissipated power map .	58
4.20	Bench motor's electrical losses section in tabulated efficiency	
	data way	60
4.21	Bench motor's efficiency map	61
4.22	MATLAB script with bench motor's efficiency map	61
4.23	$\mathbf{P}_{d_{bm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated loss data	63
4.24	$P_{a_{bm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated loss data	63
4.25	I_{bm} with bench motor set in tabulated loss data	65
4.26	$P_{d_{tm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated loss data	65
4.27	$P_{a_{tm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated loss data	66
4.28	I_{tm} with bench motor set in tabulated loss data	67
4.29	ω with bench motor set in tabulated loss data	67
4.30	T_{tm} with bench motor set in tabulated loss data $\ldots \ldots \ldots$	68
4.31	P_a, P_d with bench motor set in tabulated loss data $\ldots \ldots$	69
4.32	I with bench motor set in tabulated loss data $\ldots \ldots \ldots$	69
4.33	$\mathbf{P}_{d_{bm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data	70
4.34	$\mathbf{P}_{a_{bm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data	71
4.35	I_{bm} with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data	71
4.36	$\mathbf{P}_{d_{tm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data	72
4.37	$\mathbf{P}_{a_{tm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data	72
4.38	I_{tm} with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data	74
4.39	ω with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data	74
4.40	T_{tm} with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data \ldots	76
4.41	P_a, P_d with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data	76

4.42	I with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data \ldots \ldots	77
4.43	MATLAB script with tabulated bench and test motor	78
4.44	$P_{d_{bm}}$ with both motors set in tabulated loss data	80
4.45	$P_{a_{bm}}$ with both motors set in tabulated loss data	81
4.46	I_{bm} with both motors set in tabulated loss data	81
4.47	$P_{d_{tm}}$ with both motors set in tabulated loss data	83
4.48	$P_{a_{tm}}$ with both motors set in tabulated loss data	83
4.49	I_{tm} with both motors set in tabulated loss data	85
4.50	ω with both motors set in tabulated loss data	85
4.51	T_{tm} with both motors set in tabulated loss data	87
4.52	P_a, P_d with both motors set in tabulated loss data $\ldots \ldots$	87
4.53	I with both motors set in tabulated loss data \ldots	88
4.54	P_{d_i} with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data	89
4.55	$P_{a_i}^{a_{om}}$ with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data	89
4.56	I_{hm} with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data	90
4.57	P_d with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data	91
4.58	$P_{a_{i}}$ with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data	91
4.59	I_{tm} with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data	93
4.60	ω with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data	93
4.61	T_{tm} with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data	95
4.62	P_{a} , P_{d} with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data	95
4.63	I_{a} , I_{a} with some motors set in tabulated efficiency data	97
4.64	MTM Simulink template	98
4.65	Environment's reference model	99
4.66	Torque sensor noise's block parameters window	99
4.67	Torque sensor HGM T40B datasheet	101
4 68	Current sensor DHB 300 C420 datasheet	102
4 69	Round per minute measurement system datasheet	102
4 70	Environment reference model's MATLAB script	105
4 71	Plant reference model	105
4 72	Sensor models subsystem	108
4 73	Torque sensor Simulink model	108
4.74	Current sensor's Simulink model	110
4 75	Current sensor's transfer characteristic	110
4 76	APICOM FR 250 RPM measurement system	111
4 77	BPM measurement system's Simulink model	112
1 78	Plant reference model's MATLAB script	112
4 79	Control reference model	114
4.80	Control reference model's MATLAB script	116
1.81	Control logic reference Simulink model	117
4.89	Emergency task's Simulink Stateflow	118
1.04 1.82	Supervisor task's Simulink Stateflow	118
4.00	BM TraCmd task's Simulink stateflow	120
1.04	BM_INCONTROLLER_ON state's Simular model	191
4.00		141

4.86 TM_TrqCmd_task's Simulink model
4.87 TM_CONTROLLER_ON state's Simulink
4.88 Control Logic reference model's MATLAB script 124
4.89 HMI's Simulink model
4.90 Signal_to_parameters subsystem Simulink model 126
4.91 Cmd_to_signal subsystem's Simulink model
4.92 $\omega-T$ plane
4.93 Single_working_point subsystem's Simulink model 129
4.94 bm_cmd3 subsystem's Simulink model
4.95 tm_cmd3 subsystem's Simulink model
4.96 Single working point's MATLAB script
4.97 Nominal_power_working_point subsystem's Simulink model 132
4.98 bm_cmd2 subsystem's Simulink model
4.99 tm_cmd2 subsystem's Simulink model
4.100Nominal power working point's MATLAB script 135
4.101Torque curves subsystem's Simulink model
$4.102bm_cmd1$ subsystem's Simulink model
$4.103tm_cmd1$ subsystem's Simulink model
4.104Torque curves' MATLAB script
$4.1053D_maps$ subsystem's Simulink model
$4.106bm_cmd0$ subsystem's Simulink model
$4.107tm_cmd0$ subsystem's Simulink model
4.1083D maps' MATLAB script
4.109User subsystem Simulink model
4.110User subsystem's MATLAB script
4.111Dashboard and Control panel in MTM template 148
5.1 MTM's MATLAB script
5.2 Single working point MIL testing path
5.3 Single_working_point.m's MATLAB script 158
5.4 Single working point results in system design phase MIL testing 160
5.5 Nominal_powe_working_point.m's MATLAB script 162
5.6 Nominal power working point results in system design phase
$\operatorname{MIL} \operatorname{testing} \ldots \ldots$
5.7 $Torque_curves.m's$ MATLAB script
5.8 Torque curves results in system design phase MIL testing 166
5.9 $3D_{maps.m's}$ MATLAB script
5.10 Dissipated power 3D map result in system design phase MIL
testing \ldots
5.11 Efficiency 3D map result in system design phase MIL testing 169
5.12 Test motor parameter trends in system design phase MIL testing 170
5.13 Control Logic block parameters setting in SIL testing 171
5.14 Diagnostic viewer window in SIL testing
5.15 Dissipated power 3D map in SIL testing
5.16 Efficiency 3D map in SIL testing

5.17	Control Logic reference model setting for test harness generation 177
5.18	Control Logic's test harness model
5.19	green_comparison.mlx's MATLAB script
5.20	MIL and SIL Control Logic green signal comparison 179
5.21	<i>red_comparison.mlx</i> MATLAB script
5.22	MIL and SIL Control Logic red signal comparison 180
5.23	<i>bm_trqcmd_comparison.mlx</i> 's MATLAB script 181
5.24	MIL and SIL Control Logic bm_trqcmd signal comparison . . 181
5.25	$tm_trqcmd_comparison.mlx$'s MATLAB script 182
5.26	MIL and SIL Control Logic tm_trqcmd signal comparison 182
6.1	Control interface reference model in RCP phase
6.2	dSpace ADC block model scheme
6.3	dSpace DAC block model scheme
6.4	Signal conditioning sections in Control Interface reference model 185
$\begin{array}{c} 6.4 \\ 6.5 \end{array}$	Signal conditioning sections in Control Interface reference model 185 slblocks.m MATLAB script
$6.4 \\ 6.5 \\ 6.6$	Signal conditioning sections in Control Interface reference model 185 slblocks.m MATLAB script
$6.4 \\ 6.5 \\ 6.6 \\ 6.7$	Signal conditioning sections in Control Interface reference model 185 slblocks.m MATLAB script
$6.4 \\ 6.5 \\ 6.6 \\ 6.7 \\ 6.8$	Signal conditioning sections in Control Interface reference model 185 slblocks.m MATLAB script
$\begin{array}{c} 6.4 \\ 6.5 \\ 6.6 \\ 6.7 \\ 6.8 \\ 6.9 \end{array}$	Signal conditioning sections in Control Interface reference model 185 slblocks.m MATLAB script
$\begin{array}{c} 6.4 \\ 6.5 \\ 6.6 \\ 6.7 \\ 6.8 \\ 6.9 \\ 6.10 \end{array}$	Signal conditioning sections in Control Interface reference model 185 slblocks.m MATLAB script
$\begin{array}{c} 6.4 \\ 6.5 \\ 6.6 \\ 6.7 \\ 6.8 \\ 6.9 \\ 6.10 \\ 6.11 \end{array}$	Signal conditioning sections in Control Interface reference model 185 slblocks.m MATLAB script
$\begin{array}{c} 6.4 \\ 6.5 \\ 6.6 \\ 6.7 \\ 6.8 \\ 6.9 \\ 6.10 \\ 6.11 \\ 6.12 \end{array}$	Signal conditioning sections in Control Interface reference model 185 slblocks.m MATLAB script
$\begin{array}{c} 6.4 \\ 6.5 \\ 6.6 \\ 6.7 \\ 6.8 \\ 6.9 \\ 6.10 \\ 6.11 \\ 6.12 \\ 6.13 \end{array}$	Signal conditioning sections in Control Interface reference model 185 slblocks.m MATLAB script
$\begin{array}{c} 6.4 \\ 6.5 \\ 6.6 \\ 6.7 \\ 6.8 \\ 6.9 \\ 6.10 \\ 6.11 \\ 6.12 \\ 6.13 \\ 6.14 \end{array}$	Signal conditioning sections in Control Interface reference model 185 slblocks.m MATLAB script
$\begin{array}{c} 6.4 \\ 6.5 \\ 6.6 \\ 6.7 \\ 6.8 \\ 6.9 \\ 6.10 \\ 6.11 \\ 6.12 \\ 6.13 \\ 6.14 \\ 6.15 \end{array}$	Signal conditioning sections in Control Interface reference model 185 slblocks.m MATLAB script

Chapter 1

Introduction

The rapid development and spread of electric motors in automotive industry and other sectors has involved the need to develop parallelly equipment that allows to perform tests on them and to evaluate their characteristics in order to be able to choose the best motor on the basis of requirements to be satisfied. Moreover, this development has required equipment's development to perform quality control and to diagnose possible problems while they are working.

A way for obtaining experimentally electrical and mechanical characteristics of an electric motor is based on the use of a test bench which is made up of a known electric motor, called also *brake motor*, connected to the motor to be tested in order to perform all tests that allow to characterize the electric motor under test. From this, it's possible to understand that it's very important to have under control the brake motor because in that way specific inputs can be imposed to the electric motor under test and all needed output data can be obtained. Usually, brake motors are piloted by a motor driver connected to a PC by means users is able to set input parameters on the basis of test to be performed. In addition, a control system made up of a computer is needed to control brake motor's behavior piloting its motor driver and to be able to acquire and store interesting data needed for characterizing the electric motor under test.

The goal of these thesis activities is implementing a regenerative active test bench for electric motor using a Vehicle Management Unit (VMU), electronic control unit used to elaborate actions to be taken on the basis of data coming from sensors used in automotive industry, in order to reduce test bench's costs that usually have to be addressed by companies for developing a new test bench. Regenerative test bench means that mechanical energy of under test electric motor has to be converted in electrical energy to be fed into national electricity grid. This, for sure, allows to have significant energy saving and a small power supply even if electric motors to be tested require a very huge power (30 -50 kW). This because, in that way power supply must be able to provide a power more or less equal to dissipated power by two motors. While, *active test bench* means that brake motor is not moved by rotational movement imposed by under test electric motor, but it's piloted by user through its motor driver and its inverter. This, of course, allows to obtain more precise measurements.

In the cases where brake motor is put in rotation by rotational movement imposed by the under test electric motor, test bench is called *passive test bench*. In that cases, the under test electric motor is piloted by an inverter which manages voltage and frequency values to impose desired rotational speed values to test motor's shaft. Once test motor's shaft starts to rotate, also passive breaking motor starts rotating and what is called *electromagnetic brakes* happens. This because, once the test motor's shaft is put in rotation there will be electromagnetic induction that will generate eddy currents that are responsible of a flux variation that implies a breaking force. This breaking force is contrasted by load cell that allows to obtain force and torque values through which test motor's shaft power values can be computed: multiplying each other rotational speed and torque values.

Instead, in *active test bench cases* brake motor is used to generate a load connected to test motor. Setting bench motor parameters, load dynamic can be controlled so in that case an additional inverter with respect to passive test bench cases is needed to pilot bench motor and generating desired loads. From this, it's possible to understand that in active test bench cases higher costs have to be addressed by companies and more complicated system has to be developed. This, due to the need of two different inverters: one for piloting bench motor and another one for managing test motor. On the other hand, this kind of test bench allows to improve measurements' repeatability and accuracy.

Moreover, in active test bench a dynamometer and a speed sensor connected to shaft interconnecting two motors must be used to measure torque and rotational speed values. Other specific sensors are adopted to measure battery voltage and motor phase current values.

The following chapters allow to understand the procedure followed to develop a regenerative active test bench's model and to obtain corresponding C code, implemented into VMU, to be used to build up final physical system.

Chapter 2

System Engineering approach

To develop regenerative active test bench introduced in previous chapter, *system engineering approach* is followed in order to have standard procedure that allows to build-up a prototype with all user's required characteristics starting from an initial concept model. This is also done because thanks to this approach, different disciplines and tools needed to develop system can be included. Moreover, it allows to reduce time and costs required for developing the final system. In this thesis work two different system engineering tools have been adopted in order to develop desired test bench for electric motors: *V-shaped model and Modular Technical Model (MTM)*.

The first one allows to define a procedure to be followed starting from user's concept for obtaining final system prototype with all desired characteristics. So, V-shaped model tool defines all phases to deal with to develop the final physical system in a way that guarantees user safety. Indeed, it implies many tests during all development procedure.

Instead, the second tool allows to subdivide the system to be developed in *modules*, different parts, such that development's efficiency and quality are improved. This because each module can be developed by a different team having specific skills. Moreover, this tool allows to improve reusability since developed modules in a specific project can be also adopted in other project's development. Obviously, this implies a reduction of development time and costs to be held by companies, but on the other hand development's complexity is increased due to the fact that all modules must be able to communicate each other so designers must develop them in such a way that can be possible.

2.1 V-shaped model

V-shaped model allows to define development process for a system to be developed with specific characteristics and requirements defined by the user. This tool subdivides development process in phases that must be performed on succession to proceed in schematic way and obtaining final build-up prototype. This, for sure, allows to improve user safety since in each phase different tests are required in order to verify whether user's requirements are satisfied and to proceed with the V-shaped model phases.

From all this, it is possible to understand that V-shaped model tool allows to organize in a better and more efficient way system's development in which debugging errors and problems is simpler.



Figure 2.1: Generic V-shaped model

Observing the V-shaped model reported above, three different branches can be distinguished: *descendent branch* that represents *verification phase* that starts with requirements analysis and ends with detailed design and program specification; *horizontal branch* (the bottom part) that represents *coding phase* during which corresponding model's C code is obtained; *ascendant branch* that represents *validation phase* where modules previously designed are put together and tested to understand whether everything is working fine or not on the base of initial user's requirements. At the end of each phase, specific tests are performed. Below, a brief description of all performed tests is reported. • Model-in-the-loop testing



Figure 2.2: Model-in-the-loop testing in V-shaped model

It represents the first test performed during V-shaped model phases and includes all verification phases in order to test designed controller and plant. To perform it, both plant and controller are modelled in native simulation tool and they are run in development machine where they are fed with inputs to obtain corresponding outputs through which designed system's behavior can be evaluated in order to understand whether it must be changed or not on the basis of user's requirements. Moreover, to perform this test, both controller and plant models are run in development machine in no real- time.

• Software-in-the-loop testing



Figure 2.3: Software-in-the-loop testing in V-shaped model

It represents the second test performed during V-shaped model phases. It is performed during the last step of verification phase (descendant branch of V- shaped model), during code V-cycle phase (horizontal branch of V-shaped model) and during first step of validation phase (ascendant part of V-shaped model). Thanks to it, obtained Control Logic's C-code is tested in order to verify whether it has the same behavior of corresponding model before designed and tested. Also, in this case, like MIL testing case, both plant model and controller C-code are run in development machine and they are fed with inputs to obtain corresponding outputs to be compared to those obtained in MIL testing case to verify C-code's behavior: it works properly if obtained results are equal to each other.

• Processor-in-the-loop testing



Figure 2.4: Processor-in-the-loop testing in V-shaped model

It represents the third test performed during V-shaped model phases. In particular, it is performed during the V-shaped model's first two steps of validation phase (ascendant branch). To perform it, plant's model is run in development machine while Control Logic's C-code, obtained in previous phase, is run in target or rapid prototype hardware to verify its behavior. • Hardware-in-the-loop testing



Figure 2.5: Hardware-in-the-loop testing in V-shaped model

It represents the last test performed during V-shaped model phases. In particular, it is performed during last two steps of validation phase (ascendant branch). To perform it, obtained and tested Control Logic's C-code is run in target or rapid prototyping hardware while plant is simulated by real time simulator. This test allows to verify plant's behavior that is managed by Control Logic's C-code implemented into the hardware.

2.1.1 Hybrid V-shaped model

Going through V-shaped model details, Hybrid V-shaped model must be considered. Its scheme is reported below.



Figure 2.6: Hybrid V-shaped model

Here, phases to be followed for obtaining final build-up prototype are highlighted where several models and tools are used. Below, a brief description of each phase is reported.

• System Overall specification

It is the first phase during which user develops what is called *concept* model by means he presents his idea to design company that must find a way to implement it. To do this, user can adopt any native platform neglecting all related technical details. This because it is up to designers evaluating technical details to be considered for obtaining a system that allows to satisfy all user requirements.

• System design

It is the second phase during which *Development Workstation (DWS)* is used for designing and simulating system's model. Here, only no real-time concept is considered and at the beginning, system's design and simulation are done neglecting target hardware's characteristics. During this phase MIL and SIL testing are performed using *Modular Technical Model (MTM)*. Below all System design sub-phases are listed and described.

- Project Environment

It allows to organize system's development in a better way. Indeed, during this sub- phase what is called *project environment* is created that implies several folders: one for each performed step.

- Model-in-the-loop

It allows to evaluate system model's behavior once it is implemented starting form concept model upgraded considering all technical details and characteristics. Results of this test must be comparable with those obtained simulating concept model provided by user at the beginning. In this sub-phase, MTM frames consist of generic interfaces because they are not intended for *Rapid Control Prototyping Platform (RCPP)*.

- Software-in-the-loop

It is performed once Control Logic's C-code is automatically generated in order to verify its behavior: to proceed its behavior must be equal to that obtained in the previous case where model is used.Here control law is run in DWS and on the basis of tool to be used for obtaining code, DWS system target file is selected.

• Rapid control prototyping (RCP) code production

Here, both DWS and RCP platform are used to perform SIL, MIL and PIL testing. To do this MTM standard architecture is used and system is considered to be non-real-time. In this case, MIL testing, unlike MIL testing performed in previous phase, is performed considering RCPP interfaces which must be modelled. So, before to perform MIL testing in this case MTM interfaces must be modified with respect to those used in System Design MIL testing case. This allows to verify system model's behavior in presence of RCPP modelled interfaces. To do this, simulation results obtained in this case must be compared to those obtained in the previous phase during MIL and SIL testing. Once MIL testing is done and verified that system's model works properly Control Logic's C-code must be obtained and tested. For this reason, SIL testing has to be performed setting rapid control prototyping system target file and running everything in DWS. Also in this case, to understand whether obtained C-code works properly or not, simulation results must be compared to those obtained in previous MIL testing. Then, PIL testing can be performed using RCP platform connected to DWS. This is done using RCP tool of specific chosen platform which allows communication between rapid prototyping hardware where C-code is run and plant's model which is run in DWS.

• Rapid control prototyping (RCP) on test bench

In this case, like in PIL testing case of previous phase, RCP platform is considered and connected to DWS by means the specific RCP tool. But here, unlike what happens in PIL testing of previous phase, system is considered being in real-time. This because interfaces are represented by test bench so, for sure, they are real-time while control law is taken from MTM and run in DWS. Even this phase is subdivided in sub-phases, listed below.

- Build

Here, control law C-code is automatically generated selecting RCP platform System Target File and compiled so that C-code, to be implemented inside the chosen platform, is built.

- Hardware-in-the-loop

Here, control law C-code obtained in previous sub-phase is deployed on RCP platform such that the entire system can be tested using test bench which represents the real interface. To manage input/output signals of RCP platform a proper RCP software is used.

VMU Selection

During this phase, MIL testing is performed to analyze the characteristics that VMU must have to build-up the final physical system.

• VMU Procurement and Code Production

During this phase SIL and PIL testing are performed considering the model developed during the previous phase. This procedure is similar to what is done in RCP Code Production phase but this time instead of considering RCP platform's model, VMU's model is considered.

• VMU on Test Bench

Here, VMU is tested in real-time since it is connected to DWS where control law is developed and interfaces, represented by test bench, are real. So, during this phase an HIL testing is performed.

• Prototype

This is the last phase of V-shaped model in which final system prototype is built-up. This prototype has real-time interfaces.

2.2 Modular-Technical Model (MTM)

Modular Technical Model (MTM), like V-shaped model, is a tool used in System Engineering approach. It allows to subdivide system to be developed into what is called *modules* such that more than one team with different skills can be engaged to develop all modules and obtain the final physical system's model. This, for sure, allows designers to improve reusability since developed modules can be adopted in different projects. At the same time, this allows to reduce development time because the different system parts (modules) are developed concurrently by more teams who at the end must be put together for obtaining the final physical system.

This tool is called *Modular* since it provides modules that represent the different parts on which the system is subdivided. So, each module is developed independently from other modules and it must be able to work without considering all system parts. Then, it is called *Technical* because the standard structure, provided by this tool, contains all technical details needed to be taken into care for developing desired system.

Standard architecture, shown in figure 2.7, never changes and it provides always the same modules that must be filled on the basis of details and characteristics of considered system.



Figure 2.7: Modular-Technical-Model general architecture

From this scheme, the different modules below listed and described can be distinguished.

• Environment

This module includes all disturbances and noises coming from ambient in which system works that can impact system's behavior.

• Plant

This module contains system's model whose behavior must be controlled by control law. Moreover, it also includes monitors by means user is able to observe measured parameter trends.

• Control

Inside this modules *Control Logic module* is implemented that represents application code to be implemented for managing plant's behavior. Here, besides to find Control Logic module, layer allowing interaction between control law and target hardware is implemented. Moreover, a control scope is implemented to take under control input and output signals. So, Control module contains target hardware interface's models that are very important to be taken into care during Control Logic C-code production procedure in order to verify obtained C-code's behavior in presence of real target hardware's interfaces

• Human-Machine-Interface

This module is intended for translating user commands into signal commands to be transmitted to Control module. So, here, different push-buttons and LEDs could be implemented through which user can start/stop system and observe its system status. In other words, this module is intended to implement dashboard by means user can manage system's status. Also in this case, a scope can be implemented to take under control all interesting quantities coming out from plant and/or control.

• User

This module is intended to simulate all actions to be done by user to set system before to start it.

In addition, arrows that interconnect each other all different modules represent physical interconnections to be implemented for allowing communication among physical built-up system parts. These interconnections can be implemented by means busses or cables allowing signals exchanges. These signals can be either continuous or discrete: all modules work with continuous signals except Control module in which Control Logic module is implemented and works with only discrete signals. Layer modelled in Control module that represents interfaces between control law and target hardware can work both discrete and continuous signals.

Chapter 3

Test Bench Concept Model

As explained in previous chapters to develop and implement desired *electric* motor test bench, V-shaped model tool is adopted. So, following standard architecture provided by this tool the first phase is *System Overall Specifica*tion by means user presents to designers his idea using what is called *concept* model where idea is modelled neglecting all technical details to be considered for system's development. Concept model presented by user in this case is shown in figure 3.1.



Figure 3.1: Static Test Bench concept model

From this model, it is possible to understand that user presents his idea by means a Simulink model where all specifications to be satisfied are highlighted. Here, the different components to be designed and implemented can be distinguished: *bench motor, test motor, shaft, controller, inverter and control monitors.* Below a brief description of each element is reported. • Bench motor



Figure 3.2: Bench mapped motor Simulink block in concept model

This, called also brake motor, is responsible to impose rotational speed to electric motor to be tested. It is piloted by user who provides rotational speed values that is compared to rotational speed values coming from feedback path in order to evaluate corresponding error to be provided to PID controller which is able to decide action to be performed so that measured motor shaft's rotational speed is equal to rotational speed value desired by user. Moreover, it must be provided by its own inverter which needs a specific input voltage value and by means a motor shaft it must be interconnected to electric motor to be tested in order to be able to impose desired rotational speed values.

• Test motor



Figure 3.3: Test mapped motor Simulink block in concept model

It represents the electric motor to be tested for obtaining its mechanical and electrical characteristics. This electric motor, unlike bench motor, is piloted by user through torque command. It, like brake motor, must be provided by its own inverter which requires a constant input voltage value and connected to motor shaft in order to be interconnected to bench motor. • Motor shaft



Figure 3.4: Motor shaft Simulink block in concept model

It represents interconnection elements between the two motors. It must be considered because, for sure, it introduces mechanical loss that cannot be neglected.

PID controller



Figure 3.5: PID controller Simulink block in concept model

PID controller stands for Proportional, Integral, Derivative controller that represents a controller that is able to provide continuous variation of output. It implements a control loop based on feedback in order to control accurately system, increasing efficiency and removing oscillations. Thanks to feedback mechanism it is able to continuously compute an error value between what is called *setpoint* (rotational speed desired by user) and what is called *measured process variable* (bench motor out rotational speed) and apply a correction on three different parts: proportional part responsible to set a proportional correction on the basis of computed error (if error is equal to zero no correction occurs); integral part responsible for considering past error values and integrating them over time to evaluate *integral term* (I) to be multiplied for current error value; derivative parts responsible to implement a sort of anticipatory control because on the base of its change rate it is able to estimate further signal trend. Integral term (I) decreases once error is eliminated while *derivative term* (D) decreases once error variations become less rapid.

• Power supply



Figure 3.6: Power supply in concept model

It is modelled by means a constant because it represents constant voltage provided by a battery that must be connected to bench and test motor's power supply port.

• Control monitors

Monitors are used to analyze interesting parameter trends. Simulink model allows to analyze different parameter trends such as those coming out from bench and test motor's *info output port*. This output port allows to analyze motors' mechanical and electrical quantity trends such as: *mechanical power, power loss, motor power, electric power, motor power loss and motor power stored*. For this reason, user connects a scope to info output port of both mapped motor Simulink blocks (motif with a red rectangle in figure 3.7).



Figure 3.7: Control monitor for motors' info output port

Below a brief description of all parameters coming out from info output port is reported.

- Mechanical power

It is a signal coming out from bench and test motors' info output port that carries information about mechanical power produced by motors starting from electrical power provided by power supply and inverter. It is measured in rad.

- Power loss

This is another signal coming out from both motor blocks' info output port. It carries information about internal inverter and motor's power loss. It is measure in Nm. - Power info

It represents another signal coming out from both motor blocks' info output that carries information about four different parameters such as: *motor power, electric power, motor power loss and motor power stored.* The first parameter refers to mechanical power produced by motor and it is measured in W while the second one refers to electrical power produced by motor measured in W. Instead, the third parameter refers to power loss due to friction presence (mechanical loss), iron losses because of hysteresis and eddy currents, copper losses because of conduction, additional losses in metal masses near windings because of eddy currents and in lamination because of imperfect insulation, losses in insulator that usually can be overlooked.

Besides scope above described, user implements other scopes to verify other parameter trends such as those below listed.

- Battery current

It represents another bench and test motor blocks' output port from which a signal carrying information about draw or demand current by motors comes out. It represents demand current if its value is negative or draw current if its value is positive. It is measured in A and its trend is taken under control by means a viewer connected directly on bus as highlighted in figure 3.8.



Figure 3.8: Viewer for battery current motors' output port

This viewer allows to control both motors' battery current trend and comparing them to each other.

- Motor torque

It represents another mapped motor Simulink blocks' output port from which a signal carrying information about motor output shaft torque. It is measured in Nm. This signal, like battery current case, is taken under control by means a viewer directly connected on bus as shown in figure 3.9.



Figure 3.9: Viewer for bench motor's motor torque output port

This viewer allows to control motor torque signal trend of both motors and compare them to each other.

- Motor speed

It represents signal coming out from motor shaft's speed output port that carries information about speed control signal for test motor. It is measured in rad/s and taken under control by means a viewer directly connected to bus as shown in figure 3.10.



Figure 3.10: Viewer for test motor's speed command

- Bench motor torque command

It represents signal coming out from PID controller that carries information about torque command used to pilot bench motor and obtaining user's desired rotational speed at motor shaft's output port. It is measured in Nm and taken under control by means a viewer directly connected to bus as shown in figure 3.11.



Figure 3.11: Viewer for bench motor's torque command

- Test motor torque command

It represents a signal coming out from transfer function Simulink block used to pilot test motor. It is measured in Nm and taken under control by means a viewer directly connected to bus as shown on figure below.



Figure 3.12: Viewer for test motor's torque command

- Supply power and current

They represent parameters computed starting from signals coming out from some mapped motor Simulink blocks' output ports. Indeed, supply current parameter is computed starting from battery current signals coming out from *"BattCurr"* output ports that must be added together while supply power is computed starting from supply current, before described, that has to be multiplied by power supply voltage value.



Figure 3.13: Scope for supply power and current in concept model

3.1 User requirements

User asks for different requirements to be satisfy for test bench to be designed and implemented. All these requirements can be summarized in: *static active regenerative test bench*. Below a detailed explanation is reported.

• Regenerative

This means that user requires an electric motor test bench in which total absorbed power is more or less equal to the sum of bench and test motor's dissipated power. This is required by user because it requires a test bench that is able to test motors that require very huge power (30 - 50 kW) using a small power supply. For this reason, in concept model user implements a control monitor allowing to take under control absorbed power and demanded current trends.

• Active

This means that user requires a test bench in which both motors (bench and test motor) are piloted by an own inverter. This because user wants an electric motor test bench with a very high accuracy into evaluating test motor characteristics. This can be reach only if bench motor is piloted by its own inverter, like test motor, because in that way user is able to control bench motor's behavior on the basis of test to be performed. This is very important since in those cases bench motor represents the load connected to test motor.

• Static

This means that user is asking for a test bench where dynamic that can affect test motor's behavior has not to be considered. This, in turns, means that interesting parameters must be measured in steady state condition.

Besides all these requirements, another very important user's request is the fact that electric motor test bench must be designed and implemented in such a way that both motors are piloted by using a *Vehicle Management Unit (VMU)* in order to reduce very high costs to be addressed by companies in standard situation. Indeed, in standard situation companies must address high costs for building up what is called *Human Machine Interface (HMI)* that is constituted of two different drivers, one for each motor, different computers for storing data and setting desired parameters on the basis of test to be performed. In addition, VMU usage must allow to automatize test bench in order to be able to obtain 3D efficiency and dissipated power map of electric motor under test.
3.2 Concept model simulation

To simulate concept model shown at beginning of this chapter, a MATLAB script must be run before to start Simulink simulation. This MATLAB script (figure 3.14) must contain all needed parameters for parametrizing mapped motor Simulink blocks used to implement model.



Figure 3.14: Concept model's MATLAB script

Here, a mapped motor section can be distinguished where all parameters needed to parametrize bench and test mapped motor Simulink blocks are defined. To do this user consider the same electric motor to model both brake and test motor. Indeed, in MATLAB script above reported there is no distinction between two motors. This can be also verified from Simulink model opening block parameters' window of each mapped motor Simulink block where the same variables' name is defined.



Figure 3.15: Mapped motor Simulink block parameters window in concept model

Below all needed parameters to be defined in MATLAB script are listed and described.

• Nominal rotational spped (w_n)

It represents rotational speed value assumed by motors in nominal conditions. So, it represents the rotational speed value for which electric motor can work for an "infinite period" guaranteeing always performances declared in rating plate by designer. It is measured in rad/s.

• Nominal mechanical torque (T_m_n)

It represents torque value provided by electrical motor in nominal conditions. So, it represents torque value for which electric motor can work for an "infinite period" without problems guaranteeing performances declared in rating plane. It is measured in Nm.

• Nominal efficiency (eta_n)

It represents electric motor efficiency's value in nominal conditions. So, it represents efficiency's value guaranteed by electric motor when it works at nominal rotational speed and nominal mechanical torque.

• Nominal mechanical power (P_m_n)

It represents electric motor's mechanical power at crankshaft when motor works in nominal conditions. Indeed, it can be computed as the product between nominal mechanical torque and nominal rotational speed. It is measured in W.

• Maximum mechanical torque (T_m_max)

It represents the maximum torque value that can be provided to electric motor without causing problems to electric and mechanical circuit inside motor. It is measured in Nm.

• Maximum mechanical power (P_m_max)

It represents the maximum mechanical power that can be provided by electric motor without causing problems to electric motor's electrical and mechanical parts. It can be computed as product between maximum mechanical torque and maximum rotational speed. It is measured in W.

• Mechanical time constant (tau_m)

It represents time constant measuring time needed by electric motor to reach about 63measures electric motor's responsiveness.

• Iron power loss (Pl_iron)

This variable defines all power loss in the iron. So, it defines power loss due to Joule effect which depends on absorbed current by load, power loss due to ferromagnetic material's hysteresis, power loss due to eddy currents' presence. It is measured in W.

• Nominal electric power loss (Pl_eln)

This variable defines all power loss that are independent from torque and rotational speed. It is measured in W.

• Torque constant (k_T)

This constant is specified by motor's designer. It depends on magnetic strength and on wire's number. Moreover, it determines the slope of torque-current curve.

• Mechanical moment of inertia (J_m)

This variable defines moment of inertia generated by mechanical masses in rotation with respect to rotational axis. It is measured in kgm2.

• Mechanical constant (beta_m)

This variable defines friction generated between electric motor's rotating part. It allows to compute resistant torque applied to motor shaft.

3.3 Concept model simulation results

Running MATLAB script, shown in figure 3.14, all defined variables will be loaded in RAM memory so that Simulink model blocks can refer to them during simulation. Before to start Simulink simulation, simulation time must be set so that when it is expired simulation stops. Considering a simulation time of 50 seconds and running Simulink concept model results below reported are obtained.



• Total absorbed power

Figure 3.16: Total absorbed power in concept model

Here, total absorbed power's steady state value is about 2.621e+03 W.

Figure 3.17: Total demanded current in concept model

Here, total demanded current steady-state value is about 2.730e+1 A.

• Bench motor dissipated power

• Total demanded current



Figure 3.18: Bench motor dissipated power in concept model

Here, bench motor's dissipated power steady-state value is about -1.172 kW.



• Test motor dissipated power

Figure 3.19: Test motor dissipated power in concept model

Here, test motor's dissipated power steady-state value is about -1.199 kW.

Summing bench and test motor's dissipated power, total dissipated power is obtained that at steady-state assumes a value equal to -2.371e+03 W. Comparing this value with total absorbed power value, user's regenerating requirement is demonstrated. Absorbed power, of course, is a little bit bigger due to motor shaft presence that, for sure, introduce mechanical losses that are not considered in summing bench and test motor's dissipated power.

Besides above parameter trends, other parameters trends can be obtained from concept model such as: *bench motor torque command, test motor torque command, test motor speed command, battery currents, generated motor torques and all bench and test motor parameters coming out from their info output ports.*



$\bullet \ Bench \ motor \ torque \ command$

Figure 3.20: Bench motor torque command in concept model

Here, bench motor torque command's steady-state value coming out from PID controller is about -39.5 Nm.

• Test motor torque command



Figure 3.21: Test motor torque command in concept model

Here, test motor torque command's steady-state value coming out from transfer function is about 40 Nm as desired since user set 40 Nm as torque value to pilot test motor.



• Test motor speed command

Figure 3.22: Test motor speed command in concept model

Here, test motor speed command's steady-state value coming out from motor shaft is about 500 rad/s as desired since user set 500 rad/s as speed value to pilot bench motor.

• Bench and test motor battery currents



Figure 3.23: Bench and test motor battery currents in concept model

Here, bench motor battery current's steady-state value is about -193.485 A (demanded current) while test motor battery current's steady-state value is about 220.787 A (draw current).

- Generated motor torques

Figure 3.24: Bench and test motor generated torques in concept model

Here, generated bench motor torque's steady-state value is about - 39.492 Nm (negative because bench motor is braked) while generated test motor torque's steady-state value is about 39.992 Nm. Test motor generated torque is less than torque values set by user (40 Nm) due to mechanical losses inside motor, while bench motor's generated torque is less than test motor's generated torque since part of torque is used to put in rotation motor shaft interconnected to both motors.

• Bench motor mechanical and electrical parameters



Figure 3.25: Bench motor mechanical and electrical parameters in concept model

Here, bench motor's mechanical and electrical parameter trends such as mechanical power, internal invert and motor power loss, mechanical power, electrical power, motor power loss and motor power stored can be seen.

• Test motor mechanical and electrical parameters



Figure 3.26: Test motor mechanical and electrical parameters in concept model

Here, test motor's mechanical and electrical parameter trends such as *mechanical power*, *internal invert and motor power loss, mechanical power*, *electrical power*, *motor power loss and motor power stored* can be seen.

Chapter 4

System design phase: technical model

This is the first phase performed by designer during which user requirements must be carefully analyzed in order to find the best solution to implement final physical system that is able to satisfy them. Here, designer must consider technical details that are neglected by user during concept model's production, described in previous chapter, and found the most efficient solution taking also into account costs to be addressed by company. But in doing so, designer neglects details about target hardware to be used. So, during this phase, the designer, starting from concept model given by user, must build-up a technical model that is able to satisfy all user's requirements considering all technical details. For this reason, during this phase often *Technical model term* is used and *Modular Technical Model tool* is considered to realize it.

4.1 Preliminary technical model

In this thesis work, before to consider Modular-Technical-Model, a preliminary technical model has been created to understand whether what is asked by the user is feasible or not and whether all his requirements can be satisfied.

4.1.1 Some preliminary modification of concept model

First of all, concept model has been modified in such a way that what is asked by user is clearly visible. For this reason, modifications shown in figure 4.1 have been done in concept model provided by user.

SYSTEM DESIGN PHASE: TECHNICAL MODEL



Figure 4.1: Preliminary technical model

Here, part highlighted in violet on the right part of model (figure 4.2) is added and named *Control Monitors*.



Figure 4.2: Preliminary technical model's control monitors

It contains all scopes that allow to take under control all relevant bench motor parameters such as *dissipated power*, *current demanded or draw and absorbed power*; all relevant test motor parameters such as *dissipated power*, *demanded or drawn current*, *absorbed power*, *rotational speed and torque*. By means the biggest scope, reported in this new part, *power recirculating effect* can be verified since it shows total absorbed and total dissipated power trends so comparison between them is done. Moreover, an additional scope shows total demanded current.

Then, a new power supply with respect to concept model has been implemented. This because, instead of considering the same electric motor both in bench and test motor case, like happens in concept model, two different electric motor have been considered which are characterized by an own voltage power supply value. This time in fact, *Sitem motor* has been considered for bench motor which is provided by its own inverter requiring a 96 V DC voltage supply while *SME motor* has been considered for test motor that, like Sitem motor, is provided by its own inverter requiring a 66 V DC voltage supply.

This, for sure, implies that also MATLAB script, provided by user, needs to be upgraded defining all SME motor's mechanical and electrical data. In figure 4.3 upgraded MATLAB scrip is shown.



Figure 4.3: Preliminary technical model's MATLAB script

For obtaining desired parameter trends, MATLAB script shown in previous figure must be run before to run Simulink model. Once MATLAB script is run, a simulation time must be defined in Simulink model in order to decide how many time simulation must last. Below results are listed.



• Bench motor dissipated power $P_{d_{bm}}$

Figure 4.4: $P_{d_{bm}}$ with both motors set in single efficiency measurement

This variable, at steady-state, is approximately -2.211 kW. Its value is negative since it represents a lost power.

- bench, mdar, absorbed, power

 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0<
- Bench motor absorbed power $P_{a_{bm}}$

Figure 4.5: $P_{a_{bm}}$ with both motors set in single efficiency measurement

This variable, at steady-state, is approximately -17.55 kW. It assumes a negative value since it represents provided power.



• Bench motor demanded or drawn current I_{bm}

Figure 4.6: I_{bm} with both motors set in single efficiency measurement

At steady-state, this variable is approximately -182.785 A. Its value is negative since it represents a demanded current.

• Test motor dissipated power $P_{d_{tm}}$



Figure 4.7: $P_{d_{tm}}$ with both motors set in single efficiency measurement

This variable, at steady-state, is approximately -2.911 kW. Its value is negative since it represents a lost power.



• Test motor absorbed power $P_{a_{tm}}$

Figure 4.8: $P_{a_{tm}}$ with both motors set in single efficiency measurement

At steady-state it results to be approximately 22.92 kW. In this case, unlike bench motor absorbed power, a positive value is reached since it represents an absorbed power.

• Test motor demanded or drawn current I_{tm}



Figure 4.9: I_{tm} with both motors set in single efficiency measurement

At steady-state, it is approximately since it is a drawn 347.262 A. In this case current value assumes a positive value current.



- Motor shaft rotational speed ω



At steady-state, it results to be approximately 500 rad/s as expected since at beginning a rotational speed command of 500 rad/s has been set for piloting bench motor which is responsible to impose rotational speed to test motor.

• Test motor torque T_{tm}



Figure 4.11: T_{tm} with both motors set in single efficiency measurement

At steady-state, it results to be approximately 40 Nm as expected since at beginning a torque command of 40 Nm has been set to pilot test motor.



• Power recirculating effect

Figure 4.12: P_a , P_d with both motors set in single efficiency measurement

Here, absorbed and dissipated power are not perfectly equal to each other as expected for verifying power recirculating effect. This does not mean that effect is not verified since difference between two powers is due to motor shaft presence that, of course, requires some power that must be added to absorbed power. Indeed, absorbed power at steady-state is more or less equal to 5.372 kW while dissipated power is more or less equal to -5.122 kW.

• Total demanded current (I)



Figure 4.13: I with both motors set in single efficiency measurement

Here, the sum between bench and test motor current (Ibm and Itm) is shown. At steady- state it assumes a value equal to 164.5A.

4.1.2 Tabulated bench motor

After checking that modifications above described work properly, preliminary technical model can be modified again. This time modifications concern *bench mapped motor Simulink block* that must be tabulated. This means that bench motor must be parametrized considering its efficiency and/or dissipated power 3D maps in order to obtain interesting parameter values as close as possible to those that can be obtained in practice. This because, tabulating bench mapped motor Simulink block, it is possible to obtain a more accurate bench motor behavior during simulations. So, this modification is very important to understand technical details to be considered for implementing final physical system.

First of all, only bench mapped motor Simulink block has been tabulated while test mapped motor Simulink block has been set in single efficiency measurements. To tabulate bench mapped motor Simulink block "ICE Test Bench Upgrading For Hybrid and Electrical Powertrain" thesis is considered where all needed data are reported. Below list of all needed variables is reported.

- Vector of rotational speeds w_t [rad/s]
- Vector of maximum torque values T_t [Nm]
- Torque control time constant Tc [s]
- Vector of speed for tabulated losses w_eff_bp [rad/s]
- Vector of torques for tabulated losses T_eff_bp [Nm]
- Corresponding efficiency efficiency_table [%]
- Corresponding losses losses_table [W]

To find these parameters, bench mapped motor Simulink block's block parameters window has to be opened by clicking two times on block. Once, window is opened two possible subsections can be selected: *Electrical Torque* and *Electrical Losses*.

Considering Electrical Torque section, "*Tabulated torque-speed envelope*" from drop-down menu can be selected in order to define parametrization way for bench mapped motor Simulink block. Doing this, the three above listed parameters must be defined.

SYSTEM DESIGN PHASE: TECHNICAL MODEL



Figure 4.14: Electrical torque section of bench motor block parameters'window

• Vector of rotational speeds w_t [rad/s]

It is a vector to be defined in MATLAB script considering rotational speed values that can be used for permissible steady-state operation. Values reported in this vector have to be defined in rad/s.

• Vector of maximum torque values T_t [Nm]

It is a vector to be defined in MATLAB script considering maximum torque values that can be used for permissible steady-state operation. Here, torque value must be defined in Nm.

• Torque control time constant Tc [s]

It represents time constant defining seconds used by motor driver for tracking a torque demand.

To define w_t and T_t vectors, maximum torque and maximum power's graph must be considered form which rotational speed and torque values reported in table 4.1 can be read.



Figure 4.15: Bench motor maximum torque and power curves

Speed $[rad/s]$	Torque $[Nm]$
52.4	52.5
104.7	52.5
157.1	52.5
209.4	52.5
261.8	52.5
314.2	52.5
366.5	52.5
418.9	52.5
471.2	47
523.6	42
575.9	38
628.3	35

Table 4.1: Bench motor maximum torque values reachable at steady-state

At this point two vectors can be defined on MATLAB script, shown in figure 4.16, where w_t vector is defined as w_t _vec_bench while T_t vector is defined as T_t _vec_bench. In addition among all other bench motor parameters, torque control time constant T_c is defined as tau_m _bench.

1	ATechnical model
2 -	
3 -	clear all
4 -	close all
5	
6	5% Bench_motor
7	% Electrical Torque – Nominal & Maximal
8 -	w_n_bench= 4000 /60*2*p1;
9 -	T_m_n_bench = 28;
10 -	eta_n_bench = 0.91 *100; %@ w_n & T_m_n
11 -	P_m_n_bench = w_n_bench * T_m_n_bench
12 -	T_m_max_bench = 55;
13 -	P_m_max_bench = w_n_bench * T_m_max_bench *1.1
14 -	w_max_bench=w_n_bench*1.1;
15 -	tau_m_bench= 0.02;
16	% Electrical Losses - Single Efficiency
17 -	Pl_iron_bench= 0; %IPM
18 -	Pl_eln_bench= 100;
19 -	Pl_copper_n_bench= (1-eta_n_bench/100)*P_m_n_bench -Pl_eln_bench -Pl_iron_bench
20 -	k_T_bench= Pl_copper_n_bench /T_m_n_bench^2
21	% Mechanical
22 -	J_m_bench= .005e-3;
23 -	beta_m_bench= 1e-5;
24	
25 -	i_max_bench=T_m_max_bench/k_T_bench;
26	
27	10 Tabulated_bench_motor
28	
29	%Electrical_torque_section
30 -	w_t_vec_bench=[52.3599 104.7198 157.0796 209.4395 261.7994 314.1593 366.5191 418.8790 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.3185]; %rad/s
31 -	T_t_vec_bench=[52.5 52.5 52.5 52.5 52.5 52.5 52.5 52.5

Figure 4.16: Bench motor electrical torque section's MATLAB script

Instead considering *Electrical Losses section* of block parameters window, two different ways for parameterizing losses can be chosen: *Tabulated loss data* and *Tabulated efficiency data*. The first way is used when bench motor's dissipated power 3D map is considered to parametrize mapped motor Simulink block while the second way is used when bench motor's efficiency 3D map is considered.

Selecting *Tabulated loss data* way, only three of previous listed parameters must be defined in MATLAB script.

SYSTEM DESIGN PHASE: TECHNICAL MODEL

Block Parameters: Bench Motor						
MappedMotor (mask) (link)						
Implements a mapped motor and drive electronics operating in torque-control mode. Specify electrical torque range with a torque-specie envelope or maximum motor power and torque. Output torque tracks a torque reference demand and includes a motor and drive response time constant. Specify electrical losses as a single operating point that estimates loss across the operating range, measured loss, or measured efficiency.						
Block Options						
Port configuration: Speed						
Calibrate Maps						
Parameters						
Electrical Torque Electrical Losses						
Parameterize losses by: Tabulated loss data						
Vector of speeds (w) for tabulated losses, w_eff_bp [rad/s]:						
w_eff_bp_vec :						
Vector of torques (T) for tabulated losses, T_eff_bp [Nm]:						
T_eff_bp_vec :						
Corresponding losses, losses_table [W]:						
losses_table :						
OK Cancel Help Apply						

Figure 4.17: Bench motor electrical losses section in tabulated loss data way

• Vector of speed for tabulated losses w_eff_bp [rad/s]

It is a vector to be defined in MATLAB script considering rotational speed values that must be taken into care as rotational speed breakpoints for lookup table used for calculating losses. Here, rotational speed values must be defined in rad/s.

• Vector of torques for tabulated losses T_eff_bp [Nm]

It is a vector to be defined in MATLAB script considering torque values that must be taken into care as torque breakpoints for lookup table used for determining losses. Here, torque values must be defined in Nm.

• Corresponding losses losses_table [W]

It is a matrix containing electrical losses values as function of rotational speed values defined in w_eff_bp vector and torque values defined in T_eff_bp vector. This matrix must be constituted of a number of raw equal to w_eff_bp vector elements and a number of columns equal to T_eff_bp vector elements. Electrical losses values in this matrix must be defined in W.

For defining these three variables, dissipated power map shown in figure 4.18 must be considered.

Dissipated Power Map [W]									
T [Nm]									
26.9	712.5	801.2	1299.9	1407.6	1013.4				
20.9	468.1	701.4	1005.9	1056.4	1204.9	864.7			
15.2	304.9	350.5	693.4	556.3	813.2	732.2			
13.8	126.8	223.6	311.4	351.7	395.7	458.9			
11.4	151.9	223.7	311.2	434.4	572.9	545.2	490.3		
4.3	85.1	133.4	104.8	240.7	244.1	342.5	466.8	432.3	
2.4	52. 4	115.1	155.1	175.3	200.1	22 4.1	240.1	260.3	
	1000	2000	3000	3500	4000	4500	5000	6000	
[RPM]									

Figure 4.18: Bench motor's dissipated power map

Considering this map, MATLAB script must be upgraded as below shown where w_eff_bp vector is defined as $w_eff_bp_vec_bench$, T_eff_bp vector is defined as $T_eff_bp_vec_bench$ and losses_table is defined as losses_table_bench.



Figure 4.19: MATLAB script with bench motor's dissipated power map

Selecting *Tabulated efficiency data* way, the only thing that changes with respect to previous case is related to the fact that instead of considering bench motor's power losses matrix, efficiency matrix is considered. In this case, block parameters' window is the one shown in figure 4.20.

ppedMotor (mask	;) (link)
plements a mapp becify electrical to rque. Output torqu sponse time cons ss across the oper	ed motor and drive electronics operating in torque-control mode. Irque range with a torque-speed envelope or maximum motor power ar ue tracks a torque reference demand and includes a motor and drive tant. Specify electrical losses as a single operating point that estimate rating range, measured loss, or measured efficiency.
ock Options	
ort configuration:	Speed
rameters	
	Electrical Torque Electrical Losses
Parameterize losse	es by: Tabulated efficiency data
Vector of speeds ((w) for tabulated losses, w_eff_bp [rad/s]:
w_eff_bp_vec_be	ench
Vector of torques	(T) for tabulated losses, T_eff_bp [Nm]:
T_eff_bp_vec_be	nch
Corresponding eff	iciency, efficiency_table [%]:
efficiency_table_l	bench
	permetrica in tappo celly electrical to rque. Output torque ss across the open ck Options ort configuration: ameters earameterize lossi rector of speeds (w_eff_bp_vec_be rector of torques T_eff_bp_vec_be corresponding eff efficiency_table_

Figure 4.20: Bench motor's electrical losses section in tabulated efficiency data way

Here, the same variables described in previous case appears (w_eff_bp and T_eff _bp) but instead of having losses_table, *efficiency table* must be defined.

• Corresponding efficiency (efficiency_table) [%]

It is a matrix containing efficiency values as function of rotational speed values defined in w_eff_bp vector and torque values defined in T_eff_bp vector. This matrix must be constituted of a number of raw equal to number of w_eff_bp vector elements and a number of columns equal to T_eff_bp vector elements. Efficiency values in this matrix must be defined in %.

T_eff_bp and w_eff_bp vectors are defined as described in previous case while efficiency matrix is defined considering bench motor's efficiency map (figure 4.21). Taking into care this map, MATLAB script must be upgraded defining *efficiency_table variable*. This is done as shown in figure 4.22 where that variable is defined as *efficiency_table_bench*.

Efficiency Map [%]								
T [Nm]								
26.9	84.5 %	89.2 %	91.2 %	91.6 %	91.9 %			
20.9	82.6 %	86.2 %	86.7 %	87.8 %	88.1 %	92.4 %		
15.2	84.5 %	90.2 %	87.3 %	90.9 %	88.7 %	90.3 %		
13.8	91.9 %	92.2 %	93.3 %	93.5 %	93.5 %	93.2 %		
11.4	88.0 %	90.5 %	90.9 %	89.3 %	88.1 %	89.2 %	91.8 %	
4.3	85.8 %	88.4 %	93.1 %	87.4 %	88.8 %	88.1 %	87.1 %	85.2 %
2.4	82.8 %	79.6 %	80.2 %	80.3 %	80.2 %	78.9 %	79.5 %	78.7 %
	1000	2000	3000	3500	4000	4500	5000	6000
				[RPM]				

Figure 4.21: Bench motor's efficiency map



Figure 4.22: MATLAB script with bench motor's efficiency map

Here, on the right bottom part also SME motor's mechanical and electrical parameters are defined. Once it is run, simulation time must be set in Simulink model and bench motor's parameterization way both for electrical torque and electrical losses section must be selected as before described. Selecting *Tabulated loss data* as losses' parametrization way in *Electrical Losses section* of bench motor parameters' window, results below shown have been obtained.



• Bench motor dissipated power $(P_{d_{bm}})$

Figure 4.23: $P_{d_{bm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated loss data

At steady-state, it is approximately -2 kW. Its value has negative sign since it represents lost power and it assumes smaller value with respect to the case where both mapped motor Simulink blocks are set in single efficiency measurements (-2.211 kW as shown in figure 4.4)

• Bench motor absorbed power $(P_{a_{bm}})$



Figure 4.24: $P_{a_{bm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated loss data

At steady-state, it results to be approximately -17.75 kW. It assumes exactly the same value obtained in case where both mapped motor Simulink blocks are set in single efficiency measurements and its negative sign means that bench motor provides power.



• Bench motor demanded or drawn current (I_{bm})

Figure 4.25: I_{bm} with bench motor set in tabulated loss data

At steady-state, this variable is approximately -184.941 A. Its value is negative since it represents a demanded current and it is bigger than the value obtained in case where both mapped motor Simulink blocks are set in single efficiency measurements (-182.785 A as shown in figure 4.6).

Test motor dissipated power $(P_{d_{tm}})$

•



Figure 4.26: $P_{d_{tm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated loss data

At steady-state, it results to be approximately -2.901 kW. Its value is negative since it represents lost power and it assumes smaller value than that obtained in case where both mapped motor Simulink blocks are set in single efficiency measurements (-2.911 kW as shown in figure 4.7)



• Test motor absorbed power $(P_{a_{tm}})$

Figure 4.27: $P_{a_{tm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated loss data

At steady-state, it assumes exactly the same value measured in case where both mapped motor Simulink blocks are set in single efficiency measurements, 22.92 kW. In this case, unlike bench motor absorbed power, it assumes a positive value since it represents absorbed power instead of provided power.

• Test motor demanded or drawn current (I_{tm})



Figure 4.28: I_{tm} with bench motor set in tabulated loss data

At steady-state, this variable is approximately 347.178A. Here, unlike bench motor current's case, current value assumes a positive value since it represents drawn current and it is a bit smaller that the value obtained in case where both mapped motor Simulink blocks are in in single efficiency measurements (347.262 A as shown in figure 4.9)



• Motor shaft rotational speed ω

Figure 4.29: ω with bench motor set in tabulated loss data

Here, like the case in which both mapped motor Simulink blocks are set in single efficiency measurements, at steady state rotational speed value assumes exactly the same value of rotational speed command, set at beginning, that is chosen to pilot bench motor (500 rad/s), responsible to brake and impose rotational speed to test motor connected to it

Test motor torque T_{tm}

•



Figure 4.30: T_{tm} with bench motor set in tabulated loss data

Also in this case, like the case where both mapped motor Simulink blocks are set in single efficiency measurements, at steady state torque value measured at the output of test motor assumes exactly the same value of torque command set at beginning to pilot test motor, 40 Nm. • Power recirculating effect



Figure 4.31: P_a , P_d with bench motor set in tabulated loss data

Here, like the case where both mapped motor Simulink blocks are set in single efficiency measurement, absorbed and dissipated power are not perfectly equal to each other as expected. This, due to motor shaft presence that, of course, requires some power that must be added to motors' absorbed power. Indeed, at steady state absorbed power results to be about 5.159 kW while dissipated power is about -4.909 kW. In this case, both powers assume smaller value with respect to case where both mapped motor Simulink blocks are set in single efficiency measurements (5.371 kW and -5.121 kW as shown in figure 4.12).

• Total demanded current (I)



Figure 4.32: I with bench motor set in tabulated loss data

This graph shows the sum between bench and test motor's current from which its steady- state value can be read (about 162.2 A). Comparing this value with that obtained in case where both mapped motor Simulink blocks are set in single efficiency measurement a difference can be observed since this time total demanded current assumes smaller value with respect to previous case (about 164.5 A). Instead, setting bench mapped motor Simulink block considering *Tabulated efficiency data* as losses parameterization way in parameters window's Electric Losses section and performing Simulink simulation choosing the same simulation time considered for performing simulation in case where only bench mapped motor Simulink blocks is set in tabulated losses (100 s), results shown in following figures have been obtained that can be compared to those obtained in previous case.

• Bench motor dissipated power $(P_{d_{bm}})$



Figure 4.33: $P_{d_{bm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it results to be approximately -2.017 kW. Also in this case, it assumes negative sign since it represents dissipated power and it is more or less equal to value obtained in case where only bench motor is set in tabulated loss data (-2 kW as shown in figure 4.23)



• Bench motor absorbed power $(P_{a_{bm}})$

Figure 4.34: $P_{a_{bm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it assumes a negative sign approximately equal to -17.74 kW which means it represents bench motor's provided power. Its value is more or less equal to that obtained in case where only bench mapped motor is set in tabulated loss data (-17.75 kW as shown in figure 4.24)

• Bench motor demanded or drawn current (I_{bm})



Figure 4.35: I_{bm} with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it is approximately -184.759 A that is a bit smaller that value obtained in case where only bench mapped motor is set in tabulated loss data (-184.941 A as shown in figure 4.25). Its negative sign means that it represents demanded current.

Figure 4.36: $P_{d_{tm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data

Here, at steady-state variable results to be approximately -2.909 kW, so it is very similar to value obtained in case where only bench mapped motor Simulink blocks is set in tabulated loss data (-2.901 kW as shown in figure 4.26). Its negative sign means that it is lost power.

• Test motor absorbed power $(P_{a_{tm}})$

• Test motor dissipated power $(P_{d_{tm}})$



Figure 4.37: $P_{a_{tm}}$ with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it is approximately 22.91 kW, so it results to be equal to value obtained in case where only bench mapped motor Simulink block is set in tabulated loss data. In this case, unlike bench motor absorbed power, its value is positive since it represents absorbed power instead of provided power.



• Test motor demanded or drawn current (I_{tm})

Figure 4.38: I_{tm} with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it results to be approximately 347.178A like value obtained in case where only bench motor is set in tabulated loss data. In this case, unlike bench motor case, current value assumes a positive value since it represents drawn current instead of demanded current.

• Motor shaft rotational speed ω



Figure 4.39: ω with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it assumes the expected value 500 rad/s that results to be equal to rotational speed command set at beginning to pilot bench motor that is responsible to impose rotational speed value to test motor. • Test motor torque T_{tm}



Figure 4.40: T_{tm} with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it reaches desired value that is equal to torque command value set at beginning by user to pilot motor under test, 40 Nm.

• Power recirculating effect



Figure 4.41: P_a , P_d with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data

Here, like previous case where bench mapped motor Simulink block is set in tabulated loss data, absorbed and dissipated power steady-state values are not perfectly equal between them as expected. This, due to motor shaft presence which requires power that must be added to motors' absorbed power. This time absorbed power at steady-state assumes is more or less equal to 5.177 kW, a bit bigger than value obtained in case where only bench mapped motor Simulink model is set in tabulated loss data (5.159 kW), like also happens in dissipated power case indeed here it assumes a value of -4.927 kW while in previous case it is more or less equal to 4.909 kW. • Total demanded current (I)



Figure 4.42: I with bench motor set in tabulated efficiency data

Here, the sum between bench and test motor phase current (Ibm, Itm) is shown. At steady- state it assumes a value more or less equal to that obtained in case where only bench motor is set in tabulated loss data. Indeed, here it is approximately 162.4A while in the other case it is about 162.2 A.

4.1.3 Tabulated bench and test motor

Once model with only bench mapped motor Simulink block sets in tabulated loss data is tested and validated, next step can be performed. Here, test mapped motor Simulink block has to be tabulated by using the same procedure adopted for bench mapped motor Simulink block. So, also in this case the two parameters window's section must be considered: *Electrical* Torque and Electrical Losses. In the first section only one parameterization way can be chosen while in the second section two different parameterization way can be chosen. Indeed, opening test mapped motor Simulink block and selecting Electrical Torque section, only Tabulated torque-speed envelope can be chosen as parameterization way from drop-down menu while considering Electrical Losses section two different options can be chosen as parameterization way: Tabulated loss data in case test motor's dissipated power map is chosen or *Tabulated efficiency data* in case test motor's efficiency map is chosen. Each section is characterized by different variables to be defined in MATLAB script as described in bench motor's tabulation case. So, corresponding MATLAB script to be run for starting Simulink simulation is the one shown in figure 4.43.
SYSTEM DESIGN PHASE: TECHNICAL MODEL



Figure 4.43: MATLAB script with tabulated bench and test motor

Here, all needed variables to parametrize Simulink model blocks are defined so that, once it is run, they are loaded into workspace and Simulink blocks can use them during simulation. In this MATLAB script, besides to find needed variables to parametrize bench mapped motor Simulink block, all needed variables to parameterize test mapped motor Simulink block are defined. Indeed, variables below listed must be added.

- $w_t_vc_tst$, added to define w_t vector for test motor
- *T*_*t*_*vec*_*test*, added to define *T*_*t* vector for test motor
- tau_m_test, added to define Tc constant for test motor
- $w_eff_bp_vec_test$, added to define w_eff_bp vector for test motor
- T_eff_bp_vec_test, added to define T_eff_vec vector for test motor
- *loss_table_test*, added to define test motor *losses_table*
- *efficiency_table_test*, added to define test motor *efficiency_table*

Before to start Simulink simulation, simulation time must be defined in order to decide how many time simulation must last to evaluate parameter trends. To obtain trend easily comparable with the ones obtained in previous cases, it is set equal to 100s, like previous cases. Moreover, bench and test mapped motor Simulink blocks must be set in proper way in order to tabulate them. For this reason, first of all *Tabulated torque-speed envelope* parameterization way from electrical torque section and *Tabulated loss data* or *Tabulated efficiency data* parameterization way from electrical losses section must be chosen in order to parametrize both bench and test mapped motor Simulink block considering either their dissipated power maps or their efficiency maps.

In case user decides to consider dissipated power maps to parametrize both mapped motor Simulink blocks, Tabulated loss data parameterization has to be selected from electrical losses section of block parameters' window. At that point running Simulink model, parameter trends below shown are obtained.

- Bench motor dissipated power $(P_{d_{hm}})$

Figure 4.44: $\mathbf{P}_{d_{bm}}$ with both motors set in tabulated loss data

At steady-state, it results to be approximately -2 kW. It reaches that value assuming the same trend obtained in case where only bench mapped motor Simulink model is set in tabulated loss data (figure 4.23). Its value has negative sign since it represents dissipated power.

- Bench motor absorbed power $(P_{a_{bm}})$

Figure 4.45: $P_{a_{bm}}$ with both motors set in tabulated loss data

At steady-state, it assumes a value more or less equal to -17.75 kW that results to be exactly equal to value obtained in case where only bench mapped motor Simulink block is set in tabulated loss data (figure 4.24). Its negative value means that it represents provided power.

• Bench motor demanded or drawn current (I_{bm})



Figure 4.46: I_{bm} with both motors set in tabulated loss data

At steady-state, it is about -184.947 A. Its negative sign means that it represents demanded current and its value is very similar to that reached in case where only bench mapped motor Simulink block is set in tabulated loss data (-184.941 A as shown in figure 4.25).



• Test motor dissipated power $(P_{d_{tm}})$

Figure 4.47: $P_{d_{tm}}$ with both motors set in tabulated loss data

At steady-state, it results to be approximately -1.481 kW which means that it is smaller than value obtained in all other cases. Its negative sign means that it represents lost power.

• Test motor absorbed power $(P_{a_{tm}})$



Figure 4.48: $P_{a_{tm}}$ with both motors set in tabulated loss data

At steady-state, it assumes a value approximately equal to 21.49 kW, smaller than those obtained in previous cases. In this case, unlike bench motor absorbed power, it assumes a positive sign since it represents absorbed power instead of provided power.



• Test motor demanded or drawn current (I_{tm})

Figure 4.49: I_{tm} with both motors set in tabulated loss data

At steady-state, it assumes a value approximately equal to 325.542 A, smaller than steady-state values obtained in other cases. In this case, unlike bench motor case, current value assumes positive sign since it represents drawn current instead of demanded current.

• Motor shaft rotational speed ω



Figure 4.50: ω with both motors set in tabulated loss data

At steady-state, is approximately equal to desired value (500 rad/s) that corresponds to rotational speed's command set at beginning by user to pilot bench motot which is responsible to impose rotational speed to test motor.

• Test motor torque T_{tm}



Figure 4.51: T_{tm} with both motors set in tabulated loss data

At steady-state, it assumes desired value (40 Nm) which corresponds to torque value's command set at beginning by user to pilot test motor is approximately 40 Nm.

• Power recirculating effect

Figure 4.52: P_a , P_d with both motors set in tabulated loss data

Here, like all cases previously analyzed, absorbed and dissipated power steady-state values are not perfectly equal between them, as expected. This due to motor shaft presence which absorbs power that must be added to motors' absorbed power. This time absorbed power at steady-state is about 3.731 kW, while dissipated power steady-state value is about -3.481 kW. Both are smaller that values obtained in previous cases.

• Total demanded current (I)

Figure 4.53: I with both motors set in tabulated loss data

Here, sum between bench and test motor current (Ibm, Itm) is shown. At steady-state it is about 140.6A, smaller than steady-state values obtained in all other cases.

Instead, in case where user decides to parametrize bench and test mapped motor Simulink blocks considering their efficiency maps, Tabulated efficiency data parameterization way from electrical losses section must be chosen. Doing this and performing Simulink simulation setting the same simulation time considered in previous cases, parameters trends below shown have been obtained that can be compared to those obtained in previous cases.

• Bench motor dissipated power $(P_{d_{bm}})$



Figure 4.54: $\mathbf{P}_{d_{bm}}$ with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it results to be approximately -2.017 kW which is the

same value obtained in case where only bench mapped motor Simulink block is tabulated in efficiency data (figure 4.33). Its negative sign means that it represents dissipated power.

• Bench motor absorbed power $(P_{a_{bm}})$



Figure 4.55: $P_{a_{bm}}$ with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it assumes the same value obtained in case where only bench mapped motor Simulink block is tabulated in tabulated efficiency data (figure 4.34), about -17.74 kW. Its negative value means that it represents provided power.

• Bench motor demanded or drawn current (I_{bm})



Figure 4.56: I_{bm} with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it is approximately equal to -184.765 A which means that it is perfectly equal to value obtained in case where only bench mapped Simulink block is set in tabulated efficiency data (figure 4.35). Its negative sign means that it represents demanded current.



• Test motor dissipated power $(P_{d_{tm}})$

Figure 4.57: $P_{d_{tm}}$ with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it assumes bigger value than those obtained in previous cases, about -1.801 kW. Its negative value means that it is lost power.

Test motor absorbed power $(P_{a_{tm}})$ •



Figure 4.58: $P_{a_{tm}}$ with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it reaches smaller value with respect to those obtained in previous cases but at the same time reached value is bigger than that obtained in case where both mapped motor Simulink blocks are set in tabulated loss data, about 21.81 kW. Here, unlike bench motor case, absorbed power assumes positive sign since it represents absorbed power and not provided power.



• Test motor demanded or drawn current (I_{tm})

Figure 4.59: I_{tm} with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it is approximately equal to 330.399 A, smaller than those obtained in previous cases but at the same time it is bigger than value obtained in case where both motors are set in tabulated loss data. Here, unlike bench motor's phase current case, current value assumes positive sign since it represents drawn current.

• Motor shaft rotational speed ω



Figure 4.60: ω with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it assumes desired rotational speed value, 500 rad/s which represents rotational speed command's value set at beginning by user to pilot bench motor that is responsible to impose rotational speed to test motor.

• Test motor torque T_{tm}



Figure 4.61: T_{tm} with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data

At steady-state, it assumes desired torque value since it results to be more or less equal to torque value command set at beginning by user to pilot motor under test, approximately 40 Nm.

• Power recirculating effect



Figure 4.62: P_a , P_d with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data

Here, the sum between bench and test motor's phase current (Ibm, Itm) is shown. At steady- state its value is approximately equal to 145.6A, smaller than those obtained in all other cases but, at the same time it is bigger than value obtained in case where both mapped motor Simulink blocks are set in tabulated loss data.

• Total demanded current (I)



Figure 4.63: I with both motors set in tabulated efficiency data

Here, sum between bench and test motor phase current (Ibm, Itm) is shown. At steady- state its value is approximately equal to 145.6A, smaller than steady-state values obtained in all other cases whose simulation results are reported in previous subsections but, at the same time, it is bigger than steady-state value obtained in case where both motors are set in tabulated loss data.

4.2 Modular Technical model

Once preliminary technical model, described in previous subsections, is completed in order to highlight in a better way user requirements, modular technical model tool can be adopted to simplify electrical motor's test bench development. This because, MTM tool allows to subdivide development in modules that can be developed by different designers and/or teams with different skills in order to reduce development time and in turns costs to be addressed. This is what happens from one hand but in the other hand MTM tool requires designers/teams' higher efforts since each module must be developed in such a way that it is able to communicate with other modules, so they need to be constituted of specific interfaces that allow communication to other modules. During this thesis work to build modular technical model, Simulink template shown in figure 4.64 has been adopted. Here, five modules can be distinguished: Environment, Plant, Control, Human-Machine Interface, User. Some of these modules such as Environment, Plant and Control must be implemented as r *eference models*, models that are able to work independently from other ones, while other modules such as Human-Machine

Interface and User must be implemented as *subsystems*, models that allows to arrange in a better way different system parts in order to obtain a more intelligible model.



Figure 4.64: MTM Simulink template

4.2.1 Environment reference model

This module allows to implement noises, disturbances and loads coming from external ambient which, for sure, influence plant's behavior so they have to be considered for obtaining more realistic results from Simulink simulation. In this case, this module includes noises' model that influence sensors used in plant to measure interesting parameters such as rotational speed, torque and current. In figure 4.65 model implemented inside this module is shown.



Figure 4.65: Environment's reference model

Here, noises are modeled using signal generator Simulink blocks that need different parameters to be parametrized. To know needed parameters to be defined in MATLAB script a double click on Simulink block is sufficient so that block parameters' window opens (figure 4.66).

Block Parameters: Torque sensor noise	
Signal Generator	
Output various wave forms: Y(t) = Amp*Waveform(Freq, t)	
Parameters	
Wave form: square	
Time (t): Use simulation time	0
Amplitude:	
0.05	:
Frequency:	
1/(1e-4)	:
Units: Hertz	٢
✓ Interpret vector parameters as 1-D	
OK Cancel Help	Apply

Figure 4.66: Torque sensor noise's block parameters window

In this case, square and Use simulation time from "wave form" and "time" drop-down menus are chosen such that signal generator signal Simulink blocks implement a square wave that lasts for all simulation time. Then, other parameters such as amplitude and frequency have to be defined in order to implement signals with desired characteristics. These parameters are defined considering sensor's datasheets below reported.

3 Dati tecnici						Coppia nominale M _{nom}	N∙m	50	100	200	50
13.1 Copp	ia nomir	nale da	50 N	ma		Influenza della temperatura, ogni 10 K, nel campo nominale di tempera- tura					
500 N	ŀm					sul segnale di uscita, riferita al valore effettivo dell'estensione del segnale					
Classe di precisione		0.1		0.05		Uscita in frequenza	%	±0,1		±0,05	
Sistema di misura della Coppia						Uscita in tensione	%	±0,4		±0,2	
Coppia nominale M _{nom}	N∙m	50	100	200	500	sul segnale di zero, riferita alla sensibi- lità nominale					
Velocità nominale di rotazione	min ⁻¹		200	00		Uscita in frequenza	%	±0.1		±0.05	
Velocità nominale, opzionale	min ⁻¹		24000		22000	Uscita in tensione	%	±0.2		±0.1	
Deviazione della linearità, isteresi compresa, riferita alla sensibilità nominale						Sensibilità nominale (campo fra la coppia = Zero e la cop- pia nominale)					
Uscita in frequenza per coppia massima nel campo:					Uscita in frequenza 10 kHz / 60 kHz / 240 kHz	kHz		5/30	120		
0 % di M _{nom} e 20 % di M _{nom}	%	<±0,01			Uscita in tensione	v	10				
> 20 % di M _{nom} e 60 % di M _{nom}	%		<±0,02			Tolleranza della sensibilità					
> 60 % di M _{nom} e 100 % di M _{nom} Uscita in tensione per connia massima pel campo:	%		<±0	,03		(deviazione fra la grandezza di uscita effettiva a M _{nom} e la sensibilità nomi- nale)					
0 % di Maam e 20 % di Maam	%		<±0	.01		Uscita in frequenza	%		±0,	1	
> 20 % di Maam e 60 % di Maam	%		<±0	.02		Uscita in tensione	%		±0,	1	
> 60% di Moom e 100% di Moom	%		<±0	.03		Segnale di uscita per coppia = Zero					
Deviazione relativa standard della						Uscita in frequenza	kHz		10 / 60	/ 240	
ripetibilità, secondo DIN 1319, riferita alla variazione del segnale di uscita						Uscita in tensione	v		0		
- Uscita in frequenza	%		<±0	,03							
Uscita in tensione	%		<±0	.03							

• Torque sensor HBM T40B

Figure 4.67: Torque sensor HGM T40B datasheet

Here, accuracy section must be considered to obtain amplitude value. Since to implement final built-up electrical motor test bench, a torque sensor whit 500 Nm nominal torque is needed an accuracy of 0.05 must be selected. Instead, to obtain frequency value to be set, datasheet's output frequency section must be considered where 10 kHz value can be read and set in MATLAB script.

• Current sensor DHR 300 C420



Figure 4.68: Current sensor DHR 300 C420 datasheet

Here, accuracy sensor is declared to be smaller than $\pm 1\%$ of rated current and since current sensor with 300A rated current has to be considered to build-up final physical system, accuracy's value to be considered for modelling sensor is ± 3 A. Instead, frequency is declared between 20 and 6000 Hz and since to model sensor it is better to consider the worst case a frequency of 6kHz has been considered. • Round per minute measurement system



Figure 4.69: Round per minute measurement system datasheet

In "ICE Test Bench Upgrading For Hybrid and Electrical Powertrain" thesis, accuracy of this system is declared to be equal to +-1rpm. For this reason, corresponding signal generator amplitude is set equal to 1. Instead, for frequency value 10 kHz is chosen in order to have a disturbance that changes its value quickly.

In figure 4.70 corresponding MATLAB script is shown where all needed variables to parametrize signal generator Simulink blocks implemented inside Environment reference model are defined.

SYSTEM DESIGN PHASE: TECHNICAL MODEL

	Environment Data	Move here to reveal toolstrip	
	Define the parameters related to the Environment.		
1	% Environment actions		
2 3 4 5	<pre>%torque_sensor_noise amplitude_T_noise=0.05; frequency T noise=1/(1e-4);</pre>		
6 7	%current_sensor_noise		
9 10	frequency_I_noise=6000;		
11 12 13	<pre>%rpm_measurement_system_noise amplitude_w_noise=1; frequency_w_noise=1/(1e-4);</pre>		

Figure 4.70: Environment reference model's MATLAB script

4.2.2 Plant reference model

This module is implemented as reference model so that it is able to work independently from rest parts. Here, plant's model to be controlled is implemented which is constituted of two mapped motor Simulink blocks connected each other by means motor shaft and sensors used to measure interesting parameters during testing. Implemented model inside Plant reference model is shown in figure 4.71.



Figure 4.71: Plant reference model

On the left model's side, three different inputs are modelled that represent interface through which plant is able to communicate to other parts (refence model or subsystem) such as Environment, Control and User.

• first input

It represents interface by means plant is able to communicate to Environment reference model, before described. From it, plant receives noise signals characterizing adopted sensors whose models are implemented on the right part. • second input

It represents interface by means plant is able to communicate to user subsystem but, since in this case user and plant do not exchange signals each other they are connected each other through which a discrete delay Simulink block that allows to avoid algebraic loop errors during simulations.

• third input

It represents interface by means plant is able to communicate to Control reference model. From it, plant receives below listed signals.

- bench motor torque command signal

It represents used signal to pilot bench motor coming out form control law implemented inside *Control Logic refence model* (analyzed in subsection 4.2.3.1) that is able to evaluate this signal on the basis of rotational speed value set at beginning by user and on the basis of rotational speed value coming from feedback path.

- test motor torque command signal

It represents used signal to pilot test motor coming out from control law implemented inside *Control Logic reference model* on the basis of initial torque value set by user.

- bench motor battery voltage signal

It represents used signal to set bench motor power supply value. Since it is a voltage signal coming out from *Control reference model* it has to be translated into voltage value to be provided to bench mapped motor Simulink block. This is done by a gain implementing a constant that multiplies voltage signal to obtain corresponding voltage value.

- Test motor battery voltage signal

It represents used signal to set test motor power supply value. Also in this case, like bench motor battery voltage signal, since it is a voltage signal coming out form *Control reference model* it has to be translated in voltage value to be provided to test mapped motor Simulink block. This is done by means a gain implemented to multiply voltage signal for obtaining corresponding voltage value.

In the middle bench and test mapped motor Simulink blocks, connected each other by means motor shaft, are implemented. They work exactly in the same way described in preliminary technical model section. Instead on the right part, two subsystems are implemented: the first one, on upper part, is dedicated to sensor models while the second one, on bottom part, is dedicated to round per minutes measurements system's model.

Opening sensor models' subsystem, scheme shown in figure 4.72 can be observed where gains, constants and sum Simulink blocks are implemented to model torque and current sensors.



Figure 4.72: Sensor models subsystem

• Torque sensor HBM T40B



Figure 4.73: Torque sensor Simulink model

Gain allows to convert torque value measured in Nm into voltage value that has to be added to disturbance coming from Environment reference model. The result of the sum goes through a saturator Simulink block that allows to set upper and down limits for voltage signal coming out from sensor. To define gain value, sensor datasheet shown in figure 4.67 has to be considered where maximum output voltage value is reported (10 V). So, k_torque gain is computed thinking that when the maximum torque value measurable by sensor is sensed the maximum voltage value is emitted. Indeed, it is computed as ratio between maximum voltage value and maximum torque value. Instead, for setting upper and lower limits by saturator Simulink blocks maximum and minimum voltage value that voltage signal can reach at the output of sensor (respectively 10V and -10V) have to be considered. • Current sensors DHR 300 C420



Figure 4.74: Current sensor's Simulink model

To implement this model, sensor datasheet has to be considered which contains implemented transfer function for measuring current. This transfer characteristic, shown in figure 4.75, allows to obtain below reported equation which must be considered to build-up sensor's model as before shown.



Figure 4.75: Current sensor's transfer characteristic

$$I_{out} = 4 + \frac{16}{300} I_{in} \tag{4.1}$$

So, $k_current\ gain$ in previous shown Simulink model is set equal to 16/300 while "current offset" constant is set equal to 4. Saturator block is implemented to limit current coming out from sensor indeed it is used to set upper limit equal to 20 mA which represents the maximum current value acceptable by sensor. The second gain (R_load) is implemented to model resistance put at sensor's output that allows to convert current signal into voltage signals. Resistance value is taken from datasheet where it is declared smaller that 300 Ω so, in MATLAB script it is defined equal to 250 Ω .

Rotational speed is measured by APICOM FR 250 RPM Measurement System, shown in figure 4.76, which is constituted of a gear wheel having sixty cogs and an rpm detector that is able to send impulse such that rpm can be evaluated by means following relation.



Figure 4.76: APICOM FR 250 RPM measurement system

In Simulink, this system is not modelled since rotational speed values are already given in rad/s, so first of all they have to be converted in rpm and then in voltage signal. To do this, scheme shown in figure 4.77 is implemented which is constituted of two gains and a sum block: the first gain allows to convert rad/s into rpm, the second one allows to convert rpm into voltage values while sum block allows to consider noise coming from Environment reference model. The value of second gain is computed as ratio between maximum admitted voltage value and maximum measurable rotational speed value.



Figure 4.77: RPM measurement system's Simulink model

Always on the right part of plant reference model, besides the two before described subsystems an output port is implemented. It represents interface by means Plant reference model communicates to Control reference model. Indeed, thanks to it Plant sends to Control below listed signals. • Bench motor battery voltage signal

It is a voltage signal used by Plant to communicate to Control reference model measured voltage value provided to bench motor.

• Test motor battery voltage signal

It represents voltage signal sent by Plant to communicate to Control reference model measured voltage value provided to test motor.

• Bench motor phase current signal

This is a voltage signal allowing Plant to communicate to Control reference model measured bench motor's phase current.

• Test motor phase current signal

It is a voltage signal by means Plant sends to Control reference model measured test motor's phase current.

• Torque signal

It is a voltage signal coming out from torque sensor that has to be sent to Control reference model.

• Rotational speed signal

It represents voltage signal coming out from round per minute measurement system that has to be sent to Control reference model.

Corresponding MATLAB script containing all needed variables to parametrize Simulink blocks implemented in Plant reference model is shown in figure 4.78.

SYSTEM DESIGN PHASE: TECHNICAL MODEL



Figure 4.78: Plant reference model's MATLAB script

4.2.3 Control interface refence model

It represents MTM's part allowing interactions between Control Logic (described in subsection 4.2.3.1) and target hardware. These interactions are allowed including device specifications without affecting control law implemented inside Control Logic reference model to control plant's behavior on the basis of what desired by user.

SYSTEM DESIGN PHASE: TECHNICAL MODEL



Figure 4.79: Control reference model

Here, on the left part two different inputs are implemented that represent interfaces allowing Control reference model to communicate to Plant and Human-Machine-Interface. Indeed, the first input allows Control to receive signals coming out from Plant such as bench and test motor battery voltage signals, bench and test motor phase current signals, torque and rotational speed signals, while the second one allows Control reference model to receive signals coming out from HMI such as emergency and on/off button signals, bench motor command signal used to pilot bench motor on the basis of rotational speed value decided by user, test motor command signal used to pilot motor under test that is evaluated on the basis of torque value decided by user, bench and test motor power supply signals that represent voltage values to be provided to mapped motor Simulink blocks. Among all these signals there are signals that enter to Control Logic reference model, positioned on the middle, and other that go directly to outputs positioned on the right part. Indeed, between all signals coming from Plant (input 1) only rotational speed signal goes to Control Logic refence model while all other go directly to output 1 that represents interface that allows Control reference model to send signals to HMI subsystem. Instead, between all signals coming from HMI (input 2) only bench and test motor power supply signals go directly to output 2 that represent interface that allows Control reference model to send signals to Plant while all other go to Control Logic reference model. In case of signals going directly to outputs discrete delay block is implemented to avoid algebraic loop errors during simulation due to the fact that signals constantly update their values. Instead in case of signals that go to Control Logic reference model, Analog to Digital Converters (ADCs) are implemented to discretize signals since Control Logic works only with digital signals. They are implemented using discrete filter and quantizer: the first one allows data averaging since sensors produce high changes in output values that is unacceptable for Control Logic inputs while the second one allows to pass from large to small values' set and to set ADCs' quantization. Quantization parameters is set by means MATLAB script on the basis of maximum voltage values entering to ADCs. Instead in Control Logic outputs, Digital to Analog Converters (DACs) are implemented since an inverse conversion is needed to be performed. This because signals coming out from Control Logic are digital and they have to be sent to plant or HMI where only analog signals are acceptable, so digital to analog conversion is needed. Also in this case, quantizer and discrete filter blocks are used but this time discrete filter is used to implement what is called reconstruct filter whose goal is reconstructing original analog signal starting from digital signal while quantizer block is used for the same reason for which it is used in ADC case. The DACs are not implemented in cases of LED signals (green and red signal) because they are sent to dashboard LEDs that work with digital signal, so in that case conversion is not needed.

Before to run Simulink reference model for performing simulation, corresponding MATLAB script has to be run. This scrip, shown in figure 4.80, contains all needed variables to parametrize Simulink blocks used to implement model.

	Control Data	Move here to reveal toolstrip
	% ADC	
158	% LP filter	
159	Ts1=1e-4;	
160	wc1=23e3*2*pi;	
161	s=tf('s');	
162	<pre>z=tf('z',Ts1);</pre>	
163	H_s1=wc1^2/(s+wc1)^2;	
164	H_z1=zpk(c2d(H_s1,Ts1,'zoh'));	
165	[NUM_LPF,DEN_LPF]=tfdata(H_z1,'v');	
166		
167	%rotational_speed_sensor	
168	Vp_w=10;	
159	N=10;	
170	quant_w=vp_w/(2 N=1);	
	Shm tracmd signal	
173	Vp bm tracmd=5:	
174	N=16:	
175	quant bm trocmd=Vp bm trocmd/(2^N-1):	
176	4	
177	%tm trgcmd signal	
178	<pre>Vp_tm_trqcmd=5;</pre>	
179	N=16;	
180	<pre>quant_tm_trqcmd=Vp_tm_trqcmd/(2^N-1);</pre>	
181		
	%bm_cmd_signal	
183	<pre>Vp_bm_command_signal=5;</pre>	
184	N=16;	
185	<pre>quant_bm_cmd_signal=Vp_bm_command_signal/(2^N-1);</pre>	
	Str. and signal	
107	Ve te ced signal=E:	
190	N=16.	
100	quant tm cmd signal=Vp tm cmd signal/(2^N-1);	
191	danic_cm_cma_bignac=vp_cm_cma_bignac(vc vv iv)	
	% DAC	
	% LP filter	
194	Ts2=1e-4;	
195	wc2=500e3*2*pi;	
196	<pre>s=tf('s');</pre>	
197	<pre>z=tf('z',Ts2);</pre>	
198	H_s2=wc2^2/(s+wc2)^2;	
199	H_z2=zpk(c2d(H_s2,Ts2,'zoh'));	
200	[NUM LPF2.DEN LPF2]=tfdata(H z2.'v');	

Figure 4.80: Control reference model's MATLAB script

4.2.3.1 Control Logic reference model

Inside this reference model, control law that controls and manages plant's behavior is implemented in such a way that user requirements are satisfied. It works only with discrete signals and manages bench and test torque commands to pilot mapped motor Simulink blocks implemented inside Plant reference model. These commands must be evaluated on the basis of rotational speed and torque values set at beginning by user.



Figure 4.81: Control logic reference Simulink model

Here, on the left part five inputs are implemented which represent interfaces by means Control Logic communicates to Control referce. Indeed, by means these inputs Control Logic receives signals coming from Control interface reference model such as rotational speed signal, emergency and on/off button signals and bench and test motor torque command signals. Instead, on the right part four outputs are implemented that allow Control Logic to send signals to Control interface such as green and red signals that must be sent to dashboard LEDs and bench and test torque command that have to be sent to Plant. In the middle four below list and described tasks are implemented using *control logic Stateflow tool* to define control law to be used by ECU to control and manage plant's behavior on the basis of what desired by user. • Emergency task



Figure 4.82: Emergency task's Simulink Stateflow

It allows user to stop system by an opportune dashboard switch in case something goes wrong during test. Here, two states are implemented: $EMERGENCY_OFF$ that represents initial state during which emergency variable is set equal to 0 and $EMERGENCY_ON$ that is responsible to set emergency variable equal to 1. To switch from initial to second state or vice versa, defined conditions over arrows connecting two states have to be verified: $em_switch == 1$ which means that switch from initial state to EMERGENCY_ON state happens when emergency dashboard switch is toggled from 0 to 1 while inverse switch happens when $em_switch == 0$ condition is verified which means that to have switch from EMERGENCY_ON to EMERGENCY_OFF emergency dashboard switch has to be toggled from 1 to 0.

• Supervisor task



Figure 4.83: Supervisor task's Simulink Stateflow

It allows the user to pilot and check system's behavior by using dashboard pushbutton and LEDs. It is constituted of below listed states.

- OFF state

It represents initial state, set at beginning when system is not working and user is not using dashboard. Thanks to this state red, green and supervisor signals are set equal to 0 and nothing happen until [button == 0]{flag = 1;} condition is verified. This means that until on/off dashboard button is not pushed by user, task state does not change and no change happens ({flag = 1;}). State's change happens when [flag == 1&duration(button ==1) > 0.01&&emergency == 0]{flag = 0;} condition is verified which means that change happens when on/off pushbutton is pushed by user for a duration greater than 0.01s and emergency switch state remains always 0. At this point some change is verified $(\{flag = 0;\})$ and task state switches from OFF to ON.

- ON state

Once task state switch in ON, red signal remains set equal to 0 while green and supervisory signals will be set equal to 1 such that green dashboard LED will switch on and *TASK BM_TrqCmd* and *TASK TM_TrqCmd* are activated. This task state can change returning in OFF or switching in EMERGENCY on the basis of what happens. Indeed, if $[(flag == 1\&\&duration(button == 1) > 0.01)]{flag = 0};$ condition is verified, task state return to OFF which means that if any variation happens and on/off dashboard button is pushed for a duration greater than 0.01s, task state switches from ON to OFF while if [*emergency* == 1] condition is verified, which means that emergency dashboard switch has to be toggled from 0 to 1, task state switches from ON to EMERGENCY. This state does not change if [*button* == 0]{*flag* = 1; condition is verified which means that task state does not change if on/off dashboard button is not pushed.

- EMERGENCY state

Once [emergency == 1] condition is verified, task state switches from ON to EMERGENCY where red signal will be set equal to 1 in order to switch on red dashboard LED and green signal will be set equal to 0 in order to switch off green dashboard LED. This task state changes when [emergency == 0] condition is verified which means that emergency dashboard switch has to be toggled from 1 to 0. At that point task state return to be OFF in which red, green and supervisory signals return to be equal to 0.

• Bench motor torque command task

BM_CONTROLLER_OFF	[supervisory==1]	BM_CONTROLLER_ON
bm_trqcmd=0;	[supervisory==0]	

Figure 4.84: BM_TrqCmd_task's Simulink stateflow

It allows to evaluate torque command to be used for piloting bench motor on the basis of user's desired rotational speed value. It is constituted of below listed states.

- BM_CONTROLLER_OFF state

It represents task state active when supervisor signal is set equal to 0, so when system does not work. In this state, bench motor torque command is set equal to 0 ($bm_trqcmd = 0$) such that bench motor is kept stopped. When [supervisory == 1] condition is verified, upervisor signal switch from 0 to 1, task state switches from $BM_CONTROLLER_OFF$ to $BM_CONTROLLER_ON$.

- BM_CONTROLLER_ON state



Figure 4.85: BM_CONTROLLER_ON state's Simulink model

This state is used once [supervisory == 1] condition is verified since at that point bench motor must be piloted by a torque command that has to be computed on the basis of user's desired rotational speed value. Here, on the left part two inputs are implemented to receive bench motor command signal (bm command __*signal*) carrying rotational speed value set by user and rotational speed signal (w) carrying rotational speed value coming from feedback path. bm command signal goes through a gain in order to convert voltage signal into rad/s signal and then it goes through discrete filter to perform data averaging since PID controller does not accept high changes in input variable. Instead, w signal goes through two gains: the first one allows conversion of voltage signal, coming out from round per minute measurement system, into rpm signal while the second one allows conversion of rpm in rad/s. Once conversions are done, the two obtained results can be added each other to obtain error that has to enter to PI controller block. On the basis of this error PI controller is able to evaluate bench motor torque control signal needed to be provided for obtaining desired rotational speed value at motor shaft's output in order to have an error equal to zero. This task state changes once [supervisory == 0] condition is verified, supervisory signal switches from 1 to 0, and at that point task state returns to BM CONTROLLER OFF state.

• Test motor torque command task

TM_CONTROLLER_OFF	[supervisory==1]	TM_CONTROLLER_ON
tm_trqcmd=0;	[supervisory==0]	
		\square

Figure 4.86: TM_TrqCmd_task's Simulink model

It allows to evaluate torque command to be used for piloting test motor on the basis of user's desired torque value. It is constituted of below listed states.

- TM_CONTROLLER_OFF state

It represents task state active when supervisor signal is set equal to 0, so when system does not work. This state sets test motor torque command equal to 0 $(tm_trqcmd=0)$ so that test motor is kept stopped. When [supervisory == 1] condition is verified, supervisor signal switches from 0 to 1, task state switches from $TM_CONTROLLER_OFF$ to $TM_CONTROLLER_ON$.

- TM_CONTROLLER_ON state



Figure 4.87: TM_CONTROLLER_ON state's Simulink

This state is considered once [supervisory == 1] condition is verified since at that point test motor has to be piloted by torque command that has to be evaluated on the basis of torque value set by user. Here, on left part a single input is implemented in order to receive test motor command signal ($tm_command_signal$) carrying torque value set by user. This is a voltage signal going through a gain in order to be converted into Nm signal that represent discrete filter's input signal such that data averaging is performed and high changes in output signal (tm_trqcmd) are avoided. This task state changes when supervisory signal is switched from 1 to 0. At that point task state return to be TM CONTROLLER OFF. Inside Control Logic model besides what before described, two different switches are implemented that allow to set equal to 0 bench and test motor torque command once emergency signal becomes equal to 1 so, when user toggles emergency dashboard switch from 0 to 1. This allows to stop system in cases something wrong happens, and it is better to stop system in order to avoid serious problem for plant elements.

To parametrize all block used for implementing this reference model, a MATLAB script containing all needed variables has to be implemented and run before to start running Simulink model.

Control Logic Data

The Control Logic must contain the control algorithm that is intended to be deployed on the target hardware

196	<pre>sampling_time=1e-2;</pre>
197	<pre>s=tf('s');</pre>
198	<pre>z=tf('z',sampling_time);</pre>
199	H_s=1/(3*s+1);
200	<pre>H_z=zpk(c2d(H_s,sampling_time,'zoh'));</pre>
201	<pre>[NUM,DEN]=tfdata(H_z,'v');</pre>
202	
203	%w_signal
204	Vp_w=10;
205	rpm_max=6000;
206	k_speed=Vp_w/rpm_max;
207	
208	%bm_cmd_signal
209	<pre>Vp_bm_cmd_signal=5;</pre>
210	<pre>bm_cmd_signal_max=6000*2*pi/60; %rad/s</pre>
211	<pre>k_bm_cmd=Vp_bm_cmd_signal/bm_cmd_signal_max;</pre>
212	
213	%tm_cmd_signal
214	<pre>Vp_tm_cmd=5; %V</pre>
215	tm_cmd_max=100; %Nm
216	<pre>k_tm_cmd=Vp_tm_cmd/tm_cmd_max;</pre>

Figure 4.88: Control Logic reference model's MATLAB script

4.2.4 Human-Machine-Interface subsystem

It allows the user to send command to plant and monitoring what happens while system works. This part is implemented as subsystem that allows to have a better elements' arrangement such that a more intelligible model is obtained. This reference model, whose scheme is shown in figure 4.89, is constituted of two inputs that represent interfaces by means HMI is able to receive signals from Control reference model and from User subsystem. Indeed, the first input allows HMI to receive height signals coming from Control reference model such as bench and test motor battery voltage signals that are connected to displays that allow user to check whether two motors are provided by right voltage value (the one set at beginning by user), bench and test phase current signals coming from current sensors, torque signal coming from torque sensor, rotational speed signal coming from rounds per minute measurement system and green and red signals connected to displays in order to allow user to check their status (1 means LED on while 0 means LED off). Instead, the second input allows HMI to receive signals from User subsystem such as bench and test motor power supply values that have to be sent to plant to set properly inverters that provide motors.



Figure 4.89: HMI's Simulink model

Here, *signal_to_parameters* subsystem is implemented to convert voltage signals coming out from Control reference model into user interesting parameters such as bench and test motor phase currents, torque and rotational speed. Inside this subsystem model shown in figure 4.90 is implemented where in the first two rows inverse relation considered in current sensor model case, below reported, is implemented that allows to compute current values starting from voltage signals coming out from current sensors. Before to apply this relation, voltage signals. For this reason, a gain whose value is defined as the inverse of current sensor's output resistance is implemented.

$$I_{in} = (I_{out} - 4) * \frac{300}{16} \tag{4.3}$$

The same thing happens in torque and rotational speed signals case since they are voltage signals coming out from torque sensor and rounds per minute measurement system that have to be converted into Nm and rpm values. These conversions are done by gains whose values are computed as ratio between maximum measurable torque and rpm values and the maxim voltage values that can be provided at the output of corresponding sensor. These values have to be defined in corresponding MATLAB script.

SYSTEM DESIGN PHASE: TECHNICAL MODEL



Figure 4.90: Signal_to_parameters subsystem Simulink model

Then, *cmd_to_signal subsystem* is implemented to convert bench and test motor commands, carrying rotational speed and torque values to be considered for piloting bench and test motors (computed by subsystems reported on bottom part of HMI's model on the basis of what is desired by user), in voltage signals to be sent to Control reference model. The same thing happens for bench and test motor power supply values. This, as shown in figure 4.91, is done by gains whose values are computed as ratio between voltage signals' peak value and the maximum reachable value of corresponding parameters (bench motor rotational speed command, test motor torque command, bench motor power supply, test motor power supply).



Figure 4.91: Cmd_to_signal subsystem's Simulink model

On right part (figure 4.89), two output ports are implemented: the first one represents interface by means HMI reference model sends signals to Control interface reference model while the second one represents interface by means HMI is able to send signals to User subsystem (in this case it is not used). Among signals sent to Control reference model there is: emergency and on/off button signals that are digital signal because they can assume either 0 or 1 as value coming out from constant blocks linked to dashboard switch and push button, bench and test motor command signals and bench and test power supply signals. Instead, on bottom part, four other subsystems are implemented by means user is able to perform a different test to test motors. This because, user requires an electrical motors' test bench by means electric motors can be tested both for a specific selected working point and for obtaining their torque curves and 3D maps (efficiency 3D map and dissipated power 3D map).

Observing Speed-Torque plane, shown in figure 4.92, different working points can be selected that can be selected by means a pair of rotational speed and torque values. User would like to have the chance to test motors in different ways: selecting a single working point, selecting a single torque value and different rotational speed values in order to consider different working points and obtaining torque curves, selecting different torque and different rotational speed values in order to cover all admissible w-T plane and obtaining 3D maps, selecting different torque values and different rotational speed values for reaching working point where motor works at nominal power which is defined by nominal rotational speed value and nominal torque value.



Figure 4.92: $\omega - T$ plane

So, different tests can be performed to evaluate test motor characteristics and for this reason inside HMI subsystem, on bottom part, four subsystems are implemented by means user can choose the test to be performed. • Single working point test

In this scenario, user must define a single torque and a single rotational speed value in order to select working point to be considered for evaluating test motor characteristics. To perform this kind of test, user must uncomment *Single_working_point subsystem* and comment out other three subsystems. This subsystem contains model shown in figure 4.93 that is constituted of two subsystems: bm_cmd3 and tm_cmd3 .



Figure 4.93: Single_working_point subsystem's Simulink model

bm_cmd3 subsystem is intended to evaluate bench motor command and it is constituted of a single input and a single output. Input represents rotational speed value set by user to pilot bench motor and it is directly connected to the output since it does not need any operation to become a bench motor command.



Figure 4.94: *bm_cmd*3 subsystem's Simulink model

Instead, *tm_cmd3 subsystem* is intended to evaluate test motor command and it is constituted of a single input representing torque value defined by user to pilot test motor and a single output representing test motor command to be sent to Control reference model after conversion in voltage signal. They are connected directly each other since input does not need any transformation to become test motor command.


Figure 4.95: tm cmd3 subsystem's Simulink model

To perform this test, user must define needed variables in corresponding MATLAB script and run it before to start simulation so that they are load on MATLAB workspace and Simulink blocks can use them to be parametrized during simulation. Before to run MATLAB script, user must define some parameters' value such as $w_increasing$ and $T_increasing$ that represents respectively rotational speed and torque values to be considered for selecting working point to be considered for performing test, T_sim representing simulation time and sample that represents sample time to be considered for storing interesting variables to be considered for computing desired motor parameters and characteristics.

Single_working_point

```
364 % bm_cm3 & tm_cmd3 blocks
365 w_increasing=3500/60*2*pi; %rad/s
366 T_increasing=20; %Nm
367 T_sim=100; %s
368
369 sample=0.1; %sample time of variables to be stored
370
```

Figure 4.96: Single working point's MATLAB script

• Nominal power working point

In this case, the goal is reaching the working point in which motor works at nominal power. This means that working point to be reached is the one corresponding to nominal rotational speed and nominal torque values that are reached increasing time by time both rotational speed and torque values. To perform this kind of test, user must uncomment *Nominal_power_working_point subsystem* and comment out other three subsystems. This subsystem contains model shown in figure 4.97 that is constituted of two subsystems: bm_ccmd2 and tm_ccmd2 .



Figure 4.97: Nominal_power_working_point subsystem's Simulink model

bm cmd2 subsystem is intended to evaluate bench motor command and it is constituted of a single output representing rotational speed value to be considered for piloting bench motor. Since minimum and maximum rotational speed values are known user can define an increment to be considered for moving along rotational speed axis and selecting new working point where evaluating test motor characteristics. This increment can be computed as ratio between nominal rotational speed value and rotational speed values' number to be considered to move from initial to final rotational speed value. It can be used to compute time by time new working point since it can be added to previous rotational speed for obtaining new rotational speed value to be considered for selecting new working point. In Simulink this logic is implemented by means model shown in figure 4.98 where a sum block is implemented with an input port connected to a constant block (computed increment) and other input connected to discrete delay's output. Discrete delay's output value changes each time a time delay is expired such that every time rotational speed value to be considered for computing bench motor command is computed as the sum between previous rotational speed value and rotational speed increment. Time delay is defined by user on the basis of transient phase that characterizes interesting parameters? trend (time needed to reach steady- state value). Sum Simulink block's output represents bench motor command that must be sent to Control reference model after being converted in voltage signal. Moreover, discrete delay's output is defined by means an external port which is connected to product block's output port that allows to compute increment opposite value such 0 rad/s is the first rotational speed value considered to select a working point.



Figure 4.98: *bm_cmd2* subsystem's Simulink model

Instead, tm_cmd2 subsystem is intended to evaluate test motor command and it is implemented in the same way of bm_cmd2 subsystem. But, this time instead of considering rotational speed, torque is considered to evaluate test motor command that has to be sent to Control refence model after being converted in voltage signal. Indeed, also in this case an increment is defined to move along torque axis for selecting new working point. This increment is defined as ratio between nominal torque value and torque values' number to be considered to move from initial to final torque value. It can be used to compute time by time new working point since it can be added to previous torque value to obtain new torque value to be considered for selecting new working point. In Simulink, this is implemented by means model shown in figure 4.99 that is the same to that described in bm_cmd2 case.



Figure 4.99: tm_cmd2 subsystem's Simulink model

To parametrize Simulink blocks implemented in Nominal_ power_ working_point subsystem a MATLAB script, containing all needed variables, has to be defined and run in order to load parameter values into MATLAB workspace. Among all these variables there is $w_increasing$ and $T_increasing$ which represent respectively rotational speed and torque increment defined as before described, $delay_T$ representing time delay to be considered for discrete delay implemented in tm_cm2 subsystem whose value is decided by user, $delay_w$ that represents time delay to be considered for discrete delay implemented inside bm_cmd2 subsystem whose value is defined in function of delay_T, number of rotational speed and of torque values, sample defining sample time to be considered for ToFile Simulink blocks used to store interesting variables and T_sim that represents simulation time duration computed as function of delay_T and number of torque values considered for performing test.

Nominal_power_working_point

```
w_n_test = 5000 /60*2*pi;
348
349
        w sampling=10;
350
        w_increasing=w_n_test/w_sampling;
352
        P m n test=10500;
353
        T_m_n_test = P_m_n_test/w_n_test;
354
        T_sampling=10;
355
        T_increasing=T_m_n_test/T_sampling;
        %bm_cm2 & tm_cmd2 blocks
358
        delay_T=25;
        delay_w=(T_sampling*delay_T)/w_sampling;
359
361
        sample=0.1;
        T_sim=delay_T+(T_sampling*delay_T)
362
```

Figure 4.100: Nominal power working point's MATLAB script

• Torque curves test

In this scenario, user must define a single torque value and a vector of rotational speed values in order to select different working points for which evaluating test motor behavior and characteristics. To perform this kind of test user must uncomment *Torque_curves subsystem* and comment out other three subsystems. This subsystem contains model shown in figure 4.101 that is constituted of two different subsystems: *bm_cmd1* and *tm_cmd1*.



Figure 4.101: Torque curves subsystem's Simulink model

bm cmd1 subsystem is intended to evaluate bench motor command and it is constituted of a single output representing rotational speed value to be considered for evaluating bench motor command signal. Since minimum and maximum rotational speed values are known user can define an increment to be considered for moving along rotational speed axis and selecting new working point where evaluating test motor characteristics. This increment can be computed as ratio between maximum and minimum rotational speed value difference and rotational speed values' number to be considered to move from initial to final rotational speed value. It can be used to compute time by time new working point since it can be added to previous rotational speed for obtaining new rotational speed value which corresponds to new working point. In Simulink, this logic is implemented by means model shown in figure 4.102 where sum block is implemented with an input port connected to a constant block (rotational speed increment) and other input connected to discrete delay's output whose value changes each time a time delay is expired in order to compute rotational speed value as sum between previous rotational speed value and rotational speed increment. Time delay is defined by user on the basis of transient phase that characterizes interesting parameters' trend (time needed to reach steady-state value). Sum Simulink block's output represents bench motor command that must be sent to Control reference model after being converted in voltage signal. Moreover, discrete delay's initial output is defined by means an external port which is connected to product block's output port that allows to compute increment opposite value such 0 rad/s is the first rotational speed value considered to select a working point.



Figure 4.102: bm_cmd1 subsystem's Simulink model

Instead, tm cmd1 subsystem is intended to evaluate test motor command and this time it is constituted of a more complex model. Indeed, this time on right part Switch Simulink block is implemented that allows to select torque value to be considered for selecting working point. This because two different working areas in $\omega - T$ plane can be distinguished: constant torque working area in which motor works at constant torque value and constant power working area where motor works at constant power. Switch from one area to other one happens at nominal rotational speed and at that point test motor torque command must be computed in such a way that its power remains constant. In Simulink model, condition to switch from one area to other one is set by a GreaterThan Simulink block that allows to compare rotational speed value read by rounds per minute measurement system and w_{change} that represents rotational speed value at which motor working condition must change and once switch happens test motor torque command is computed dividing the result of product between considered torque value and w change for rotational speed sensed by rounds per minute measurement system that must be converted in rad/s.



Figure 4.103: tm_cmd1 subsystem's Simulink model

To parametrize Simulink blocks implemented inside $Torque_curves$ subsystem a corresponding MATLAB script has to be defined and run before to start Simulink simulation in order to load variables in workspace. Among all variables to be defined there are $w_eff_bp_vec_bench$ and $w_eff_bp_vec_test$ representing rotational speed values' vector to evaluate bench and test motor power loss matrix, $w_sampling$ representing number of rotational speed values to be considered during test, $w_increasing$ representing rotational speed increment, $T_increasing$ representing torque value to be considered for performing test, w_n $_test$ representing test motor nominal rotational speed, $delay_w$ that defines for how long test motor must be tested in each working point, sample representing sample time to be considered for ToFile Simulink blocks used to store interesting variables.

	Torque_curves
48	%w_increasing
49	w_eff_bp_vec_bench=[104.72 209.44 314.16 366.52 418.88 471.24 523.6 628.32];
50	w_max_bench=max(w_ett_bp_vec_bench);
51	w_ett_bp_vec_test=[104,/198 209.4395 314.1593 366.5191 418.8/9 4/1.2389 523.5988 5/5.958/ 628.3185];
52	w_max_test=max(w_eff_pb_vec_test);
54	w_max=mil(w_max_bench,w_max_test);
155	w sampling=20:
56	w increasing=w max/w sampling:
57	
58	%T_increasing
59	T_increasing=20;
60	
61	%w_change
62	w_n_bench= 4000 /60*2*pi;
63	w_n_test = 5000 /60*2*p1;
65	w_change=min(w_n_bench,w_n_test); stotational speed at which the area change happens
	Shm cmd1
67	delay w=25:
68	
69	<pre>sample=0.1; %sample time for interesting parameters to be stored</pre>
\$70	T_sim=(delay_w+(delay_w*w_sampling))
	48 50 552 555 556 661 662 663 664 666 668 669 70

Figure 4.104: Torque curves' MATLAB script

• 3D maps tests

In this case, test motor's behavior has to be evaluated in entire coverable area of $\omega - T$ plane so, a very huge number of working points has to be considered. For this reason, both torque and rotational speed values time by time have to be changed in order to select working points belonged to entire coverable $\omega - T$ plane area and test motor characteristics can be evaluated. Usually, to do this a constant torque value is considered and time by time rotational speed value is increased until its maximum value is reached. At that point, torque value has to be increased and the same procedure for rotational speed value has to be reaped again in order to select other working points and test motor characteristics can be evaluated. Test must be stopped once maximum torque value is reached to avoid mechanical and electrical problems for electric motor under test. To perform this kind of test user must uncomment 3D maps subsystem implemented on the bottom part of HMI subsystem and comment out other three subsystem. This subsystem contains model shown in figure 4.105 and it is constituted of two subsystems: $bm \ cmd\theta$ and $tm \ cmd\theta$.



Figure 4.105: 3D_maps subsystem's Simulink model

 bm_cmd0 subsystem is intended to evaluate bench motor command and it is constituted of a Switch Simulink block which allows to select rotational speed value to be considered for evaluating bench motor torque command. This because rotational speed value has to increase until to reach its maximum value and once it is crossed rotational speed value has to set equal to initial rotational speed value (0 rad/s). Switch condition is set by means GreateThan Simulink block that allows to compare rotational speed value sensed by rounds per minute measurement system and w_max that represents maximum rotational speed value that can be considered for testing electric motor under test. Since minimum and maximum rotational speed values are known user can define an increment to be considered for moving along rotational speed axis and selecting new working point where evaluating test motor characteristics. This increment can be computed as ratio between maximum and minimum rotational speed value difference and rotational speed values' number to be considered to move from initial to final rotational speed value. It can be used to compute time by time new working point since it can be added to previous rotational speed for obtaining new rotational speed value which corresponds to new working point. In Simulink, this logic is implemented by means model shown in figure 4.106 where sum block is implemented with an input port connected to a constant block (rotational speed increment) and other input connected to discrete delay's output whose value changes each time a time delay is expired in order to compute rotational speed value as sum between previous rotational speed value and rotational speed increment. Time delay is defined by user on the basis of transient phase that characterizes interesting parameters' trend (time needed to reach steady-state value). Sum Simulink block's output represents bench motor command that must be sent to Control reference model after being converted in voltage signal. Moreover, discrete delay's initial output is defined by means an external port which is connected to product block's output port that allows to compute increment opposite value such 0 rad/s is the first rotational speed value considered to select a working point while delay reset is implemented by means a pulse generator that each time maximum rotational speed value is reached allows to reset delay block. This is done taken into care how log each rotational speed value lasts to stay in specific working point and evaluating test motor's characteristics.



Figure 4.106: *bm_cmd*0 subsystem's Simulink model

Instead, tm cmd0 subsystem is intended to evaluate test motor command and this time it is constituted of a more complex model. Indeed, this time on right part Switch Simulink block is implemented that allows to select torque value to be considered for selecting working point. This because two different working areas in $\omega - T$ plane can be distinguished: constant torque working area in which motor works at constant torque value and constant power working area where motor works at constant power. Switch from one area to other one happens at nominal rotational speed and at that point test motor torque command must be computed in such a way that its power remains constant. In Simulink model, condition to switch from one area to other one is set by a GreaterThan Simulink block that allows to compare rotational speed value read by rounds per minute measurement system and w change that represents rotational speed value at which motor working condition must change and once switch happens test motor torque command is computed dividing the result of product between considered torque value and w_change for rotational speed sensed by rounds per minute measurement system that must be converted in rad/s. When motor stays in constant torque working area, torque value to be considered for computing test motor torque command is computed by a Sum Simulink block that allows to sum torque increment, computed as ration between maximum and minimum torque value difference and torque values' number to be considered to test motor, and discrete delay's output whose value changes each time a time delay is expired in order to compute torque value as sum between previous torque value and torque increment. Time delay is defined by user on the basis of transient phase that characterizes interesting parameters' trend (time needed to reach steady-state value). Sum Simulink block's output represents bench motor command that is connected to Switch Simulink block. Moreover, discrete delay's initial output is defined by means an external port that is connected to a Constant Simulink block whose value is defined by user through corresponding MATLAB script *(initial condition delay)* such that user is able to decide whether 0Nm value has to be considered to select working points or not.



Figure 4.107: tm_cmd0 subsystem's Simulink model

To parametrize all Simulink blocks implemented inside 3D maps subsystem a corresponding MATLAB script must be defined and run before to start Simulink simulation such that all variables are load into workspace and Simulink blocks can use them. Among all needed variables there are: w_eff_bp_vec_bench and w_eff_bp_vec_test that represent vectors containing rotational speed values considered to evaluate bench and test motor power and efficiency matrices, w sampling defining how many rotational speed values have to be considered between minimum and maximum rotational speed values during test, w increasing that represents rotational speed increment, T sampling that defines how many torque values must be considered during test between minimum and maximum torque values, T eff bp vec bench and $T_eff_bp_vec_test$ that represent vector containing torque values considered to evaluate bench and test motor power and efficiency matrices, $w \ n$ bench that represent bench motor nominal rotational speed, w n test that represents test motor nominal rotational speed, w_change that represents rotational speed value at which motor switches from constant torque working area to constant power working area, delay w and delay T that represents time duration to be considered for each rotational speed and torque value, *pulse genera*tor_period and pulse_generator_phase_delay that represent variables to parametrize pulse generator block used to reset discrete delay of bm_cm0 subsystem, *initial_condition_delay* that represents initial output value of discrete delay implemented in tm cmd0 subsystem, sample representing sample time to be considered for ToFile Simulink block used to store interesting variables, T sim that defines simulation time.



Figure 4.108: 3D maps' MATLAB script

4.2.5 User subsystem

It contains model shown in figure 4.109 including all user actions to be performed for starting to use system. Since user could need to send signals both to Plant reference model and to Human-Machine-Interface subsystem, two output ports are implemented in order to model interfaces by means User is able to communicate to Plant reference model (user plant output port) and to HMI subsystem (user_HMI output port). Then, two input ports are implemented to model interfaces by means User subsystem can receive signals form Plant (plant user input port) and HMI (HMI user input port). In this case, since User does not receive signals from Plant reference model and does not need to send signals to it, plant_user inpurt port and user plant output port are connected each other by means a discrete delay that allows to avoid algebraic loop error during simulation while HMI_user input port is connected to a terminator Simulink block because in this case User subsystem does not receive signals from HMI subsystem. Output port 1 (user HMI) is connected to Mux Simulink block's output port such that two signals can be sent to HMI subsystem: bench and test motor's voltage power supply values.



Figure 4.109: User subsystem Simulink model

To parametrize User subsystem a corresponding MATLAB script has to be defined and run before to start simulation such that variables are loaded into MATLAB workspace and Simulink blocks can use them. Here, only two variables are defined: bm_pws and tm_pws which are defined to set voltage values to be provided respectively to bench and test motor.

	User Data
	Define the parameters related to the User.
259	%collect user action
261	%bm_tm_pws
262 263	bm_pws=96; %V tm_pws=66; %V
264 265	return
266	

Figure 4.110: User subsystem's MATLAB script

4.3 Dashboard and control panel

Observing MTM template (figure 4.64), two different panes highlighted in blue on left part are implemented. The one on upper part represents what is called *dashboard* which represents physical commands by means user is able to pilot system while the one on bottom part represents *control panel* through which user is able to check system's behavior while it works. In dashboard panel different physical components are implemented: on/off*button* by means user can start/stop system to work, indeed it is connected to constant 0 put inside HMI so that when it is pushed constant changes its value from 0 to 1 such that control law implemented inside Control Logic reference model is perturbated and specific action is taken to start or stop system (on the basis of logic described in section 4.2.3.1); *emergency switch* by means user can stop system while it is working when something goes wrong, indeed it like on/off button case is connected to constant Simulink block implemented inside HMI subsystem whose initial value is 0 such that when it is toggled from Off to On state constant value changes from 0 to 1 causing a perturbation in control law implemented inside Control Logic reference model that is designed in such a way that when that perturbation happen controller is able to stop system working; *green LED* and *red LED* by means user is able to understand system's state (working or stopped); *floating scope* by means user is able to check sent or received signals by components implemented in dashboard. Instead, in panel control two floating scopes are implemented by means user can check signals coming out from plant and from HMI.



Figure 4.111: Dashboard and Control panel in MTM template

Chapter 5

System design: model-based testing

Once model is built some tests must be performed to validate it. For doing this model-based approach establishes three different tests by means designers can understand whether their considered technical details are able to satisfy user's requirements. These three tests are listed and described below.

• MIL testing

MIL stands for *Model-in-the-loop* and it represents test by which designed controller is tested in development ambient, like Simulink, adopting plant model. So, in this case both designed controller and plant models are run in the same development machine to test designed controller's behavior.

• SIL testing

SIL stands for *Software-in-the-loop* and it represents test by which designed controller's corresponding C code is tested in development ambient, like Simulink, using always plant's model. So, also in this case both controller's corresponding C code and plant's model are run in the same development machine to check whether obtained controller C code works properly: obtained results must be the same to those obtained in MIL testing case.

• PIL testing

PIL stands for *Processor-in-the-loop* and it represents test where obtained controller's C code is run in a target hardware (rapid prototyping hardware) while plant's model is run in development machine. Here, controller C code's behavior is tested inside hardware before to test system's performance by using real plant. In this thesis work, this test is not performed because dSpace (considered rapid prototyping hardware) implies a very expensive license to perform it that is not available.

5.1 MIL testing

To perform this test, MATLAB script containing needed variables to parametrize all Simulink blocks used to implement MTM, described in chapter 4, has to be run. This is needed to load all variables into workspace such that Simulink blocks can use them during simulation for performing computations and gets results. Once this is done, Simulink model can be run pressing run pushbutton implemented in "SIMULATION panel" and when simulation starts user has to press on/off dashboard button to start system working. On/off dashboard button must be keep pressed for at least 0.01 s until green LED is switched on. At that point, user can wait for simulation end in order to obtain interesting variable values stored in .mat file positioned in selected path.

MATLAB script to be defined and run, shown in figure 5.1, is constituted of different sections as described in previous chapter: the first section contains all needed variables to parametrize Simulink blocks implemented inside all reference models and subsystems and it must be always run to load all defined variables in MATLAB workspace while the other sections are related to the four subsystems implemented on bottom part of HMI subsystem so on the basis of what test user wants to perform (single working point, nominal power working point, torque curves, 3D maps) corresponding section has to be run in order to load into MATLAB workspace needed parameters.

	Environment Data	Move here to reveal toolstrip
	Define the parameters related to the Environment.	
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	<pre>% Environment actions %torque_sensor_noise amplitude_r_noise=0.05; frequency_noise=0.05; %current_sensor_noise amplitude_r_noise=3; frequency_noise=0.000; %rpm_measurement_system_noise amplitude_w_noise=1; frequency_noise=1; frequency_noise=1; }</pre>	
	Plant Data	
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27	<pre>%Define the characteristics of the system that has to be co %Bench_motor %Electrical Torque - Nominal & Maximal w_n_bench=400 /6042+p1; T_m_n_bench= 28; eta_n_bench= 0.91 *100; %@ w_n & T_m_n P_m_n_bench= w_n_bench * T_m_n_bench; T_m_max_bench= s5; P_m_max_bench= w_n_bench * T_m_max_bench *1.1; w_max_bench=w_n_bench*1.1; tau_m_bench=0.02; %Electrical tensor of the Efficience</pre>	ntrolled
28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38	<pre>%Electrical Losses - Single Efficiency PL_ion_benches 0; %UP PL_ein_benches 100; PL_copper_n_benche (1-eta_n_bench/100)*P_m_n_bench -PLeln_ k_T_bencher PL_copper_n_bench /T_m_n_bench^2; %Mechanical J_m_benche : 0056-3; betabenches 1e-5; i_max_bencheT_m_max_bench/k_T_bench; %Tabulated_bench_motor</pre>	bench -Pl_iron_bench;

39	*Electrical_torque_section
40 41	w_t_vec_bench=[52.3599 104.7198 157.0796 209.4395 261.7994 314 1503 366.5101 418.8700 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.3185]; %rad/s T_t_vec_bench=[52.5 52.5 52.5 52.5 52.5 52.5 52.5 52.5
42 43	%Electrical_losses_section
44 45	%Tabulated_loss_data w_eff_bp_vec_bench=[104.72 209.44 314.16 366.52 418.88 471.24 523.6 628.32];
46 47	T_eff_bp_vec_bench=[2.4 4.3 11.4 13.8 15.2 20.9 26.9]; T_m_min_bench=min(T_eff_bp_vec_bench);
48 49	T_m_max_bench=max(T_eff_bp_vec_bench); w.max_bench=max(w.eff_bp_vec_bench);
50 51	b=2000:
52 53	losses_table_bench=(52.4 85.1 151.9 126.8 304.9 468.1 712.5; 115.1 133.4 223.7 223.6 350.5 701.4 801.2;
54 55	155.1 104.8 311.2 311.4 693.4 1005.9 1299.9; 175.3 240.7 434.4 351.7 556.3 1056.4 1407.6:
56 57	200.1 244.1 572.9 395.7 813.2 1204.9 1013.4; 224.1 342.5 545.2 458.9 732.2 864.7 b:
58	240.1 466.8 490.3 b b b b; 260.3 432.3 b b b b b;
60	%Tabulated efficiency data
62 63	d=85; efficiency table bench=[82.8 85.8 88 91.9 84.5 82.6 84.5;
64 65	79.6 88.4 90.5 92.2 90.2 86.2 89.2; 80.2 93.1 90.9 93.3 87.3 86.7 91.2;
66 67	80.3 87.4 89.3 93.5 90.9 87.8 91.6; 80.2 88.8 88.1 93.5 88.7 88.1 91.9;
68 69	78.9 88.1 89.2 93.2 90.3 92.4 d; 79.5 87.1 91.8 d d d d;
70 71	78.7 85.2 d d d d]; %Test motor
72 73	%Electrical Torque – Nominal & Maximal w_n_test = 5000 /60≉2*pi;
74 75	P_m_n_test=10500; T_m_n_test = P_m_n_test/w_n_test;
76 77	V_n_test=66; %V I_n_test=115; %A
78 79	cos_ti_test=0.80; eta_n_test =(P_m_n_test/(sqrt(3)*V_n_test*I_n_test*cos_fi_test))*100;
80	w_max_test=/500/00024p1; T_m_max_test = 83;
82	<pre>P_m_max_test = w_max_test * i_m_max_test; tau_m_test = 0.02; Clustering Learner Cluster Clustering</pre>
85	Pl_iron_test = 0;
80	rc_cm_vesv = www, Pl_copper_n_test= (1-eta_n_test/100)*P_m_n_test -Pl_ein_test -Pl_iron_test;
88 89	k_T_test= Pl_copper_n_test /T_m_n_test^2; i_max_test=T_m_max_test/k_T_test; Move here to reveal toolstrip
90 91	%Tabulated_test_motor
92 93	%Electrical_torque_section w_t_vec_test=[52.3599 104.7198 157.0796 209.4395 261.7994 314.1593 366.5191 418.8790 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.3185]; %rad/s
94 95	T_t_vec_test=[83 82.5 82 81.5 80.5 80.5 77.5 68 56 46.5 39.5 34.5]; %Nm
96 97	%Electrical_losses_section %Tabulated_loss_data
98 99	w_eff_bp_vec_test=[104.7198 209.4395 314.1593 366.5191 418.879 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.3185]; T_eff_bp_vec_test=[15 24 43 62 83];
100 101	<pre>T_m_min_test=min(T_eff_bp_vec_test); T_m_max_test=max(T_eff_bp_vec_test);</pre>
102 103	<pre>w_max_bench=max(w_ett_bp_vec_bench);</pre>
105	(USSES_LAULE_LESL=[145.0536 249.4494 594.3435 1.9657/6465 2.05956463 157.8947 311.1702 972.2222 2.09266403 3.57956403 736 6421 291 1.571.010 1.0100.023 2.65966.02
105	206.6421 361.3769 1.0439e403 2.0633e403 3.0200e403 204.5455 434.2105 1.1290e403 2.4167e403 4.0905e403 205.050 1.050 1.050 1.07040 0.01020 2.0005e403
	19:1556 510:5265 1:3764645 2:7335465 4:2007455 335.5263 689.3617 1:53266493 2:78896493 3:80226493
110	454.7872 846.7742 1.6781e+03 2.9659e+03 3.5405e+03 564.5161 912.1622 1.9111e+03 3.2880e+03 3.1379e+03
110 111 112 113	454.77872 846.7742 1.6781c+03 2.9559c+03 3.5405c+03 564.5161 912.1822 1.9111c+03 3.2880+03 3.1379c+03 652.4324 947.8280 1.8750c+03 2.9138c+03 2.8143e+03];
110 111 112 113 114 115	454.77872 846.7742 1.6781e+03 2.9559e+03 3.5405e+03 564.5161 912.1822 1.9111e+03 3.2880e+03 3.13780e+03 652.4324 978.2609 1.8750e+03 2.9138e+03 2.8143e+03]; %WTAbulated_efficiency_data efficiency_data
110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117	454.77872 846.7742 1.6781c+03 2.9559c+03 3.5405c+03 564.5161 912.1822 1.9111c+03 3.2880c+03 3.1378c+03 632.4324 978.2609 1.8750c+03 2.9138c+03 2.8143e+03]; WhTabulated_efficiency_table_test=[91.25 89 82.5 76.25 76; 95 94 90 86.25 82.5; 95 94 90 86.25 82.5;
110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 120	454.7872 846.7742 1.6781e+03 2.9559e+03 3.5405e+03 564.5161 912.1822 1.9111e+03 3.2880e+03 3.1392e+03 632.4324 978.2609 1.8750e+03 2.9138e+03 2.8143e+03]; WhTabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_table_test=[91.25 89 82.5 76.25 76; 95 94 90 86.25 82.5; 95 95 92.9 99 75; 95 95 92.9 99 87; 96.25 95 92.9 99 86.25
110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 120 121 122	454.77872 846.7742 1.6781c+03 2.9559c+03 3.5405c+03 564.5161 91.18750c+03 2.9580c+03 3.3792c+03 632.4324 978.2609 1.8750c+03 2.9138c+03 2.8143c+03 WhTabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_table_test=[91.25 89 82.5 76.25 70; 95 94 90 86.25 0.25; 95 94 90; 86.25 92.5; 95 94 90 86.25 0.2; 94 90; 95; 94 95; 94 95; 94 95; 94 95; 94; 95; 94; 92; 95; 94; 92; 95; 94; 92; 95; 94; 92; 95; 94; 92; 95; 94; 92; 95; 94; 92; 95; 94;
110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 120 121 122 123 124	454.7672 846.7742 1.6781e+03 2.9559e+03 3.5405e+03 546.5161 021.022 1.9111e+03 2.980e+03 3.3792e+03 632.4324 978.7609 1.6376e+03 2.9138e+03 2.8143e+031; WWTabulated_efficiency_dat efficiency_table_text=[91.25 89 82.5 76.25 76; 96 25 95 23 08 07; 96 25 95 23 08 07; 96 25 95 92.5 98 06.25; 95 94 92 89 06.65; 94 93 91.25 88 06.66; 94 93 91.25 88 06.66; 95 95 92 09 07 27.51;
110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 120 121 122 123 124 125 126	454.77672 846.7742 1.6781±+68 3.9585±+83 3.9485±+83 544.516 1.9782±+821±+83 2.988±+83 3.978±+83 3.978±+83 454.516 1.9732±+821±+83 2.9138±+83 2.9138±+83 2.9138±+83 *WTabulated_efficiency_data # 95 94 90 86.25 82.5 76.25 76.2 95 94 90 86.25 82.5 76.25 76.2 <td< td=""></td<>
110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 120 121 122 123 124 125 126 127 128	454.7672 846.7742 1.67812-08 3.29550=08 3.34056=08 544.556 191.2022 1.91112-08 3.2980=08 3.1979e=08 632.4324 978.2009 1.6756e=08 2.51386=08 3.281436=08]; WTabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_table_test=[91.28 99 82.5 76.25 78; 95 94 90 86.25 82.5; 95 95 94 90 86.25 82.5; 96.25 99 97.5; 96.66; 98 92 92 90 86.66; 98 92.5 90 87 87.5; %Sonsors max_T=909; max torque value that can be measured by sensor WyT=180; max voltage value at the output of the sensor
110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 120 121 122 123 124 125 126 127 128 129 130	454.77872 846.7742 1.6781±+63 3.9580±+33 3.9480±+33 564.5561 912.1622 1.911±+63 3.988±+33 3.978±+33 4WTabulated_efficiency_dsta efficiency_table_lests[91.25 89 82.5 76.25 70; 95 94 90 86.25 82.5; 96.62 97; 96.25 92.5 90 87.5; 96.62 97; 96.62 97; 96.25 92.5 90 87.5; 96.62 97; 93 91.25 80 66.6; 93 91.25 90 87.5; 93 95.5 96 96.66; 93 92.5 90 87.5; 93 94.5 96 95 94 93 91.75 80 80.66; 93 93 91.75 %Censors 92.5 90 87.5; 87.5; 86.66; 93 95.5 96.62; 93 92.5 90 87.5; 86.64; 95.94; 95.94; 95.94; 95.94; 95.94; 95.94; 95.94;
110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 120 121 122 123 124 125 126 127 128 129 130 131 132	454.77872 846.7742 1.6781±+63 2.9559±+83 3.5485€+83 564.5161 978.2022 1.911±+63 3.288±+83 3.379±+83 652.4324 978.2089 1.8750±+63 2.9138±+83 2.8143±+83]; WaTabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_table_test=[91.25 99 82.5 76.25 76; 95 95 92.5 90 87.5; 96.23 95 92.5 90 87.5; 96.23 95 92.5 90 87.5; 96.23 95 92.5 90 87.5; 96.23 95 92.5 90 87.5; 96.25 95 92.5 90 87.5; 96.59 93 92.5 90 87 87.5; Wersors Watorque_sensor Vp_T48; % max voltage value at the output of the sensor K_torque=p.Vmax[r:
110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 120 122 123 124 125 126 127 128 129 130 131 132 133 134	454.77872 846.7742 1.6781c+63 2.9559c+83 2.34056+83 564.5161 912.1622 1.911c+63 2.9580c+83 3.34056+83 4WTabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_table_test=[91.25 98 82.5 76.25 78.7 95 95 95 95 96 75.7 96.25 92.5 98 87.5 96.25 92.5 98 86.742 96.25 92.5 98 87.5 96.25 92.5 98 87.5 96.25 92.5 98 86.742 97 92.5 98 86.75 96.25 92.5 98 86.75 97 92.5 98 86.75 93 92.5 98 86.75 93 92.5 98 87.75 Watoreg_esensor 92.5 98 87.75 Watoreg_esensor W
110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 120 121 122 123 124 125 126 127 128 130 131 132 133 134 135 136	454.77672 846.7742 1.6781c+63 2.9559c+83 3.94895+83 564.5161 912.1622 1.911c+63 3.298c+83 3.9372+83 4WTabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_table_test=[91.25 98 82.5 76.25 76; 95 95 92.5 98 87.5; 96.25 92.5 98 87.5; 96.25 92.5 98 87.5; 96.62 93.9 90 87.5; 96.25 92.5 98 86.75 93.9 90 87.5; 96.25 93.9 90 87.5; 96.25 92.5 98 86.65 93.9 90 87.5; 93.9 90 87.5; 96.25 92.5 98 86.62 93.9 90 87.5; 93.9 90 87.5; 97.9 92.5 98 86.62 93.9 90 87.75; 93.9 94.92 90 87.87; 93.9 94.92 95.9 95.9 95.9 95.9 95.9 95.9 95.9 95.9 95.9 95.9 95.9 <t< th=""></t<>
110 111 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 120 121 123 124 125 126 127 128 129 130 131 132 133 134 135 136 137 138	454.7672 046.7742 1.6781-063 2.9550-83 3.9405-03 544.516 191.2022 1.9111-045 3.280-083 3.9405-03 632.4324 978.2009 1.6750-043 2.9130-043 2.9130-043 2.91430-031; WYabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_table_test=[91.25 89 82.5 76.25 70; 95 94 99 98.25 82.5; 95 95 94 92 89 86.25 82; 95 95 94 92 89 86.25 87; 95 95 94 92 89 86.25 87; 95 95 94 92 89 86.66; 93 92.5 98 86.25 87; 95 95 94 92 89 86.66; 93 92.5 98 86.25 87; 95 95 94 92 89 87 87; 95 95 94 92 89 88.57 95 95 94 92 89 87 87; 95 95 94 92 89 88.57 95 95 94 92 89 96 97 87; 97 97 97 97 97
110 111 111 111 111 111 111 111	454.7672 046.7742 1.6781c+03 2.9559c+03 3.9405c+03 544.516 191.2022 1.9111c+03 3.938e+03 3.9379c+03 632.4324 978.2009 1.8750c+03 2.9138e+03 2.8143e+03]; WYTabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_table_test=[91.28 89 82.5 76.25 70; 95 94 99 86.25 82.5; 95 95 94 90 86.25 92.5; 95 95 94 92 89 86.56; 94 93 91.25 88 86.56; 93 92.5 90 86.56; 93 92.5 90 86.56; 94 93 91.25 88 86.56; 93 92.5 90 867 57.5; Wentorgue_sensor max_T=508; max torque value that can be measured by sensor Vp_T=10; max voltage value at the output of the sensor k_torque_values the output of the sensor k_torque_table.vensor up_L[linit=28; k_current_offs08; max_T=508; max torque value that can be measured by sensor Vp_T=10; max_T=508; max torque value that can be measured by sensor Vp_T=10; max_T=508; max torque value that can be measured by sensor Vp_T=10; max_T=508; max torque value that can be measured by sensor Vp_T=10; max_T=508; max torque value that can be measured by sensor Vp_T=10; max_T=508; max torque value that can be measured by sensor Vp_T=10; max_T=508; max torque value that can be measured by sensor Vp_T=10; max_T=508; max torque value that can be measured by sensor Vp_T=10; max_T=508; max torque value that can be measured by sensor Vp_T=10; max_T=508; max torque value that can be measured by sensor Vp_T=10; max_T=508; max torque value that can be measured by sensor Vp_T=10; max_T=508; max torque value that can be measured by sensor Vp_T=10; max_T=508; max torque value that can be measured by sensor Vp_T=10; max_T=508; max_T=50
110 111 111 111 111 111 111 111 111 111	454.7672 046.7742 1.6781c+03 2.9559c+03 3.9405c+03 544.516 01 y1262 1.9111c+04 3.2980c+03 3.9405c+03 632.4324 978.2009 1.8750c+03 2.9138c+03 2.8143c+03]; WTabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_table_test=[91.28 99 82.5 76.25 70; 95 94 90 86.25 82.5; 95 94 90 86.25 82.5; 95 94 92 89 86.25; 95 94 92 89 86.25 71; 95 95 94 92 89 86.25 77; 95 95 94 92 89 86.26; 93 92.5 90 86.25 87; 93 92.5 90 86.25 87; 93 92.5 90 86.25 87; 94 93 91.25 88 86.66; 93 92.5 90 87 87.51; Watorgue_smoor max_T=969; % max torgue value that can be measured by sensor %_torgue_vp_trax_T; %_current_offset4; %_current_offset4; %_load=250; %_notational_speed_conversion Vp_w=10; %_smootational_speed_conversion Vp_w=10; %_smootational_speed_conversion
110 111 111 111 111 111 111 111 111 111	454.7672 046.7742 1.6781-043 2.9550-043 3.94050-03 544.516 01 21.022 1.0111-045 3.9280-03 3.94050-03 632.4324 978.2009 1.0590-043 2.91380-043 2.91430-043]; WTabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_table_pett=[91.25 89 82.5 76.25 70; 95 93 94 90 86.25 82.5; 96 92 92.5 90 86.75; 96 92 92.5 90 86.66; 98 92.5 90 86.66; 99 92.5 90 86.66; 99 92.5 90 86.66; 99 92.5 90 86.66; 99 92.5 90 87 87.5]; %Groupsing
110 111 111 111 111 111 111 111 111 111	454.77872 846.7742 1.6781-0783 2.95590-83 3.94050-83 544.5161 978.2007 1.16790-043 2.91380-043 2.91430-031; WTabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_table_test=[91.25 89 82.5 76.25 70; 95 95 92 90 86.25 82.5; 96 92.5 90 86.25 87; 97 92.5 92 90 87 77; 97 92 92 90 87 87; 98 93 91 92.5 90 86.66; 98 93 92.5 90 86.66; 98 93 92.5 90 87 87; 99 93 92.5 90 87 87; 90 93 92.5 90 87 87; 91 93 91 92.5 90 87 87; 92 93 92.5 90 87 87; 93 92.5 90 87 87; 94 93 91.25 88 80; 95 95 95 96 77; 95 95 95 96 77; 95 95 95 96 77; 95 95 95 96 77; 95 95 96 77; 95 95 96 77; 95 95 96 77; 96 97 97; 97 97 98 96 78 97; 98 97 97; 99 98 97 97; 90 98 98 97 98; 90 99 97 97; 90 98 97 97; 90 98 97 98; 90 99 97 98; 90 99 97 98; 90 99 97 97; 90 98 97 98; 90 99 97 97; 90 98 98 97 98; 90 99 98 98 98 98 98 98 98 98 98 98 98 98
110 111 111 112 113 114 115 117 117 117 117 117 117 117 117 117	454.77872 846.7742 1.6781-043 2.95590-03 3.94050-03 564.5161 912.022 1.9111-043 3.980-043 3.9780-03 652.4234 978.2009 1.6750-043 2.91380-043 2.91430+03]; WTabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_table_test=[91.25 89 82.5 76.25 70; 95 95 92 59 08 67.25; 96 02.9 09 92.5 90 87.25; 96 02.9 09 92.5 90 86.62; 93 93 92.5 90 87.25; 92.5 92 90 87 87.5]; Weensors Wtorque_sensor more_sensor wtorque_sens
110 111 112 113 114 115 114 115 117 117 117 117 117 117 117 117 117	454.772 265.7742 1.6781-063 2.9559-083 3.9405+083 564.5161 012,022 1.9111-045 3.2980-083 2.9405+083 564.2561 012 262 1.911-045 WTabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_data efficiency_data efficiency_data efficiency_data 95.95 94 96 25 27.57 95.95 94 92 089 06.525 95.95 94 92 089 07 07.51 94.95 94 94 92 94 94 95 94 94.05
110 111 111 112 113 114 115 115 116 117 115 120 122 122 124 123 124 125 126 127 128 129 130 131 131 131 132 135 136 141 142 144 145 146 147 148 147 149 155 151	<pre>454.772 168.7742 1.6781-083 3.9580-083 3.94050-083 564.5166 131.2022 1.9111-043 3.2880-083 3.94050-083 564.5166 131.2022 1.9111-043 3.2880-083 3.94050-083 efficiency_data efficiency_dat</pre>
110 111 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 115 117 118 117 120 121 122 123 124 123 124 125 126 127 127 128 129 130 131 131 132 133 134 135 136 141 142 144 145 151	<pre>454.772 268.7742 1.6781-e63 3.2680-e3 3.26483-e3 564.556 191.2022 1.9111-e43 3.2680-e3 3.26483-e3 564.556 191.2022 1.9111-e43 efficiency_data efficiency_table_efficiency_data efficiency_table_efficiency_data efficiency_table_efficiency_data efficiency_table_efficiency_data efficiency_table_efficiency_data efficiency_table_efficiency_data efficiency_table_efficiency_data efficiency_table_efficiency_data efficiency_table_efficiency_data efficiency_table_efficiency_data efficiency_table_efficiency_data efficiency_table_efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency efficiency efficiency_table_efficiency effici</pre>
110 111 111 111 111 111 111 111 111 111	454.772 168.7742 1.6781-083 3.2680=08 3.2680=08 3.2680=08 3.2680=08 3.2680=08 3.2680=08 3.2780=08 3.2680=08 3.2780=
1110 1111 1111 1112 1113 1114 1115 1116 1117 1118 1119 1120 1121 1121 1121 1121 1121 1121	<pre>445.7727 845.7742 1.6781-063 3.9580-03 3.94830-03 544.516 191.2021 1.9111-043 3.9380-03 3.94830-03 544.516 191.2021 1.9111-04 efficiency_data efficiency_</pre>
1110 1111 1111 1112 1113 1114 1115 1116 1116 1117 1116 1117 1117 1117	<pre>445.7727 845.7742 1.6781-063 3.9850-83 3.94850-83 544.516 191.2021 1.911-043 474abulated_efficiency_data efficiency_tatale_tett=[91.25 89 82.5 76.25 78;</pre>
1110 1111 1111 1112 1113 1114 1114 1115 1115 1115 1115 1117 1117	<pre>445.7727 845.7742 1.6781-063 3.9850-83 3.94850-83 544.516 197.1202 1.9111-043 447.801 1.8790-063 2.91380-063 2.91380-063 2.91480-03]; WTabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_tata efficiency efficiency_tata efficiency_tata efficiency effi</pre>
1110 1111 1111 1112 1113 1114 1114 1115 1115 1115 1115 1115	<pre>445.7727 845.7742 1.6781-063 3.2980-083 3.24805-083 545.516 197.2022 1.9111-0783 3.2880-083 3.24805-083 545.516 197.2022 1.9111-078 478204atdc_efficiency_data efficiency_table_tert=[91.28 89 82.5 76.25 79; 95 94 94 93 91 92 89 86.52 82.5; 95 94 94 92 89 86.56; 93 92.5 92 98 86.56; 93 92.5 92 98 86.57; 95 94 94 93 91.78.88 86.50; 93 92.5 92 98 87 87.53] Wennors worses worse</pre>
1110 1111 1111 1112 1113 1114 1114 1115 1115 1115 1115 1116 1118 1118 1118	<pre>445.7727 845.7742 1.6781-063 3.29850-83 3.24835-83 545.516 192.1262 1.9111-043 3.2880-83 3.24835-83 545.516 192.1262 1.9111-043 3.2880-83 2.51326-83 545.516 192.528 88 82.5 76.25 78; 95 94 94 98 86.25 82.5; 95 94 92 89 86.65; 93 92.5 92 98 87 67.5]; %ensors %ensors</pre>
1110 1111 1111 1112 11111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 11111 11111 11111 111111	<pre>445.772 845.7742 1.6781-083 3.2880-83 3.24830-83 54.516 197.202 1.1017-083 3.2880-83 3.24830-83]; WTabulated_efficiency_data efficiency_data efficiency_</pre>
1110 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 111	<pre>445.7727 845.7742 1.6781-083 3.9860-83 3.9486-83 544.516 191.202 1.9111-048 3.2880-83 3.9780-03 544.516 191.202 1.9111-048 3.2880-83 3.9780-03 542.52 89 82.5 76.25 78; 95 94 94 90 86.25 82.5; 95 94 92 89 86.56; 95 94 92 89 86.56; 94 92.5 98 92.5 98 86.56; 94 92.5 98 86.56; 94 92.5 98 86.56; 94</pre>
1110 1111 1111 1112 1112 1115 1115 1115	<pre>445.7722 46.772 1.6721 e45.7742 1.6781 e43 3.2980 e43 2.298 e43 e43 e43 e43 e44 e44 e44 e44 e44 e44</pre>
1110 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 111	<pre>454.772 268.7742 1.6781-063 3.2680-083</pre>
1110 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 111	44.772 06.7742 1.772 06.7742 1.772 06.772 0.772
1110 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 111	<pre>44.772 06.772 1.0781e48 3.2485e48 3.5485e48 3.5485e48 3.5486e48 3.5485e48 3.5485e48858 3.5485688 3.5485888 3.5485888 3.5485888 3.54</pre>

179 180	N=16; quant_bm_cmd_signal=Vp_bm_command_signal/(2^N-1);	
181 182	%tm_cmd_signal	Move here to reveal toolstrip
183 184	Vp_tm_cmd_signal=5; N=16;	
185 186	<pre>quant_tm_cmd_signal=Vp_tm_cmd_signal/(2^N-1);</pre>	
187 188	% DAC % LP filter	
189 190	Ts2=1e-4; wc2=500e3*2*p1;	
191 192	<pre>s=tf('s'); z=tf('z',Ts2);</pre>	
193 194	H_sz=wc2^2/(\$+wc2)^2; H_z2=zpk(c2d(H_s2,Ts2,'zoh'));	
195	[NUM_LPF2, DEN_LPF2]=tTGata(H_Z2, 'V');	
	Control Logic Data The Control Logic must control algorithm that is intended to be deal	nved on the target hardware
196	sampling_time=1e-2;	,
197 198	<pre>s=tf('s'); z=tf('z',sampling_time);</pre>	
199 200	<pre>H_s=1/(3*s+1); H_z=zpk(c2d(H_s,sampling_time,'zoh'));</pre>	
201 202	[NUM,DEN]=tfdata(H_z,'v');	
203 204	%w_signal Vp_w=10;	
205 206	<pre>rpm_max=6000; k_speed=Vp_w/rpm_max;</pre>	
207 208	%bm_cmd_signal	
209 210	<pre>Vp_bm_cmd_signal=5; bm_cmd_signal_max=6000*2*pi/60; %rad/s</pre>	
211 212	<pre>K_Dm_cmd=Vp_bm_cmd_signat/bm_cmd_signat_max;</pre>	
213	<pre>%tm_cmd_signat Vp_tm_cmd=5; %V </pre>	
215	<pre>k_tm_cmd=Vp_tm_cmd/tm_cmd_max;</pre>	
211	HMI Data	
	Define the parameters related to the HMI.	Move here to reveal toolstrip
218	% HMI actions	
219	%signal_to_parameters	
222	k_current=16/300; current offset=4:	
224	R_load=250;	
226	%w_signal Vo w=10:	
228 229	<pre>rpm_max=6000; k_speed=Vp_w/rpm_max;</pre>	
230 231	%T_signal	
232 233	<pre>max_T=500; % max torque value that can be measured by ser Vp_T=10; % max voltage value at the output of the sensor</pre>	isor
1000		
234 235	k_torque=Vp_T/max_T;	
234 235 236 237	k_torque=Vp_T/max_T; %Acmd_to_signals Vp_bm_cmd=5; bm_cmd_max=6800#2eni/60.%cad/c	
234 235 236 237 238 239 240	k_torque=Vp_T/max_T; %cmd_to_signals Vp_bm_emde%d00+2+pj/60;%rad/s bm_emd_max=6000+2+pj/60;%rad/s k_bm_emd=Vp_m_emd/bm_emd_max;	
234 235 236 237 238 239 240 241 241 242	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vk_cmd_to_signals bm_cmd=0; bm_cmd=0; k_bm_cmd=Vp_mb_cmd/sac; Vp_tm_cmd=0; vp_tm_cmd=5; tm_cmd=max_100;</pre>	
234 235 236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vk_cmd_to_signals bm_cmd=0; bm_cmd=max=6000#2*pi/60; %rad/s k_bm_cmd=Max_mbc_cmd/mm_cmd_max; Vp_tm_cmd=Max=100; k_tm_cmd=Max=100; k_tm_cmd=Vp_tm_cmd/tm_cmd_max;</pre>	
234 235 236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vvcmd_to_signals bm_cmd=Gax=6900#2*pi/60; %rad/s k_bm_cmd=Mp_mcmd/bm_cmd_max; Vp_tm_cmd=Np_tm_cmd/tm_cmd_max; k_tm_cmd=Vp_tm_cmd/tm_cmd_max; bbm_mx^s_signal Vp_bm_wx^s_signal</pre>	
234 235 236 237 238 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vk_cmd_to_signals bm_cmd=Gs; bm_cmd=Amax_6000m2*pi/60; %rad/s k_bm_cmd=Amax_6000m2; Vp_tm_cmd=Amax_600; k_tm_cmd_max_600; k_tm_cmd=Vp_tm_cmd/tm_cmd_max; bbm_mxs_Signal Vp_bm_ws=S; bm_pxs=S; bm_p</pre>	
234 235 236 237 238 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 246 247 248 249 255	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vkcmd_to_signals bm_cmd_max=6000#2*pi/60; %rad/s k_bm_cmd=Mp_mc_cmd/mm_cmd_max; Vp_tm_cmd=Mp_mc_cmd/mm_cmd_max; k_tm_cmd=Vp_tm_cmd/tm_cmd_max; bbm_mxs_Signal Vp_bm_us=S; hg_pvs=90; k_bm_pvs=9p_bm_pvs/bm_pvs; %mm_pvs_signal Vmm_pvs_signal</pre>	
234 235 236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 249 250 251 252	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vhcmd_to_sipnals Vp_bm_cond=vp_sipnals Vp_bm_cond=vp_bm_cond/sm_cond_max; Vp_tm_cond=vp_bm_cond/sm_cond_max; Vp_tm_cond=vp_tm_cond/tm_cond_max; k_tm_cond=vp_tm_cond/tm_cond_max; hbm_pws=S; hm_pws=S</pre>	
234 235 236 237 238 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248 250 251 252 253 254	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vhcmd_to_sipnls Vp_bm_cmd=vp_sipnls Vp_bm_cmd=vp_bm_cmd/bm_cmd_max; k_bm_cmd=vp_bm_cmd/bm_cmd_max; in_cmd_max=000; in_cmd_max=0</pre>	
234 235 236 237 238 240 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 246 247 249 250 251 252 253 254	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vycmit_0_signals Vycmit_0_signals Vycmit_cond=Signals k_tm_cond=Signals k_tm_cond=Vp_tm_cond/tm_cond_max; k_tm_cond=Vp_tm_cond/tm_cond_max; htm_pws=Signals Vycmit_ws=Signals Vycmit_ws=Signals Vycmit_ws=Signals Vycmit_ws=Signals Vycmit_ws=Signals Vycmit_ws=Signals Vycmit_ws=Signals Vyctm_pws=Vp_tm_pws/tm_pws; Vyctm_pws=Vp_tm_pws; Vyctm_pws=Vp_tm_pw</pre>	(Move here to reveal toolstrip)
234 235 236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 246 247 246 247 250 251 252 253 254	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vdcmd_to_signals Vp_bm_cndm.sc@e000000000000000000000000000000000000</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip]
234 235 236 237 238 249 241 242 243 244 244 244 244 244 249 250 251 252 255 255 255	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vdcmd_to_signals Vp_bm_cmd_xseed000x2pu1/00; %rad/s k_bm_cmd_xsee000x2pu1/00; %rad/s k_tm_cmd=Vp_bm_cmd/bm_cmd_max; vdp_tm_cmd_xsee000x2pu1/00; %rad/s k_tm_cmd=Vp_bm_cmd/tm_cmd_max; vdm_pws=stp_signal Vp_bm_pws=stp_signal Vp_bm_pws=stp_signal Vp_bm_pws=stp_signal Vp_bm_pws=stp_signal Vp_tm_pws=stp_tm_pws/tm_pws; VDeer Data Define the parameters related to the User. %collect user action %bm tar pws</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip]
234 235 236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 244 245 244 245 251 252 253 254 255 255 255 255 255	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vy_bmc_rdto_Signals Vy_bmc_rdto_Signals Vy_bmc_rdto_Signals vp_br_tmc_rdd_socode0x*pay160; %rad/s k_tmc_rdd_socode0x*pay160; %rad/s k_tmc_rdd_socode0x*pay160; %rad/s k_tmc_rdd=Nase100; k_tmc_rdd=Nase100; k_tmc_rdd=Nase100; k_tmc_rdd=Nase100; k_tmc_rdd=Nase100; vp_b</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip]
235 236 237 238 240 241 242 243 244 245 244 245 244 245 251 252 255 255 255 255 255 256 257 258 259 260	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vy_bmc_rdt_osignals Vy_bmc_rdm.osignals Vy_bmc_rdm.osignals vp_bmc_rdm.osignalvp_tmc_rdd_max; hdm_pvs_stp_tmc_rdm.osignalvp_tmc_rdd_max; hdm_pvs_stp_tmc_rdm.osignalvp_tmc_rdm_rdms; hdm_pvs=Signalvp_stp_tmc_pvs; Hdm_pvs=Signalvp_stp_tmc_pvs; Hdm_pvs=Signalvp_stp_tmc_pvs; Hdm_pvs=Signalvp_tmc_pvs;tmc_pvs; USEFD ExtEl Define the parameters related to the User. %collect user cation %bm_tmc_pvs=Signalvp_tmc_pvs; hdm_pvs=Signalvp_tmc_pvs; hdm_pvs=Signalvp_tmc_pvs;tmc_pvs; hdm_pvs=Signalvp_tmc_pvs;tmc_pvs; bmc_pvs=Signalvp_tmc_pvs;tmc_pvs; bmc_pvs=Signalvp_tmc_pvs;tmc_pvs; hdm_pvs=Signalvp_tmc_pvs;tm</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip]
235 236 237 238 240 241 242 243 244 246 246 246 255 255 255 255 255 255 255 255 255 25	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vy_Bu_cmd=5; Vy_Bu_cmd=5; bu_cmd_msc@bw2xp_I/d0; %rad/s k_bm_cmd_msc@bw2xp_I/d0; %rad/s k_tm_cmd=Vp_bm_cmd/bm_cmd_max; Vy_D_tm_cmd=Vp_tm_cmd/m_cmd_max; Num_pws=5; bm_pws=50; k_bm_pws=5; tm_pws=5;</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip]
234 235 236 238 238 240 240 241 241 242 242 242 242 245 246 246 246 246 246 246 246 255 255 255 255 255 255 255 255 255 25	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vy_bmc_mto_Signals Vy_bmc_mto_Signals Vy_bmc_mto_Signals vy_b_tc_codeSignals vy_b_tc_codeSignals vy_b_tc_codeSignals vy_b_tc_codeSignals vy_b_tc_poseSignals vy_b_tc_poseSignals vy_b_tc_poseSignals vy_b_tc_toposeSignals v_b_tc_toposeSignals v_b_</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip]
234 235 236 237 238 239 249 249 249 244 242 244 244 255 255 255 255 255 255	K_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vdcml_to_ipinls Vp_bm_cmd_wsc@dev2pi/60; Vrad/s K_bm_cmd_wsc@dev2pi/60; Vrad/s K_bm_cmd_wsc@dev2pi/60; Vrad/s K_bm_cmd_vsc@dev2pi/60; Vrad/s K_bm_pwsc; Vp_bm_p	[Move here to reveal toolstrip]
234 235 236 236 238 238 249 249 249 244 242 244 244 251 252 255 255 255 255 255 266 260	K_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vic=I_to_signals Vp_bm_cmd=vp_signals Vp_bm_cmd=vp_signals Vp_bm_cmd=vp_bm_cmd/mc_cmd_max; Vp_tm_cmd=Vp_bm_cmd/mc_cmd_max; Vp_tm_cmd=vp_bm_cmd/mc_cmd_max; thm_pws=signal Vp_bm_pws=signal Vp_bm_pws=signal Vp_bm_pws=signal Vp_tm_pws=s	[Move here to reveal toolstrip] 1.24 523.6 628.32]; 8.879 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.3185];
234 235 236 237 238 240 241 242 244 244 244 244 244 244 244 244	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vuccd_to_signals Vp_bm_cod_ws680expsj/60; %rad/s k_bm_cod_ws680expsj/60; %rad/s k_bm_cod_ws680expsj/60; %rad/s k_bm_cod_signal Vp_bm_cod_vsf_to_dt_cod_max; %t_bm_pos=5; bm_pos=5; bm_pos=5; k_bm_pos=5; tm_pos=5; tm_pos=5; k_bm_pos=5; k_bm_pos=5; tm_pos=5; k_bm_pos=5; k_bm_pos=5; tm_pos=5; k_bm_pos=5; k_bm_pos=5; k_bm_pos=5; k_bm_pos=5; tm_pos=6; k_bm_pos=6; vector action Vbbm_ts_pos bm_pos=6; vector vector action Vbbm_ts_pos bm_pos=6; vector k_bm_creasing & wmax w_dff_bm_vcetor[104,722 209.44 314.16 366.52 418.88 47 w_dmax_tertakuveff_bm_vcetor]; w_dmax_tertakuveff_bm_vcet</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip] 1.24 523.6 628.32]; 8.879 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.3185];
234 235 235 235 237 238 240 241 241 241 244 244 244 244 244 244 244	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vuccd_to_signals Vp_bm_cod_wsc@dbavyapi/dbi_krad/s k_bm_cod_wsc@dbavyapi/dbi_krad/s k_bm_cod_wsc@dbavyapi/dbi_krad/s k_tm_cod_spaces k_tm_cod_spaces k_tm_powsc%p_tm_cod/tm_cod_max; thm_pows_signal Vp_bm_powsc%p_tm_cod/tm_pows; k_tm_powsc%p_tm_powsc%p_tm_pows; k_tm_powsc%p_tm_powsc%p_tm_pows; k_tm_powsc%p_tm_powsc%p_tm_pows; k_tm_powsc%p_tm_powsc%p_tm_pows; k_tm_powsc%p_tm_powsc%p_tm_pows; k_tm_powsc%p_tm_powsc%p_tm_pows; k_tm_powsc%p_tm_powsc%</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip] 1.24 523.6 628.321; 8.879 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.31851;
234 235 235 235 237 238 239 241 241 242 243 244 244 244 244 244 244 244 244	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vuccd_to_signals Vp_bm_cod_sos; bm_cod_mace@e00000000000000000000000000000000000</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip] 1.24 523.6 628.32]; 8.879 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.3185];
234 235 235 237 238 237 238 241 241 242 243 244 244 244 244 244 244 244 244	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vdcmd_to_signals Vp_bm_codm>Signals Vp_bm_codm>Signals Vp_bm_codm>Signals Vp_tm_cod=Vp_bm_cod/tm_cod_max; k_tm_cod=Vp_bm_cod/tm_cod_max; k_tm_cod=Vp_tm_cod/tm_cod_max; k_tm_pows=Signals Vp_bm_pows=Signals Vp_bm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Numpows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Numpows=Sign</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip] 1.24 523.6 628.32]; 8.879 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.3185];
234 235 235 235 235 237 239 239 241 241 244 244 244 244 244 244 244 244	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vdcmd_to_signals Vp_bm_codm>Signals Vp_bm_codm>Signals Vp_bm_codm>Signals Vp_tm_cod=Vp_bm_cod/bm_cod_max; k_tm_cod=Vp_bm_cod/bm_cod_max; k_tm_cod=Vp_tm_cod/tm_cod_max; k_tm_pows=Signals Vp_bm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals N_tm_pows=Signals Vp_tm_pows=Signals N_tm_creasing & v_max v_and(tsp=tcbendm=114x; 2280.44 314.16 366.52 418.88 47 v_and vp=tchend=Nide(t_f_b_pvec_bench); v_and(tsp=tcdendsp=114x; 2280.44 314.16 366.52 418.88 47 v_and vp=tchend=Nide(t_f_b_pvec_bench); v_and(tsp=tcdendsp=114x; 2380.44 314.16 315.2 20.9 26.9]; T_ampling=20; v_and(tsp=tcdendsp=124 4.3 11.4 13.8 15.2 20.9 26.9]; T_am_ax_bench=max(t_ef_f_pvec_bench); T_am_ping=20; T_am_ax_bench=max(t_ef_f_pvec_bench); T_am_ping=20; T_am_ax_bench=max(t_ef_f_pvec_bench); T_am_ping=20; T_am_ax_bench=max(t_ef_f_pvec_bench); T_am_ping=20; T_am_ax_bench=max(t_ef_f_pvec_bench); T_am_bench</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip] 1.24 523.6 628.32]; 8.879 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.3185];
234 235 235 235 235 235 239 249 241 241 244 244 244 244 244 244 244 244	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vermit_o_ipinis Vp_bm_cmd.sc@de3papi/de1 %rad/s k_bm_cmd.mac@de3papi/de1 %rad/s k_bm_cmd.mac@de3papi/de1 %rad/s k_bm_cmd.sc@de3papi/de1 %rad/s k_bm_pows; tm_pows;</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip] 1.24_523.6_628.32]; 8.879_471.2389_523.5988_575.9587_628.3185];
244 233 236 237 237 237 237 237 237 237 237 247 247 247 247 247 247 247 247 247 24	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vermat_lo_signals Vp_bm_cmd.vp_signals Vp_bm_cmd.vp_bm_cmd/vmc_md_max; Vp_tm_cmd=Vp_bm_cmd/vmc_md_max; Vp_tm_cmd=Vp_bm_cmd/vmc_md_max; Vp_tm_cmd=Vp_bm_cmd/vmp_vs; k_tm_pmv=Vp_bm_pmvs/vm_pvvs; Vm_tm_pmv=Vp_tm_pvvs/tm_pvvs; Vm_tm_pmv=Vp_tm_pvvs/tm_pvvs; Vm_tm_pmv=Vp_tm_pvvs/tm_pvvs; Vm_tm_pmv=Vp_tm_pvvs/tm_pvvs; Vm_tm_pvs=S; vm</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip] 1.24 523.6 628.321; 8.879 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.3185];
234 235 2367 2377 2387 2399 241 241 244 244 244 244 244 244	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vuccd_to_signals Vp_bm_cod=vs_signals Vp_bm_cod=vs_signals Vp_bm_cod=vs_signal Vp_bm_cod=vs_signal Vp_bm_pos=vs_signal Vp_bm_pos=vs_signal Vp_bm_pos=vs_signal Vp_bm_pos=vs_signal Vp_bm_pos=vs_signal Vp_bm_top=vs=vs_signal Vp_bm_top=vs_signal V</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip] 1.24 523.6 628.32]; 8.879 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.3185];
244 235 235 235 237 237 237 237 241 243 244 244 244 244 244 244 244 244 244	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vuccd_to_signals Vp_bm_cod=vs_signals Vp_bm_cod=vs_signals Vp_bm_cod=vs_signal Vp_bm_cod=vs_signal Vp_bm_pos=vs_signal Vp_bm_pos=vs_signal Vp_bm_pos=vs_pm_svs/bm_pvs; k_m_pvs=vs_pm_svs/bm_pvs; k_m_pvs=vs_pm_svs/bm_pvs; k_m_pvs=vs_pm_svs/bm_pvs; k_m_pvs=vs_pm_svs/bm_pvs; k_m_pvs=vs_pm_svs/bm_pvs; k_m_pvs=vs_pm_svs/bm_pvs; k_m_pvs=vs_pm_svs/bm_pvs; k_m_pvs=vs_pm_svs/bm_pvs; k_m_pvs=vs_pm_svs/bm_pvs; k_m_pvs=vs_pm_svs/bm_pvs; k_m_pvs=vs_pm_svs/bm_pvs; k_m_pvs=vs_pm_svs/bm_pvs; k_move=vs_pms; k_move=vs_pms; k_move=vs_pms;</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip] 1.24 523.6 628.321; 8.879 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.31851;
234 235 235 235 235 237 237 238 249 241 241 244 244 244 244 244 244	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vuccd_to_signals Vp_bm_cod=vs_signals Vp_bm_cod=vs_signals Vp_bm_cod=vs_signals Vp_bm_cod=vs_signals Vp_bm_pvs=vs_pin_pvs/tm_pvs; k_tm_pvs=vs_pin_pvs/tm_pvs; ktm_pvs=vs_pin_pvs; ktm_pvs=vs_pin_pvs;</pre>	(Move here to reveal toolstrip) 1.24 523.6 628.32); 8.879 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.3185);
234 235 235 235 235 237 239 249 241 244 244 244 244 245 245 255 255	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vucnd_to_signals Vucnd_to_signals Vucnd_to_signals Vucnd_to_signals Vucnd_to_signals Vucnd_to_bm_cnd_med000x2ps/00; Vurad/s k_tm_cnd_sno:000; A_tm_cnd=Vp_bm_cnd/tm_cnd_max; Vucnd_to_bm_css; Num_pussignals Vucnd_to_bm_css; Num_pussignals Vucnd_to_bm_css; Num_pussignals Vucnd_to_bm_css; Num_pussignals Vucnd_to_bm_css; Num_pussignals Vucnd_to_bm_css; Num_pussignals Num_tm_pussignals Num_tm_pussignals Num_tm_pussignals Num_tm_pussignals Num_tm_pussignals Num_pussignals Num_tm_pussignals Num</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip] 1.24 523.6 628.32]; 8.879 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.3185]; ich the area change happens
234 235 235 235 237 239 241 241 243 244 244 244 244 245 255 255 255	<pre>k_torque=Vp_I/max_T; Vecm1_to_ipin1s Vp_bm_cmd_maxe6000+2xp1/60; %rad/s k_bm_cmd_maxe6000+2xp1/60; %rad/s k_bm_cmd_maxe6000+2xp1/60; %rad/s k_bm_cmd_maxe6000+2xp1/60; %rad/s k_bm_posts; %rad/maxe6000+2xp1/60; %rad/s k_tm_cmd=Vp_bm_cmd/mm_cmd_max; %rad/maxe6000+2xp1/60; %rad/s k_tm_cmd=Vp_bm_cmd/mm_pos; %rad/maxe6000+2xp1/60; %rad/s %rad/maxe6000+2xp1/60; %rad/s %rad/maxe6000+2xp1/60; %rad/s %rad/maxe600+2xp1/60; %rad/s %rad/maxe600+2xp1/60; %rad/s %rad/maxe600+2xp1/60; %rad/s %rad/maxe600+2xp1/60; %rad/s %rad/maxe600+2xp1/60; %rad/s %rad/maxe600+2xp1/60; %rad/s %rad/maxe600+2xp1/60; %rad/s %rad/maxe600+2xp1/60; %rad/s %rad/maxe60+2xp1/60; %rad/s %</pre>	[Move here to reveal toolstrip] 1.24_523.6_628.32]; 8.879 471.2389 523.5988 575.9587 628.3185]; ich the area change happens };



Figure 5.1: MTM's MATLAB script

Each time a new electric motor has to be tested below listed variables must be defined by user in the first section of previous reported MATLAB script.

- w_n_test
- *P_m_n_test*
- V_n_test
- *I_n_test*

- cos_fi_test
- w_max_test
- *T_m_max_test*
- tau_m_test
- $\bullet \ Pl_iron_test$
- Pl_eln_test
- $w_t_vec_test$
- $T_t_vec_test$
- w_eff_bp_vec_test
- T_eff_bp_vec_test
- losses_table_test
- $\bullet \ efficiency_table_test$
- tm_pws

While in sections related to variables to be load into MATLAB workspace on the basis of test to be performed besides to define some of previous variables below listed must be defined.

- w_sampling
- T_sampling
- $T_increasing$
- $delay_w$
- $delay_T$
- initial_condition_delay
- sample

Once all needed variables are load into MATLAB workspace, Modular-Technical-Model Simulink file can be open and run in order to start simulation. At that point on/off dashboard button has to be pressed to start system and obtain corresponding results. Indeed, at the end in selected path four .mat files are created containing interesting parameters that can be used to evaluate test motor mechanical and electrical characteristics. Results for each kind of test that can be performed are shown below.

5.1.1 Single working point MIL testing

To perform this kind of test, procedure described in subsection 4.2.4 related to Single working point test must be adopted to set properly MTM Simulink model and to load needed variables into MATLAB workspace. At the end of simulation, four .mat files in selected path, as shown in figure 5.2, are created: T.mat file containing torque values sensed by torque sensor on test motor's shaft, w.mat file containing rotational speed values measured by rounds per minute measurement system attached to test motor's shaft, $bm_I_sensor.mat$ and $tm_I_sensor.mat$ files containing respectively bench and test motor phase current values sensed by current sensors.



Figure 5.2: Single working point MIL testing path

Once these files have been obtained, $single_working_point.m$ file, whose MATLAB code is shown in figure 5.3, can be used to obtain desired test motor mechanical and electrical characteristics related to that considered working point. Before to run this file, some specific variables have to be defined: V_bm and V_tm representing voltage values used to provide respectively bench and test motor Simulink blocks, n representing stored samples' number for each interesting parameter, t representing considered simulation time, sample representing sample time considered for Simulink ToFile blocks implemented in HMI subsystem to store interesting values, theta_amb and theta_tm_max representing respectively ambient temperature and maximum reachable test motor temperature (measured in K), c_tm representing specific heat capacity that is evaluated on the basis of used materials to build test motor (measured in J/(K kg)), m_tm representing test motor weight (measured in kg).



Figure 5.3: Single_working_point.m's MATLAB script

Once this is done, MATLAB single_working_point.m script can be run to obtain results below shown (figure 5.4) where test motor is tested considering the working point that corresponds to intersection between 20 Nm and 366.52 rad/s in ωT plane. Chosen torque value is used to pilot test motor while chosen rotational speed value is used to pilot bench motor.



Figure 5.4: Single working point results in system design phase MIL testing

5.1.2 Nominal power working point MIL testing

To perform this test, procedure described in subsection 4.2.4 related to Nominal power working point test must be adopted to set properly MTM Simulink model and to load needed variables in MATLAB workspace. At the end of simulation, the same .mat file described in previous case are generated inside selected path that can be used to obtain desired test motor mechanical and electrical characteristics related to working points covered during testing. To obtain these desired characteristics *nominal_power_working_point.m file*, shown in figure 5.6, can be used where the same variables described in previous case have to be defined before to run MATLAB script.



Figure 5.5: Nominal_powe_working_point.m's MATLAB script

Running this MATLAB file, results shown in figure 5.7 can be obtained.

Here, rotational speed and torque values increase with a step trends until their nominal values are reached (523.6 rad/s and 20 Nm). Each step lasts 25 s that is equal to user considered delay value to change used rotational speed and torque values to pilot bench and test motor. For each pair of rotational speed and torque values a working point is defined and for it test motor characteristics are computed. Here, a very interesting parameter to be considered is reached temperature once nominal power working point is selected (last step). In that point, reached temperature is 319.86 K (about 47 °C) so it is far from acceptable maximum temperature value (453.15 K, about 180 °C).



Figure 5.6: Nominal power working point results in system design phase MIL testing

5.1.3 Torque curves MIL testing

To perform this test, procedure described in subsection 4.2.4 related to Torque curves test must be adopted to set properly MTM Simulink model and to load needed variables in MATLAB workspace. In this case, like previous ones, at the end of simulation the same four .mat files are created in selected path that can be adopted to evaluate desired test motor torque curves. To obtain these, *Torque_curves.m file* shown in figure 5.6 must be used where besides to define the same variables considered in previous cases, T_test variable must be defined that represents torque value considered to pilot electric motor under test.



Figure 5.7: *Torque_curves.m's* MATLAB script

Running this MATLAB file, results shown in figure 5.8 can be obtained.

Here, in the first graph efficiency, motor shaft power and torque trends are shown while in second graph temperature trend is shown by means test motor's temperature can be taken under control (it is very important that it does not overcome maximum admissible value to avoid problems with electrical circuits implemented inside), and in third graph absorbed and dissipated power trends are shown in order to check whether power recirculating effect is verified or not.



Figure 5.8: Torque curves results in system design phase MIL testing

5.1.4 3D maps MIL testing

To perform this test, the procedure described in subsection 4.2.4 related to 3D maps test must be adopted to set properly MTM Simulink model and to load all needed variables into MATLAB workspace. Also in this case, like all the previous cases, at the end of simulation in selected path four .mat files are generated containing interesting parameter values that can be used to obtain desired test motor 3D efficiency and dissipated power maps and electric and mechanical characteristics related to all working points considered during test. To do this, at the end of simulation maps.m file can be used to obtain desired efficiency and dissipated 3D maps. Here, besides to define all variables described in the first case, some parameters have to be defines such as: $T_sampling$ representing considered torque values' number for selecting all desired working points, $w_sampling$ representing considered rotational speed values' number to select desired working points, $w_eff_bp_vec_test$ and $T_eff_bp_vec_test$ that represent respectively considered rotational speed and torque.





Figure 5.9: 3D maps.m's MATLAB script

Running this MATLAB script, results shown in following figures are obtained. Here, besides dissipated power and efficiency 3D maps also mechanical and electrical characteristics are shown from which all selected working points to evaluate test motor's behavior can be distinguished and for each of them corresponding parameter values can be read. Moreover, also temperature trend is shown where reached temperature values are shown.



Figure 5.10: Dissipated power 3D map result in system design phase MIL testing $% \left({{{\rm{D}}_{{\rm{B}}}} \right)$



Figure 5.11: Efficiency 3D map result in system design phase MIL testing



Figure 5.12: Test motor parameter trends in system design phase MIL testing

5.2 SIL testing

This test allows to check corresponding Control Logic C code's behavior to understand whether it allows to obtain the same results obtained in MIL testing case. Here, first of all Control Logic's C code has to be obtained and then running it in development machine such as also plant's model results have to be obtained in order to compare them to those obtained in MIL testing case. To obtain Control Logic's C code, reference model's block parameters window must be opened and from *Simulation mode* drop-down menu *Software- in-the-loop (SIL)* must be chosen, as shown in figure 5.13.



Figure 5.13: Control Logic block parameters setting in SIL testing

Once this is done, one of the four possible tests that can be chosen must be selected setting properly MTM Simulink model and running the corresponding MATLAB section to load needed parameters in MATLAB workspace. At that point Simulink model can be run and on/off dashboard button has to be pressed to start system and obtain both corresponding Control Logic's C code and simulation results stored in four .mat file inside selected path, like MIL testing case. To check C code generation status, diagnostic viewer window can be opened from Simulink model in order to see what is shown in figure 5.14 and understand whether Control Logic's C code is successfully generated or not. This could be sufficient to understand that obtained C code works properly but in order to be more precise simulation results have to be compared to those obtained in MIL testing case.

		9) •
ulation		
8 PM Ipdating Model Reference Simulation Targets		
Japsed: 2 sec	ts © 1	
Japsed: 3.02 min	a anarstin build	
### Starting build procedure for:	ROL_LOGIC Model_angelfiel_felder_structure	
### Generating code and artifacts	/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC	
### Invoking Target Language Compi ### Using System Target File: /App	on CONTROL_LOGIC.rtw tions/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/ert/ert.tlc	
### Loading TLC function libraries ### Initial pass through model to	e user defined code	
### Caching model source code ### Writing header file CONTRO	GIC types.h	
### Writing source file CONTRO	GIC.c	
### Writing header file CONTRO	GIC_private.h	
### Writing header file CONTRO ### Writing header file rtwtyp	SIC.h	
### Writing header file model_ ### TLC code generation complete.	rence_types.h	
### Using toolchain: Clang v3.1 ### Creating '/Users/gaetanocolomb	e (64-bit Mac) wnloads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC/CONTROL_LOGIC.mk'	
### Building 'CONTROL_LOGIC_rtwlib xcrun clang -c -isysroot /Applic	/Applications/MATLAB_E2020b.app/bin/maci64/gmake" -f CONTROL_LOGIC.mk all ns/Xcode.app/Contents/Developer/Platforms/MacOSX.platform/Developer/SDKs/MacOSX11.1.sdk -arch x86_64 -fno-common -fexceptions	-
mmacosx-version-min=10.14 -O0 -DCL DTID01EQ=0 -DMODEL=CONTROL_LOGIC -	C_INTERFACE=0 -DALLOCATIONFCN=0 -DTERMFCN=1 -DONESTEFFCN=1 -DMAT_FILE=0 -DMULTI_INSTANCE_CODE=0 -DINTEGER_CODE=0 -DMT=0 - ST=3 -DNCSTATES=0 -DHAVESTDIO -DMODEL HAS DYNAMICALLY LOADED SFCNS=0 -I/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test bench project -	
I/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/T I/Applications/MATLAB R2020b.app/s	bench_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC =I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include = ink/include -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common =	
I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/r	/ert -1/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/_sharedutils -0 "CONTROL_LOGIC.o"	
### Creating static library ./CONT	LOGIC_rtwlib.a	
xcrun ar ruvs ./CONTROL_LOGIC_rtw ar: creating archive ./CONTROL_LOG	a CONTROL_LOGIC.O twlib.a	
a - CONTROL_LOGIC.o		
### Successfully generated all bin ### Successful completion of build	outputs. cedure for: CONTROL LOGIC	
uild Summary 💿 1		
apsed:0.598 sec Code generation targets built:		
. ,		
Model Action	Rebuild Reason	
CONTROL_LOGIC Code generated and	iled CONTROL_LOGIC.c does not exist.	
1 of 1 models built (0 models alre	up to date)	
# Bronaving to start STL simulatio		
<pre># Preparing to start SLL Simulatio ilding with 'Xcode with Clang'.</pre>	•	
X completed successfully. # Using toolchain: Clang v3.1 gm	(64-bit Mac)	
<pre>H# Creating '/Users/gaetanocolombo/ H# Building 'CONTROL_LOGIC_ca': "/A</pre>	loads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC/coderassumptions/lib/CONTROL_LOGIC_ca.mk* cations/MATLAB_R2020b.app/bin/maci64/gmake" -f CONTROL_LOGIC_ca.mk all	
run clang -c -isysroot /Applicatio	code.app/Contents/Developer/Platforms/Mac0SX.platform/Developer/SDKs/Mac0SX11.1.sdk -arch x86_64 -fno-common -fexceptions -mm -DCA CHECK FLOATING POINT ENABLED=1 -DCA CHECK LONG LONG ENABLED=1 -DCA CHECK DYNAMIC MEMORY=0 -DCA CHECK DAZ ENABLED=1 -	acos
Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Tes	nch_project -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/rtw/targets/pil/c -	0010
Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/ext	include -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/simulink/include -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src -	0510
'Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw /Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Tes	rc/ext_mode/common =1/Applications/NATLAB_R202Ub.app/rtw/c/ert = nch_project/slprj/ert/_sharedutils =0 "coder_assumptions_hwimpl.o"	
Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/too	/rtw/targets/pil/c/coder_assumptions_hwimpl.c" code.apb/Contents/Developer/Platforms/MacOSX.platform/Developer/SDKs/MacOSX11.1.sdk -arch x86 64 -fno-common -fexceptions -mm	acor
ersion-min=10.14 -00 -DINTEGER_CODE	-DCA_CHECK_FLOATING_POINT_ENABLED=1 -DCA_CHECK_LONG_LONG_ENABLED=1 -DCA_CHECK_DYNAMIC_MEMORY=0 -DCA_CHECK_DAZ_ENABLED=1 -	
(Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Tes	nch_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC/coderassumptions -I/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_D	OGIC
Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/ext (Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw	include =1/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/simulink/include =1/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src = rc/ext_mode/common =1/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/ert =	
(Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Tes (Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/too	nch_project/slprj/ert/_sharedutils -o "coder_assumptions_flt.o" /rtw/targets/pil/c/coder_assumptions_flt.c"	
crun clang -c -isysroot /Applicatio ersion-min=10.14 -00 -DINTEGER CODE	code.app/Contents/Developer/Platforms/MacOSX.platform/Developer/SDKs/MacOSX11.1.sdk -arch x86_64 -fno-common -fexceptions -mm -DCA CHECK FLOATING POINT ENABLED-1 -DCA CHECK LONG LONG ENABLED-1 -DCA CHECK DYNAMIC MEMORY-0 -DCA CHECK DAZ ENABLED-1 -	acos
/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Tes	nch project -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/rtw/targets/pil/c -	0010
Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/ext	include -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/simulink/include -I/Applications/NATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src -	
'Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw 'Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Tes	rc/ext_mode/common =I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/ert = nch_project/slprj/ert/_sharedutils =o "CONTROL_LOGIC_ca.o"	
(Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Tes H# Creating static library ./CONTRC	nch_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC/coderassumptions/CONTROL_LOGIC_ca.c" GIC ca.a	
run ar ruvs ./CONTROL_LOGIC_ca.a	r_assumptions_hwimpl.o coder_assumptions_flt.o CONTROL_LOGIC_ca.o	
- coder_assumptions_hwimpl.o	0	
- CONTROL_LOGIC_ca.o		
<pre># Created: ./CONTROL_LOGIC_ca.a # Successfully generated all binar</pre>	tputs.	
# Using toolchain: Clang v3.1 gm	(64-bit Mac) Jade/Test bench project/s]pri/ert/CONTROL LOGIC/s]/CONTROL LOGIC =>>	
# Building 'CONTROL_LOGIC': "/Appl	ions/MATLAB_R2020b.app/bin/maci64/gmake" -f CONTROL_LOGIC.mk all	
run ciang -c -isysroot /Applicatio rsion-min=10.14 -00 -DCLASSIC_INTE	<pre>uows.app/concents/ueveloper/riatrorms/wacusx.platform/Developer/SDKs/MacOSX11.1.sdk -arch x86_64 -fno-common -fexceptions -mma E=0 -DALLOCATIONFCN=0 -DTERMFCN=1 -DONESTEFFCN=1 -DMAT_FILE=0 -DMULTI_INSTANCE_CODE=0 -DINTEGER_CODE=0 -DMT=0 -DTID01EQ=0 -</pre>	1005
IL_SIGNAL_HANDLER=1 -DCODER_ASSUMP DDEL=CONTROL_LOGIC -DNUMST=3 -DNCS	S_ENABLED=1 -DR7IOSTREAM_RX_BUFFER_BYTE_SIZE=50000 -DRTIOSTREAM_TX_BUFFER_BYTE_SIZE=50000 -DMEM_UNIT_BYTES=1 -DMemUnit_T=uint6 S=0 -DHAVESTDIO -DMODEL_HAS_DYNAMICALLY_LOADED_SFCNS=0 -I/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project -	3_T
Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Tes Applications/MATLAR R2020h.arm/wim	nch_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC =I/Applications/NATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include = k/include =I/Applications/NATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src =I/Applications/NATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common =	
Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw	<pre></pre>	
npprications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/too Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/ext	/ic//calgeca/pii/c -//USers/gaetanocoiomu//USWnioaus/Test_Dencn_Project/siprj/ert/CONTROL_USGIC/sil = include/coder/connectivity/XILTgtAppSvc -1/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/rtiostream/src/utils =	
Appiications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/too Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Tes	/coder/rtlostream/src -T/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/CoderAssumpTgtAppSvc - nch_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC/coderassumptions -o "xil_interface_lib.o"	
Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/too run clang -c -isysroot /Applicatio	/rtw/targets/pil/c/xil_interface_lib.c" code.app/Contents/Developer/Platforms/MacOSX.platform/Developer/SDKs/MacOSX11.1.sdk -arch x86 64 -fno-common -fexceptions -mmm	acos
rsion-min=10.14 -00 -DCLASSIC_INTE IL SIGNAL HANDLER=1 -DCODER ASCIMU	2=0 -DALLOCATIONFCN=0 -DTERMFCN=1 -DONESTEPFCN=1 -DMAT FILE=0 -DMULTI_INSTANCE_CODE=0 -DINTEGER_CODE=0 -DMT=0 -DTIDOIEQ=0 - S ENABLED=1 -DRTIOSTREAM RX BUFFER BYTE SIZE=50000 -DRTIOSTREAM TX BUFFER BYTE SIZE=50000 -DMMEMINIT RVTRS1 -DMMMINIT RVTRS1	вт
ODEL-CONTROL_LOGIC -DNUMST-3 -DNCS	S=0 =DHAVESTDIO =DMODEL_HAS_DYNAMICALLY_LOADED_SFCNS=0 =I/Users/gaetanocolombo/DownloadSftest_bench_project = abb project/sipri/act/CONTROL_LOGIC_sI/Acnd igs/ignc/Martial P2020	
Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/sim	<pre>kind_projectrasp.jectromired_iodic =//mppications/meliams_records.app/extern/include = k/include =//Applications/MatLaB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common = ///Applications/MatLaB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common = //Applications/MatLaB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common = //Applications/Applications/Ap</pre>	
Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/too	rt -1/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/_sharedutils - /rtw/targets/pil/c -I/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC/sil -	
Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/ext Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/ton	include/coder/connectivity/XILTgtAppSvc =I/Applications/MATLAE_R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/tiostream/src/utils = /coder/rtiostream/src =I/Applications/MATLAE_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivitv/CoderAssumoTotAppSvc =	
Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Tes Applications/MATLAB 97070b arc/too	nch_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC/coderassumptions -o "xil_data_stream.o" /rtw/targets/pij/c/xil_data_stream.c"	
run clang -c -isysroot /Applicatio	code.app/Contents/Developer/Flatforms/MacOSX.platform/Developer/SDKs/MacOSX11.1.sdk -arch x86_64 -fno-common -fexceptions -mms	acos
IL_SIGNAL_HANDLER=1 -DCODER_ASSUMP	s-v unancentions on-v "Dispertions - Consistentions - Constituted - PMULTI_INSTANCE_CODE=U -DISTENSEL_CODE=U -UNT=0 -DTIDOIEQ=0 - S_ENALED=1 -DRTICOSTREAM_RX_BUFFER_BYTE_SIZE=50000 -DRTICOSTREAM_TX_BUFFER_BYTE_SIZE=50000 -DMEM_UNIT_BYTES=1 -DMemUnit_T=uintf	8_T
NODEL=CONTROL_LOGIC -DNUMST=3 -DNCS Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Tes	S=U -DHAVESTDIO -DMODEL_HAS_DYNAMICALLY_LOADED_SFCNS=0 -I/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project - nch_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include -	
Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/sim Applications/MATLAB_R2020b_app/sim	k/include -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common - rt -I/Users/qaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slori/ert/_sharedutils -	
Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/too	/rtw/targets/pil/c -I/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC/sil =	
There is a second	incipue/coper/conneccivity/xiLtutAppsvc =//Applications/MATLAB R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/rtiostream/src/utils =	
<pre>(Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/ext 'Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/too</pre>	/coder/rtiostream/src -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/CoderAssumpTgtAppSvc -	
(Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/ext (Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/too 'Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Tes 'Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/too	/coder/rtlostream/src -T/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/CoderAssumpTgtAppSvc - nch_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOSIC/coderassumptions -o "xil_services.o" /rtv/targsts/pi//c/kil_services.c"	
<pre>/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/stc /applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/too /users/gateanccolombo/Downloads/Tes /applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/too run clang -c =isysroot /Applicatio reion-min=10.14 -00 -nCLASSIC INFECTIONE // Contrastic INFECTIONE/CONTRASTIC INFECTIONE/CONTRASTIC // Contrastication/Contrastic/Contra</pre>	/coder/rtiostream/src -//Applications/MATLAB_R2020.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/CoderAssumpTgtAppSvc - nch_project/sipr/er/COUTRDL_DOIC/coderassumptions -0 *mil_services.o* /ry/arragets/pi/contents/leveigeer/Platform/MacOSS.platform/Developer/SDKs/MacOSSII1.skk *arch x86_64 -fno-common -fexceptions -mmm =0 -OALLOACTIONCHE0 -DESEMPTIC-DOISSEPTIC-DOISSTPTE/LOADTINESTRECTOR=0.DINTYDER CONF=0 -INTENTIONE-0.Exerch - emtroits-0.	acos
Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/ext (Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/too Users/gatancoclombo/Downloads/Tee (Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/too run clang -c -isysroot /Applicatio rrion-min=10.14 -00 -DCLASSIC_INTE III_SIGNAL_HANDLER=1 -DCODER_RASSUMP INDEX_CONTROL 1021C - NUMER-2.	/code/ritatream/rc c7.Application/MATLA_M2020b.app/etern7include/code/ronnectivity/CoderAssumpTqtAppBvc - nch_project/spir/str/CONTPOL/LogIC/coderassumpTon = % il_services.c% /tty/Karguts/pil/stl.genvices.c% @cd.app/Content/Develope/Flatforms/MacOSLplatform/Develope/SDRs/MacOSLll.sdk = arch x86_64 -fno-common -fexceptions =mmm Ecd -cmLLogAriontrom=0 -embedrine1 -commEtTPrice1 =matrix first_strate_code-0 =ontromset_strate_code-0 =mort_strate_code-0 =mort_strate_c	acos 9_T

<pre>//Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/ert =1/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/alprj/ert/_sharedutils = //Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/rtw/targets/pil/c =1/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC/sil =</pre>
<pre>I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/XLDTgtAppSvc =1/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/rtiostream/src/utils =</pre>
//Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/colbox/coder/triostream/src -1/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/CoderAssumpTgtAppSvc -
//Jests/gatancolombc/Lownloads/Test_bench_project/slpt/etr/LUWTROL_LAGG(/sl/coderassumptions =0 "X11_intertace.o" "//Jests/gatancolombc/Lownloads/Test_bench_project/slpti/etr/COWTROL_LAGG(/sl/ci)_tittertace.o"
xorun clang -c -isysroot /Applications/xcode.app/Contents/Developer/Flatforms/MacOSX.platform/Developer/SDKs/MacOSX11.1.sdk -arch x86_64 -fno-common -fexceptions -mm
version=min=10.14 -00 =DCLASSIC_INTERFACE=0 =DALLOCATIONFCN=0 =DTERMFCN=1 =DONESTEPFCN=1 =DMAT_FILE=0 =DMULTI_INSTANCE_CODE=0 =DNTEGER_CODE=0 =DTID01EQ=0 =
UKI_SIGNAL_MANDERMI -DCODER_NSSUMFILONS_ENABLEMI -DKHIDSINEAM_KK_BOFTE_SIZE=50000 -UKIESINEAM_KK_BOFTEK_BITE_SIZE=50000 -UKES_UKIT_BITESMI -UKHIDSINEAM_KK_BOFTEK_BITE_SIZE=50000 -UKES_UKIT_BITESMI -UKHIDSINEAM_KK_BOFTEK_BITE
I/Users/gaetanccolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include -
I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/simulink/include -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common -
Inapplications/whiles_Koloud-applicw/overt=I/Josens/gaecanocolombo/Jownloads/test_bench_project/sipi/er/_anaredulis= I/Applications/Whiles_Roloud-applicw/overts/incerts/gaecanocolombo/Jownloads/test_bench_project/sipi/er//CONTROL LOGIC/sil =
I/Applications/MATLAB R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/XILTgtAppSvc -I/Applications/MATLAB R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/riostream/src/utils -
I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/rtiostream/src -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/CoderAssumpTgtAppSvc -
//decis/gatancolombc/bowhicads/rest_bench_project/siprj/ett/UURNUbucklc/coderassuprions -o "xilcomms_rtiostream.o" "/Applications/WATLAR R22D0.appt/colbe/rtv/targets/pii//xilcomms_rtiostream.c"
xrun clang -c -isysroot /Applications/Xcode.app/Contents/Developer/Platforms/MacOSX.platform/Developer/SDKs/MacOSX11.1.sdk -arch x86_64 -fno-common -fexceptions -mm
varian-min=10.14 -00 -DCLASSIC_INTERFACE=0 -DALLOCATIONFCN=0 -DTERMFCN=1 -DONESTEFFCN=1 -DMAILT_INSTANCE_CODE=0 -DINTEGER_CODE=0 -DMT=0 -DTID01EQ=0 -
UKI_SIGNAL_MANDER*1 = KXDER_ASSUMPTIONS_ENABLED*1 = DKTIOSTREAM_KK_BUTTER_STETS 312E=50000 = DKTA_UKIESTREAM_KK_BUTTER_STETS = TO THE STETS =
I/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include -
I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/simulink/include =I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src =I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common =
1/Applications/MRTAB_R2U2Db.app/rtw//crt -1/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slpr/ert/_sharedutils - 1/Applications/MRTAB_R2U2Db.app/rtw//coltow/rtw/targets/idea/idea/fest_bench_project/slpr/ert/coltor/iert/CONTROL LOCIC/sil -
<pre>//aprivations/MaTLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/XIL/gtAppSvc -I/Applications/MaTLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/rtios/matlab_r/ //applications/MaTLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/rtios/matlab_r/</pre>
I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/rtiostream/src -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/CoderAssumpTgtAppSvc -
I/Users/gastancolombc/Downloads/Test_bench_project/sDprj/ett/CONTROL_DOGIC/coderassumptions -o "xil_rtiostream.o" "Annolistics/MatlWay B2020h anno/colbec/ficturetatic/i/o/xil_rtiostream.o"
/npprint/constraintscorbology/constraints_corbology/constraints/corbology/constraints_corbology/constraints_corbology/constraints_corbology/constraints_corbology/constraints/corbology/
version-min=10.14 -00 -DCLASSIC_INTERFACE=0 -DALLOCATIONFCN=0 -DTERMFCN=1 -DONESTEPFCN=1 -DMAT_FILE=0 -DMULTI_INSTANCE_CODE=0 -DINTEGER_CODE=0 -DHID01EQ=0 -
DXIL SIGNAL MANDLER-1 -DCODER ASSUMPTIONS ENABLED-1 -DRFIOSTREAM RX BUFFER BYTE SIZE-50000 -DRFIOSTREAM RX BUFFER BYTE SIZE-5000 -DRFIOSTREAM RX BUFFER BYTE SIZE-50000 -DRFIOSTREAM RX BUFFER BYTE SIZE-5000 -DRFIOSTREAM RX BUFFER BYTE SIZE
UMODEL=CUNTROL_DGGIC =DAUBST=3 =DACSTATES=0 =DAVESTDIO =DAUDEL_HAS_DITARANCALI_LOADEL_STCNS=0 =1/0sers/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project = U/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/spic/tert/CONTROL_LOGIC =//Applications/MBTAB_R2/DDA_STCDA_
I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/simulink/include -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common -
//Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/ttw/c/ert =1/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/_sharedutils =
<pre>ingprisa.rums/msine_reven.app/collos/rtw/targets/pile - //gets/gatancoolos/Dowloads/Test_bench_project/sipri/et/CONTROL_LOGIC/sil - //Applications/MATLAR 52020.app/ceten/include/coder/connectivity/KII/atabpSyc =/Aomlication/MATLAR 52020.app/ceten/include/rtwisa=</pre>
TApplications/MATLAB_R0200.app/toolbox/coder/ttiosteam/src -1/Applications/MATLAB_R0200.app/toolbox/coder/tiosteam/src -1/Applications/MATLAB_R0200.app/toolbox/coder/toolbox/src -1/Applications/Applications/Applications/Applications/Applications/Applications/Applications/Applications/Applications/Appli
I/Users/gaetanocclombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC/coderassumptions -o "rtiostream_utils.o"
"/Applications/MATLAB_RUZUD.app/toolbox/code//tliostream/src/ulis/tiostream_ulis.c"
version-min-10.14 -00 -DCLASSIC_INTERFACE+0 -DALLOCATIONFCN+0 -DTERMECN+1 -DONESTEPFCN-1 -DMASTFILE-0 -DMULTINSTANCE CODE=0 -DINTEGE CODE=0 -DUNTed - DTEIDE=0 -
DXIL_SIGNAL_HANDLER-1 -DCODER_ASSUMPTIONS_ENABLED-1 -DRTIOSTREAM_RX_BUFFER_BYTE_SIZE-50000 -DRTIOSTREAM_TX_BUFFER_BYTE_SIZE-50000 -DRMEM_UNIT_BYTES-1 -DMemUnit_T-uint
DMODEL-CONTROL_LOGIC -DNUMST-3 -DNCSTATES-0 -DHAVESTDIO -DMODEL HAS_DYNAMICALLY_LOADED_SFCNS-0 -I/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench project -
I/Users/gaetanccolombc/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/CONTROL_LOGIC - I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include -
I/Applications/MRTAB_R2020b.app/simulink/include =I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src =I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common = I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/simulink/include =I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src =I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common = I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/simulink/include =I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src =I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common = I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/simulink/include =I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src =I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common = I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/simulink/include =I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src =I/App
/nppiretaions/MRTLBR R2020b.app/toolbox/rtv/targets/pil/c =//Sers/gaetanccolombo/Download/Test_bench_project/slpri/crt/CONTROL_LOGIC/sil =
I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/XILTgtAppSvc -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/rtiostream/src/utils -
1/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/rtiostream/src -1/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/CoderAssumpTgtAppSvc - 1/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/rtiostream/src -1/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/CoderAssumpTgtAppSvc - 1/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/rtiostream/src -1/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/CoderAssumpTgtAppSvc -
//applications/MATLAR R020b.appl/toolbox/rtoolfac/res/in/coder assumptions app.c"
xcrun clang -c -isysroot /Applications/Xcode.app/Contents/Developer/Platforms/MacOSX.platform/Developer/SDKs/MacOSX11.1.sdk -arch x86_64 -fno-common -fexceptions -mm
version-min=10.14 -00 -DCLASSIC_INTERFACE=0 -DALLOCATIONFCN=0 -DTERMFORD -DONESTEPFONH -DMAT_FILE=0 -DMULTI INSTANCE CORE-0 -DNTSERE CODE=0 -DMT=0 -DTIDDIE20-0
UNIT_DIGNMLTMANDERT - DOUBE_ASSUMDTIONS_INNEDERT - DANIESTIGAME_RA_DUTIESTICATE_SIDE - SUDE -
I/Users/gaetanccolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slprj/ert/COWTNOL_LOGIC -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include -
I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/simulink/include -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common -
1/Applications/MRTAB_R2D2Db.app/rtw/c/ert =1/Users/gaetanocolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slpr/ert/_sharedutils = 1/Applications/MRTAB_R2D2Db.app/rtw/c/ert+t/userste/i/c_st/icast/aps/castancolombo/Downloads/Test_bench_project/slpr/ert/CONTROL_LOCIC/sil =
I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/XILTgtAppSvc -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/riostream/src/utils -
I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/toolbox/coder/rtiostream/src -I/Applications/MATLAB_R2020b.app/extern/include/coder/connectivity/CoderAssumpTgtAppSvc -
I/Users/gatancolombc/Downloads/Test_bench_project/sDprj/ett/CONTROL_LOGGIC/coderassumptions -o "coder_assumptions_data_stream.o" "Augulations(MBILMS_B2020h_ampticabe/colombic_assumptions_data_stream.o"
/npprint/constructions/manual_controls/constructions/contents/beveloper/Platforms/duce_commit =
version-min=10.14 -00 -DCLASSIC_INTERFACE=0 -DALLOCATIONFCN=0 -DTERMFCN=1 -DONESTEPFCN=1 -DMAT_FILE=0 -DMULTI_INSTANCE_CODE=0 -DINTEGER_CODE=0 -DTID01EQ=0 -
DXIL SIGNAL HANDLER-1 -DCODER ASSUMPTIONS ENABLED-1 -DRTIOSTREAM RX BUFFER BYTE SIZE-SOUGO -DRTIOSTREAM RX BUFFER BYTE SIZE-SOUGO -DREM UNIT BYTES-1 -DMemUnit T=uint
umus_currec_unic = wwwsirs = wwwsirts== =
umbule_vointwi_loot = woksintswi = woksintswi = umbule_ins_intswii.Lubule_intswi = i/ivestigetatenooinmov/ownioasyiest_eence_protect = //ivestigetatenooinmov/ownioasyiest_eence/iverijet/iver/iver/ivestigetatenoinmov/ownioasyiest_eence_protect = //Applications/WATLAB_E2020b.app/simulink/include = I/Applications/WATLAB_E2020b.app/rtw/c/src =/IApplications/WATLAB_E2020b.app/rtw/c/src/ext_mode/common =
umbale_consuc_cost- subcists + subcists + subcists + subcists subcists subcists subcists + su
<pre>umbleL=voint=</pre>
<pre>umbility localstatus is included in the intervention of the</pre>
<pre>immode=YoursWo_Dout = Numeris* = Numeri</pre>
<pre>Where ignore_Doubles / ignored a struct loss / ignored a structure in the ignored and ignored a structure in the ignored and ignored a structure in the ignored and ignor</pre>
<pre>umblast_contwol_box1 = subcirtast = candestill = umblast_index_inde</pre>
<pre>//Interingentameologic/comeloadin/tert/baseh_project/afform/interingentameologic/comeloadin/tert/baseh_project/afform/interingentameologic/comeloadin/tert/baseh_project/afform/interingentameologic/comeloadin/tert/baseh_project/afform/interingentameologic/comeloadin/tert/baseh_project/afform/interingentameologic/comeloadin/tert/baseh_project/afform/interingentameologic/comeloadin/tert/baseh_project/afform/interingentameologic/comeloadin/tert/baseh_project/afform/interingentameologic/comeloadin/tert/baseh_project/afform/interingentameologic/comelor/interingentameologic/comelogic/co</pre>
<pre>umbode_pointsDointstoppingstopping</pre>
<pre>T/Desr/getamoolomb/lowelawd/Text_beach_project/app/irt/CMTMDL_DOIC-17.pplictions/WTLAB_P2020b.app/centre/lowelawd/Text_beach_project = // T/Desr/getamoolomb/lowelawd/Text_beach_project/app/irt/CMTMDL_DOIC-17.pplictions/WTLAB_P2020b.app/restre/lowelawd/SecOse.pp/restre/lowe</pre>
<pre>umbale_locit_subscript = rescripter = induction =</pre>
<pre>umblack_outski_box1_=imports* = imports* = import* = imp</pre>
<pre>understandig_local_standards restrictions restrictio</pre>
<pre>undout_pointpoin</pre>
<pre>understand_Lockshowleds in the intervent induction intervent induction intervent interve</pre>
<pre>umblack_point_instal_point_instal_productions_instal_point_instal</pre>
<pre>untraining_locis_property interviews into the interviews interviews</pre>
<pre>umbale_locitsubscit_streamsstatus_it</pre>
<pre>untrast general general general and the intervent of the intervent of</pre>
<pre>undout.point.point.point.process.production/point.point</pre>
<pre>undersignation_location for the intervent intervent</pre>
<pre>undout_pointpointpointprotect _ promotions _ restrictions _ restrictio</pre>
<pre>undersponder_bould_structures induction [interling interling interling</pre>
<pre>under_pointpointstored_transpace_rest _ identify_theidentify_</pre>
<pre>unclass_points_point_poin</pre>
<pre>under_points_point_</pre>
<pre>unclass_point</pre>
<pre>under_points_points_points_points_file</pre>
<pre>unclass_points_point_poin</pre>
<pre>underspreided_points_points_protect_prote</pre>
<pre>unclass_points_point_poin</pre>
<pre>undersponder_books_provide_rise_rise_rise_rise_rise_rise_rise_ris</pre>
<pre>undouble_localstockst</pre>
<pre>under_points_points_points_points_protect_protect_points_poi</pre>
<pre>under_pointpointpointprotect</pre>
<pre>under_points_points_points_points_file</pre>
<pre>undouble_localproduct_stream</pre>
<pre>under_points_points_points_points_file</pre>
<pre>under_pointpointstandsindex_stand</pre>
<pre>under_points_points_points_points_first_points_first_points_</pre>
<pre>unnoversity.com/set/set/set/set/set/set/set/set/set/set</pre>
<pre>under_sensity_local</pre>
<pre>undersystationLotis = / model is _ mo</pre>

Figure 5.14: Diagnostic viewer window in SIL testing

Here, SIL testing is done considering only 3D maps test, which represents the most complex test, that can be done with designed model. So, whether the corresponding Control Logic's C code works properly in this case for sure it will work properly in all the other cases. Performing this test, again, the four .mat files seen in all the other cases are obtained. These files contain interesting parameter values that can be used to obtain desired test motor efficiency and dissipated power 3D maps. To do this, the same maps.m file described in subsection 5.1.4 can be used to obtain the corresponding results to be compared to those obtained in 3D maps MIL testing case (results reported in subsection 5.1.4).



Figure 5.15: Dissipated power 3D map in SIL testing



Figure 5.16: Efficiency 3D map in SIL testing

Comparing these results to those obtained in 3D maps MIL testing case reported in subsection 5.1.4 it is possible to observe that results are perfectly equal to each other. This means that obtained Control Logic's C code works properly and it is validated. For one more confirmation, test harness can be performed. To do this Control Logic refere model has to be translated into subsystem such that *treat as atomic unit option* from block parameters window can be check. Once this is done, signals coming out and entering to subsystem must be logged in order to see their trends over the time. To store these trends Logging Signal option in model setting must be checked, and a name and save format must be chosen. In this way, at the end of simulation in MATLAB workspace a new variable is created (out variable) containing logged signal values. This variable can be stored in .mat file digiting save('out_SIL', 'out') command in MATLAB command window. Out_SIL is the name of new .mat file while out is MATLAB workspace variable to be stored in that file. After this, Control Logic test harness can be created by right click on Control Logic subsystem and selecting test harness option from drop-down. Then, create for Control Logic option must be chosen in order to open a new window from which a name and SIL option from *Verification Mode* drop-down menu can be selected as shown in figure 5.19.
System design: model-based testing



Figure 5.17: Control Logic reference model setting for test harness generation

Once Control Logic test harness is created (figure 5.18), out variable before stored must be loaded in workspace in order to obtain before logged signals. This can be done through SIL_signals=out.get('SIL_signals') command where SIL_signals before equal signal represents name used for creating new variable in MATLAB workspace while the one in brackets represents variable to be extracted from out variable. Then, Control Logic input signals have to be obtained from new defined variable by using command before described. Among these signals there is w signal, emergency signal, ON_OFF_button signal, bm _cmd_signal and tm_cmd_ignal. Then, Control Logic test harness signals must be set through model setting input section while output signals must be logged in order to store their values and trends. Also in this case Signal Logging option from Control Logic test harness model setting must be checked and a name and save format must be defined.



Figure 5.18: Control Logic's test harness model

Once Control Logic test harness is set, it can be run to obtain a new out variable into MATLAB workspace that must be stored by means the same command before described. At that point, Control Logic subsystem output signals obtained in test harness case must be compared to those obtained in MIL testing case to check whether obtained Control Logic's C code works properly or not: if output signals are perfectly overlapped each other, for sure, obtained C code works properly and designer can go ahead with design procedure, otherwise it must stop and go back for doing again system design. To perform comparison between MIL Control Logic output signals and test harness Control Logic output signals, four different .m file can be used: green_comparison.mlx file to compare green LED output signal, red _comparison.mlx file to compare red LED output signal, bm_trqcmd_comparison.mlx file to compare test motor command output signal.

In figure 5.21 green_comparison.mlx's MATLAB script is shown that allows to obtain results shown in figure 5.22. Here, the two signals result perfectly overlapped each other so in this output signal case for sure obtained Control Logic C code works properly.

· · · ·	Move here to reveal toolstrip
clear all	
close all	
clc	
<pre>load('out_SIL.mat')</pre>	
<pre>SIL_signals=out.get('SIL_siganls');</pre>	
<pre>green_SIL=SIL_signals.get('green');</pre>	
clear out	
clear SIL_signals	
<pre>load('out_harness.mat')</pre>	
harness signals=out.get('harness signals');	
<pre>green_harness=harness_signals.get('green');</pre>	
clear out	
clear harness_signals	
figure.	
plot(green SIL,Values, 'r'), hold on	
plot(green harness,Values,'b')	
······································	
arid on	

Figure 5.19: green_comparison.mlx's MATLAB script



Figure 5.20: MIL and SIL Control Logic green signal comparison

In figure 5.23 *red_comparison.mlx*'s MATLAB script is shown that allows to obtain results shown in figure 5.24. Also in this case, the two signals result perfectly overlapped each other so also in this output signal case obtained Control Logic C code works properly.

		Maxa have to reveal to alatria
1	clear all	Move here to reveal tooistrip
2	close all	
3	clc	
4		
5	<pre>load('out SIL.mat')</pre>	
6	SIL signals=out.get('SIL siganls'):	
7	<pre>red SIL=SIL signals.get('red');</pre>	
8	clear out	
9	clear SIL signals	
10		
11	<pre>load('out_harness.mat')</pre>	
12	<pre>harness_signals=out.get('harness_signals');</pre>	
13	<pre>red_harness=harness_signals.get('red');</pre>	
14	clear out	
15	clear harness_signals	
16		
17	figure,	
18	plot(red_SIL.Values,'r'), hold on	
19	<pre>plot(red_harness.Values, 'b')</pre>	
20		
21	grid on	

Figure 5.21: red_comparison.mlx MATLAB script



Figure 5.22: MIL and SIL Control Logic red signal comparison

In figure 5.25 $bm_trqcmd_comparison.mlx$'s MATLAB script is shown that allows to obtain results shown in figure 5.26 where the two signals are perfectly overlapped each other so also in this output signal case the proper Control Logic C code operation is verified.



Figure 5.23: *bm_trqcmd_comparison.mlx*'s MATLAB script



Figure 5.24: MIL and SIL Control Logic *bm_trqcmd* signal comparison

In figure 5.27 tm_trqcmd_comparison's MATLAB is shown that allows to obtain results shown in figure 5.28. Here, the two signals result perfectly overlapped each other which means that also in this case obtained Control Logic C code works in a proper way.



Figure 5.25: tm_trqcmd_comparison.mlx's MATLAB script



Figure 5.26: MIL and SIL Control Logic tm_trqcmd signal comparison

System design: model-based testing

Chapter 6

RCP code production

Once System design phase is completed physical system's model is obtained and validated. At that point, Rapid Control Prototyping code production V-shaped model's phase has to be performed in order to develop, optimize and test Control Logic's C code in real-time by using what is called *Rapid*-Control-Prototyping-Platform (RCPP) without manual programming. This is very useful because in System design phase physical system's model has been built in no real-time conditions and before to decide which kind of VMU has to be chosen to implement final physical system, system's behavior has to be verified in presence of real interfaces. So, this time what has to be changed are interfaces implemented in Control Interface refence model that allow communication between control law and other parts of system in order to perform both MIL testing and SIL testing in presence of real interfaces to verify system model and corresponding Control Logic C code's behavior. To do this, before modelled interfaces in Control interface reference model have to be substituted with new models that allow to simulate behavior of interfaces implemented in physical hardware. For this reason, dSpace library, described in 210128 dSPACE interfaces documentation file, is adopted that allows to substitute discrete filters and quantization blocks, described in subsection 4.2.3, with ADC and DAC blocks as shown in figure 6.1.



Figure 6.1: Control interface reference model in RCP phase

Opening ADC block, model reported in figure 6.2 can be observed. Here, three different blocks are implemented to convert analog input signals into digital signals: the first block is an analog filter that is intended to filter input voltage signals, the second one is a quantizer block whose quantizer interval is set on the basis of desired resolution while the third one is a gain that divides by ten signal values.



Figure 6.2: dSpace ADC block model scheme

Instead opening DAC block, model reported in figure 6.4 can be observed where the same blocks described in ADC block case are implemented. Indeed, a quantizer block is implemented to set quantization interval on the basis of desired resolution, a gain that multiplies by ten entering signals and an analog filter that allows to reconstruct original signal.



Figure 6.3: dSpace DAC block model scheme

Since dSpace ADC blocks divide by ten entering analog signals and dSpace DAC blocks multiply by ten entering digital signal, two signal conditioning sections must be implemented to adapt signals entering to Control Logic reference model and signals coming out from that reference model. Indeed, as highlighted in figure 6.4, a signal conditioning section is implemented at the input of Control Logic reference model while the other one is implemented at the output of Control Logic reference model.



Figure 6.4: Signal conditioning sections in Control Interface reference model

This, obviously, implies a change in Control Data section of MATLAB script used to parametrize all implemented Simulink blocks in MTM. This time, indeed, no data must be defined in that section because to implement dSpace interfaces, *slblocks.m* and *dSPACE __data.mlx files* must be run in order to add dSpace library among all other libraries in Library Browser section and to load needed parameters for parametrizing those blocks in MATLAB workspace. In figure 6.5 and 6. slblocks.m and dSPACE__data.mlx files MATLAB script are shown.





	HARDWARE INTERFACES DATA [Move here to reveal toolstrip]
	ADC TYPE1 DATA
	$1 \longrightarrow Dutter \\ r'' \longrightarrow DC \longrightarrow 1$
	LOW-PASS FILTER
1 2	order=1; cut_f_AD=23e3+2*pi; %rad/s
345	OUANTIZER V_ADC —>peak voltage. Input Voltage Range ±10 V N_ADC → number of bits/ resolution quant_AD —> quantization interval V_ADC=16; quant_AD=V_ADC/(2*N_ADC-1);
	GAIN
6	ADC=0.1;
6	ADC=0.1; DAC TYPE1 DATA
6	ADC=0.1; DAC TYPE1 DATA
6	ADC=0.1; DAC TYPE1 DATA $time{} to reveal tooistrip}$ DAC TYPE1 DATA $time{} to reveal tooistrip}$ DAC $time{} to reveal tooistrip}$ $time{} to reveal tooistrip}$ $time{} to reveal tooistrip}$ $time{} to reveal tooistrip}$ DAC $time{} to reveal tooistrip}$ $time{} to reveal tooistrip}$
789	ADC=0.1; DAC TYPE1 DATA $I \rightarrow I \rightarrow$
789	ADC=0.1; DAC TYPE1 DATA DAC TYPE1 DATA OUNTIZER V_DAC — peak voltage. Output Voltage Range ± 10 V N_DAC — number of bits/ resolution quant_DA — quantization interval V_DAC-10; n_DAC-10; quant_DA=V_DAC/(2*N_DAC-1); CAN
6 7 8 9 0	ADC=0.1; DAC TYPEI DATA $I \rightarrow I \rightarrow$
7 89 0	ADC=0.1; DAC TYPE1 DATA OUNTIZER V_DAC \rightarrow peak voltage. Output Voltage Range ± 10 V N_DAC \rightarrow number of blid/resolution quant_DA \rightarrow quantization interval V_DAC-10; quant_DA=V_DAC/(2^N_DAC-1); GAIN DAC=10; CONTINOUS TRANSFER FUNCTION

Figure 6.6: slblocks.m's MATLAB script

All parameters to be load into MATLAB workspace to parametrize dSpace ADC and DAC blocks are listed and described below.

• order

It defines low-pass filter's order. In this case, since a first order low-pass filter must be implemented inside ADC blocks it is set equal to 1.

• cut_fAD

It defines low-pass filter's cut-off frequency implemented inside ADC block.

• *V_ADC*

It defines peck voltage with which ADC can deal. In this case, input voltage range is set between -10 and 10 V $\,$

• *N_ADC*

It defines ADCs' resolution since it represents number of bits to be considered for computing quantization interval.

• $quant_AD$

It defines quantization interval computed by means relation defined in MATLAB script

• *ADC*

It represents gain's value implemented inside ADC block

• *V_DAC*

It defines peck voltage with which DAC can deal. In this case, input voltage range is set between -10 and 10 V.

• N_DAC

It defines DACs' resolution since it represents number of bits to be considered for computing quantization interval.

• $quant_DA$

it defines quantization interval computed by means the same relation used in quant_AD case defined in MATLAB script.

• *DAC*

It defines gain's value implemented in DAC block.

• cut_f_DA

It defines low-pass filter's cut-off frequency implemented inside DAC block.

Once real interfaces have been modelled, tests must be done to understand whether system's behavior changes or not with respect to that found during System Design phase. So, MIL and SIL testing must be done to understand whether implemented model and Control Logic's C code work properly in presence of modelled real interfaces.

6.1 Rapid-Control-Prototyping MIL testing

This test allows to verify system model's behavior in presence of modelled real interface. To understand whether implemented model during System design phase behaves properly or not, obtained results must be compared to those obtained during System design MIL testing: if they result equal to each other, for sure, implemented system's model behaves properly and designer can go away with design based on V-shaped model. So, also in this case to perform MIL testing the four different way to test motor must be considered in order to obtain results that have to be compared to those obtained during System Design V-shaped model phase.

6.1.1 RCP Single working point MIL testing

To perform this kind of test, like System design single working point MIL testing case, procedure described in subsection 4.2.4 related to Single working point test must be adopted to set properly MTM Simulink model and to load needed variables into MATLAB workspace. At the end of simulation, four .mat files in selected path are created that contain interesting parameter values that can be used to evaluate desired test motor's electrical and mechanical characteristics related to considered working point. To obtain these test motor's characteristics the same single working point.m file used in System Design MIL testing case has to be used where some variable values must be defined before to run MATLAB script. Parameters to be defined are the same to those described in subsection 5.1.1 and once MATLAB script is run results shown in figure 6.7 are obtained. Obviously, since these results must be compared to those obtained in System Design single working point MIL testing case, the same working point of $\omega - T$ plane is considered: 20 Nm value is considered to pilot electric motor under test and 366.52 rad/s value is considered to pilot bench motor.



Figure 6.7: Single working point results in RCP MIL testing

Results shown in above figure are perfectly the same to those shown in figure 5.4 so, system's model works properly in presence of modelled real interfaces.

6.1.2 RCP Nominal power working point MIL testing

To perform this test, like System design nominal power working point MIL testing case, procedure described in subsection 4.2.4 related to Nominal power working point test must be adopted to set properly MTM Simulink model and to load needed variables in MATLAB workspace. At the end of simulation, like all other cases, in selected path four .mat files are created that contain interesting parameter values that can be used to obtain desired test motor mechanical and electrical characteristics related to working points considered during testing. To obtain these characteristics the same nominal_power_working_point.m file described in subsection 5.1.2 has to be used where some variables must be defined before to run the MATLAB script. Of course, parameters to be defined are the same to those described in subsection 5.1.2 and once MATLAB script is run, results shown in figure 6.8 are obtained.



Figure 6.8: Nominal power working point results in RCP MIL testing

Comparing these results to those obtained in System Design Nominal Power Working Point MIL testing case (figure 5.6) it is possible to observe that they are equal to each other so for sure also in this case system's model works properly in presence of modelled real interfaces.

6.1.3 RCP Torque curves MIL testing

To perform this test, like System design torque curves case, procedure described in subsection 4.2.4 related to Torque curves test must be adopted to set properly MTM Simulink model and to load needed variables in MATLAB workspace. In this case, like previous ones, at the end of simulation the same four .mat files are created in selected path that can be used to evaluate desired test motor torque curves. To obtain these, the same Torque_curves.m file can be adopted where parameters described in subsection 5.1.3 must be defined before to run MATLAB script and once this is done results shown in figure 6.9 are obtained





Figure 6.9: Torque curves results in RCP MIL testing

Comparing these results to those obtained in System Design Torque Curves MIL testing case it is possible to conclude that also in this case designed system's model works properly in presence of modelled real interface.

6.1.4 RCP 3D maps MIL testing

To perform this test, like System design 3D maps MIL testing case, procedure described in subsection 4.2.4 related to 3D maps test must be adopted to set properly MTM Simulink model and to load all needed variables into MATLAB workspace. Also in this case, like all other cases, at the end of simulation in selected path four .mat files are generated that contain interesting parameter values that can be used to obtain desired test motor 3D efficiency and dissipated power maps and electric and mechanical characteristics related to all working points considered during test. To do this, at the end of simulation the same maps.m file described in subsection 5.1.4 can be used where some parameters must be defined before to run MATLAB script. Running that script results shown in following figures are obtained.



Figure 6.10: Efficiency map result in RCP MIL testing



Figure 6.11: Dissipated power 3D map result in RCP MIL testing



Figure 6.12: Test motor characteristics results in RCP MIL testing

Comparing these results to those obtained in System Design 3D maps MIL testing case it is possible to understand that designed system model works properly in presence of modelled real interfaces since results are perfectly equal to each other.

6.2 Rapid-Control-Prototyping SIL testing

After being designed, the system model is tested in presence of modelled real interface and verified that its behavior does not change with respect to the case where real interface are not modelled (model considered in System Design V-shaped model phase), corresponding Control Logic C code has to be obtained and to its behavior in presence of modelled real interfaces must be tested. Here, as explained in chapter 5 both plant's model and Control Logic's code are run in development machine. Also in this case to obtain Control Logic's C code, Software-in-the-loop must be selected from simulation mode drop-down menu that can be find in block parameters window of corresponding reference model, as shown in figure 6.13. Once this is done, all possible tests can be considered to perform simulation and obtain corresponding results to be compared to those obtained in MIL testing case and understand whether obtained C code works properly or not: if results are equal to each other, for sure, obtained Control Logic's C code works properly, otherwise there is something that does not work as desired and designer has to go back to find errors to be solved. Actually, if C code generation procedure ends in successfully manner the C code will work properly. Status of C code generation procedure can be observed by means diagnostic viewer.



Figure 6.13: Control Logic reference model setting in RCP SIL simulation

To avoid being repetitive only a single kind of test is reported: 3D maps test which represents the hardest test due to the very huge quantity of working points that is considered. To perform this test, besides to do what before described the same procedure explained in subsection 4.2.4 related to 3D maps test has must be followed in order to set properly MTM Simulink model and to load needed variables in MATLAB workspace. Once simulation is performed in selected path always the same four files are created that contain interesting parameter values that can be used to obtain results shown in following figures that can be compared to those obtain in RCP 3D maps MIL testing case for understanding whether obtained Control Logic's C code works properly or not such that designer can decide whether it is possible to go away with design or not. Performing this test results shown in figure 6.14 are obtained.



Figure 6.14: Efficiency 3D map result in RCP SIL testing



Figure 6.15: Dissipated power 3D map result in RCP SIL testing



Figure 6.16: Test motor characteristics results in RCP SIL testing

Comparing these results to those obtained in RCP 3D maps MIL testing it is possible to observe that nothing changes so for sure also in this case obtained Control Logic's code works properly and designer can proceed with design. Rapid-Control-Prototyping code production

Bibliography

- [1] Fratino Thesis. ICE TEST BENCH REDEVELOMENT FOR HYBRID AND ELECTRIC POWERTRAIN. Italy, 2019.
- [2] Coletta Thesis. Model-based Design of an Automotive Control Code with a modified V-cycle and Modular Model approach. Italy, 2019.
- [3] The MathWorks, Inc. Signal Generator https://www.mathworks.com/help/simulink/slref/signalgenerator.html
- [4] The MathWorks, Inc. *Mapped Motor* https://www.mathworks.com/help/autoblks/ref/mappedmotor.html
- [5] The MathWorks, Inc. *Rotational Inertia* https://www.mathworks.com/help/vdynblks/ref/rotationalinertia.html
- [6] The MathWorks, Inc. *Delay* https://www.mathworks.com/help/simulink/slref/delay.html
- [7] The MathWorks, Inc. *Discrete Filter* https://www.mathworks.com/help/simulink/slref/discretefilter.html
- [8] The MathWorks, Inc. *Quantizer* https://www.mathworks.com/help/simulink/slref/quantizer.html
- [9] The MathWorks, Inc. State charts for modeling control logic https://www.mathworks.com/discovery/state-chart.html
- [10] The MathWorks, Inc. Switch https://www.mathworks.com/help/simulink/slref/switch.html
- [11] The MathWorks, Inc. Create Subsystems https://www.mathworks.com/help/simulink/ug/creatingsubsystems.html
- [12] The MathWorks, Inc. *Model References* https://www.mathworks.com/help/simulink/model-reference.html
- [13] The MathWorks, Inc. *Dashboard* https://www.mathworks.com/help/simulink/dashboard.html

- [14] The MathWorks, Inc. Generate C Code from Simulink Model https://www.mathworks.com/help/dsp/ug/generate-c-code-fromsimulink-model.html
- [15] The MathWorks, Inc. dSpace interfaces DAUIN Vehicle Management Unit 210128 dSPACE_interfaces_documentation. Italy, 2021.